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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

My name is Eric M. Larson. 1 testified before this Subcommittee in 1996, and in 1997, and am doing
50 agmin this year, regarding serious ermors in the National Firearms Registration and Transfer Record
(WNFRTR), The NFRTR was established under the MNational Firearms Act (NFA) of 1934. The NFA
is designed to control firearms thought to be commonly used by criminals by requiring registration
of the firearmes, and using prohibitive taxes to reduce their manufacture, distribution, and ownership.
It is & harsh federal law to discourage illegally manufacturing, selling, or possessing hand grenades,
machine guns, and similar weapons, and the cutting down of conventional shotguns or rifles
(regardless of their caliber) to make concealable firearms. Any violation of the NFA is a felony,
carrying a penalty of up to a $10,000 fine and 10 years imprisonment upon comviction.

The NFRTR is & permanent record of all transactions involving NFA firearms in the United States,
It is currently located within the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (BATF), which under
current law is responsible for administering the NFA. The NFRTR contains a variety of records,
including the original registrations and subsequent transfers of NFA firearms 1o state and local law
enforcement officers, state and local musewms, private citizens who are legally qualified to own such
firearms and are not prohibited from doing so under state or local law, of transfers to and from
federally licensed WFA firearms dealers, and records of NFA firearms manufacture by federally
licensed NFA firearms manufacturers, Because of the severe penalties for violations of the NFA,
accurate record-kesping is essential to avoid unjust prosecutions, and the unlawfil seizure of validly
registered NFA firearms,

Imammmtmﬁwmmmmmmmmw
MNFRTR from custody of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (BATF), and to permanently
reassign its functions to the Depantment of Justice, As you probably know, the Department of Justice
is responsible for the “instant background check™ of persons who wish to purchase handguns, which
is scheduled to go into effect this year. Therefore, it would be relatively easy to incorporate the
MNFRTR into the existing infrastructure, and modifications to allow for administration of the NFRTR
would likely be very minor. Removal of the NFRTR from BATF will also place these records within
a professional organization that is capable of maintaining them, and probably will require a badly
needed 100%% record verification. The BATF (and, possibly, other law enforcement agencies) would
continue to have access to the information in the NFRTE, for legitimate low enforcement purposes.

My knowledge about errors in the NFRTR evolved from the study of certain rare firearms that fell
under the NFA in 1934 largely for technical reasons, not because they were commonly associated
with criminal activities. Today, these firearms are historical antifacts that reflect a bygone era when
there were no federal controls, and virtually no state controls, on firearms design. Thus, they
represent a unique niche in 17,5, firearms genealogy, because there is nothing else like them, and they
are highly prized by collectors. As my research on these guns was published in major, reputable
firearm reference books, collectors and persons who had inherited these firearms began contacting
me. The BATF has represented my sole interest in discussing errors in the NFRTR to seek the



removal of these firearms from the NFA as collector’s items, but that is not correct. In fact, my
mmﬁnmmummﬁwm&mmmﬂnmmﬂ

at ar. It is in BATF's interest to try and focus attention
mrfrmmmthmmnrwmgnmymumﬁ,lrﬂﬂmuvdmﬂhwmbmdnm

BATF is correct in portraying me as a collector, but what changed my interest is the fact that some
people who inherited some of these firearms told me that BATF alleged the firearms were not
registered, then declared the firearms were contraband and must be forfieited to the Government;, and
apparently, some were. In other instances, people who were enraged by this situation told me they
scoured their premises, found a valid registration document—and showed it to BATF. Then,
allegedly, BATF said a mistake had been made and the NFRTR was amended to register the firearm
to the new, lawful owner. In every instance, the people involved told me they were afraid of BATF,
and didn’t want 1o be identified, but wanted me to know this information. While there certainly is
a “collector’s item™ interest in this situation, the loss or destruction of firearm registration records by
the BATF clearly places my concerns in another dimension that is removed from gun collecting.

1 was aware of these allegations for a mumber of years, but there seemed no way of proving them one
way or the other because of the veil of secrecy that shields NFRTR records from public disclosure,
The reason is that the NFA itself prohibits their disclosure as does the Tax Code of 1986, under
which the BATF has deemed them to be “tax retumns.” The BATF elso apparently uses the “tax
refurn” angle 10 cover up wrongdoing by its agents and employees.

From my perspective, the situation regarding the firearms I was researching changed dramatically in
March 1996, for two reasons.

First, | was asked by L. Richard Littlefield, then President of the Collectors Arms Dealers Association
{CADA) to testify before this Subcommittee about getting a more reasonable treatment, as the law
allows, for the smooth bore H&R. Handy-Gun, Marble's Game Getter Gun, and similar firearms that
came under the NFA in 1934 mainly for technical reasons. I'd known Dick since about 1989, and
he was aware of my research, but CADA’s testimony was not limited to these firearms. Indeed, one
of the reasons CADA testified in 1996 was 1o ask for a change in the law to allow federally licensed
firearms dealers to buy or transfer “curio or relic™ fircarms among themselves at gun shows, The law
itsell at that time was silent on the issue (that is, nothing in the legal code prohibited such
transactions), but BATF took the position that such transactions were illegal, and nobody wanted to
incur the legal expense of fighting the BATF. So, the law was ultimately changed to allow federally
licensed firearms dealers to be able to buy and sell guns from each other &t gun shows.

The second reason was that for the first time, valid and reliable evidence of the mismanagement and
destruction of NFRTR records became available. This is a document that has been called the Busey
Transcript, which was released under a Freedom of Information Act Request. This document is the
record of 2 videotaped training session at BATF headquarters which occurred on October 18, 1995,
At the session the then-Chief of the National Firearms Act Branch, Mr. Thomas Busey, stated that
the error rate in the NFRTR was 50% when he first assumed his duties the year before; and that
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BATF always testified in court that the NFRTR was 100% accurate, although that was not 100%
true. Toward the end of his presentation, Mr. Busey discussed correcting a number of errors that he
described, and stated:

What we're going to do ks we're going to go hack, starting with the latest entry and working
back to the aldest entry and review every hard copy of every document with its entry into the
data base to see if it"s correct. T think originally we figured this would take 781 man days to
do this with five people sitting at a computer eight hours a day,

But it’s the only way that we can feel that we can ever get it completely accurate. Jr was fine
1o begin putting everything in accnrate a year ago or af least be guaranteed a year ago it
was correct, but what are you going to do with the entries that go back to the early ‘805
and the ‘705 and the ‘6057 [boldface added for emphasis].

It was an astonishing admission, Based on Mr. Busey’s statements, and information about afleged
errors in the NFRTR from firearms collectors, [ analyzed statistical data that BATF had publichy
released each year on NFRTR transaction activities since approsdmately 1990, In my 1996 testimony.
1 documnented otniows errors in the NFRTR, inchuding the fact that every year since at least 1952, the
BATF reported registrations of firearms during years and in categories which they cannot logically
or legally exist, and the apparent addition of firearms to the NFRTR for years before 1971, 1 also
incleded a copy of the Busey Transeript in the Appendix to my 1996 testimony.

On May 21, 1996, less than a month after my testimony, U.S. District Judge John A MacKenzic
dismissed five comvictions for nonregistration of NFA firearms on appeal, declaring that the NFRTR
records were too unrclisble to support a conviction, In fact, 2 BATF Special Agent, Mr, Gary N
Schaible, testified that BATF employees could in fact have destroyed the documents in question. The
LS. Attorney prosecuting the case declined to cross-examine, and the BATF has not appealed the
dismiszals, The BATF wants this case to go away. As 1 will show it isn't going to go away, becaus:
it is the object of continuing action in Federal Court,

Astonishingly, the BATF made no apparent effort to correct the problems that [ identified, becaus-
1 detected them in the nect round of data it released the following year. So, 1 returned to testils
befiore this Subcommittes nearly a year later using these data, and this time extensively documente:d
credible instances of apparent mismanagement, misconduct and criminal wrongdoing by BATFE. On
May 10, 1997, 1 formally complained to the Treasury Department Inspector General (1G) aboui
several specific events, but on June 5, 1997, the IG wrote and told me that it was declining 1.
investigate—and was referring my complaint to BATF. In an effort to try and prevent what surcl.
would have been another coverup, T contacted the House Committee on Government Reform an
Owversight. In early October 1997, the Committee ordered the 1G to: (1) independently audit i
BATF's firearm registration practices; and (2) evaluate the BATFs internal report. The Treasu:
Department Inspector General has not, to the best of my knowledge, yet reported its findings to i
House Committee.
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Although the BATF internal report was completed in September 1997, 1 was unable to obtain a copy
until late Januery 1598, The results were no surprise: the BATF completely exonerated itself, and
its responses to my allegations seem to raise public scenery chewing to a new level. In response to
statistical evidence I presented that BATF was adding firearms to the NFRTR after being confronted
by their owners with velid registration documents, BATF stated that such apparent increases “may
be” due to reclassifications of forms.  Yet, when I asked NFRTE. custodian Gary M. Shaible in April
1996 whether BATF had added firearms to the NFRTR because lawful owners presented wvalid
documents of which BATF had no record, he stated: “Yes. 1 assume that's happened.” Thus, it
appears likely that at least some people have been unjustly prosecuted for possessing a lawfully
registered firearm, for which BATF lost or destroyed the registration documents.

In an internal 1981 BATF report [ obtained under & Freedom of Information Act request, but which
BATF apparently released to me by mistake (1 hadn™t known it existed, and had not requested it), a
long-time BATF employes stated that some firearms were registered to people who would then have
been 112 years old—and that BATF knew they were dead! BATF's data show that of 14,259 NFA
firearms registered from 1934 1o 1939, 11,175 (78%) are still owned by the same person or
organization who registered or obtained them that year. A person who was 21 years old in 1939
would be 80 years old in 1998, Is it safe to conclude that most of them are now dead?

Of the 58 904 firearms registered during the 1968 amnesty, 50,314 (85%) are still owned by the same
people. Someone who was 21 years old in 1968 would be aged 51 in 1998; a 65-year-old would
today be 93, At least some of these people are dead. Yet, BATF states in its internal report that
some fircarms may be registered to dead people, but BATF has no knowledge of this.

Mr. Chairman, each of the 58 904 amnesty registration forms has a social security number on it; it
was & required data field for the registration to be aceepted. It would take no more than a few hours
to determine from the Social Security Death Index exactly how many of these 58,904 NFA firearms
are registered to people who are dead. Wldmﬂusmnbmnﬂmahhtyufﬂmﬂmw:memm
keep track of firearms it believes are dangerous?

And how pervasive is this problem? Well, according to the most recent data BATF has publicly
released (as of December 31, 1996), exactly 108,556 persons have never legally transferred the
ownership of machinegnms, bazockas, stwed-off shotguns, hand grenades, anti-tank rifles, and similar
devices that they registered or acquired by transfer in or before 1971, Inasmuch as the NFA was
enacted in 1934, this corresponds to ownership periods of from 27 to 64 years. Someone who
reg:stemdnnNFAﬁrmuag;&Smlﬂ#(ﬂmspmiﬁcmmpledmdbytheBﬁﬂTmpiwu'
the 1981 internal report) would have been 112 years old in 1981; in 1998, such & person would be
129 years old. Is this sound management on the part of the BATF? [ think not.

I could go on at some length about these and similar issues, and have reserved them for the
attachments to my testimony, but feel that [ must discuss two more situations here, One of them
potentially affects me personally, the other is valid and reliable evidence of both perjury and an
attempt by BATF to continue to try and cover up errors in the NFRTR.



30

After my April 1996 testimony, through a series of Freedom of Information Act requests, 1
discovered that four firearms in my personal collection were apparently registered or transferred
illegally by the BATF years before I lawfully acquired them. All of these firearms are smooth bore
H&R Handy-Guns, and bear serial numbers 5592, 29691, 50885, and 53637. Two of them are new-
in-bone, are quite valuable, and came from the H&R Factory Collection. 1 documented this in my
April 1997 testimony. As the attachments to my testimony today document, on January 31, 1998,
1 formally requested a statement from Nereida W, Levine, Chief of the National Firearms Act Branch,
asking if the BATF plans to seize these firearms as contraband, and undertake a forfeiture action. In
u letter dated March 3, 1998, Chief Levine confirmed what [ already knew—namely, that the NFRTR
shows that the firearms are legally registered to me, a question that 1 did not ask.

The question Chief Levine left unanswered, and which I re-gsked in an immediate followup letter
dated March 6, 1998, is whether the BATF considers these specific firearms as subject to seizure and
forfeiture, T have received no response to this letter to date, and I don™t believe it is because Chief
Levine is unable to read, 1 think I have received no response because | have placed BATF between
a rock and a hard place; namely, if BATF declares the firearms are contreband because BATF itself
illegally registered or transferred them, that means the BATF has admitted at least some of what I
have alleged, which is that the accuracy and integrity of the NFRTR has been compromised.

1 franktly do not know if the BATF will move to seize these firearms after all this blows over, If so,
I'll have documents to show to the LS. Attorney who prosecutes that action, demonstrating that 1
have repeatedly attempted to deal with this matter as a responsible citizen by contacting the BATF,
&s well as my elected representatives in the Congress. Mr. Chairman, Members of the Subcommittee,
if you legally bought something in a transaction that the Government approved years ago, how would
you feel about having your Government forcibly invade your home, seize those items, and go to
Federal Court to permanently take them away from you without any compensation? That is a tension
that I have lived with for more than a vear now, and 1 can tell you that T don’t like it. Would you?

The second situation is evidence of both perjury and an attempt to continue to cover up errors in the
NFRTR. Specifically, Mr. Shaible told a completely different story in the 1997 BATF internal report
than he did under oath in federal court. In the 1997 internal BATF report, Mr. Schaible stated under
oath that the registration documents 1 was referring to in my complaint were thought to have been
destroyed some 8 years ago by contract employees, not BATF employees. Yet, my question
spuﬁﬂlyr&mdluﬂ:hhyll l?Qﬁ,untlmnuf which Mr. Mmmﬁmmrm

mmdlygummemhmﬂufnﬂ:dnmmnﬂlmﬁﬂwmmmfmﬂu
biatant discrepancy. I understand that David N. Montague, Esq., npm-'atnm-nqrrq:rmngﬂr.
defendant in this case, filed & Writ of Habeas Corpus on March 25, 1998, in federal court

the single outstanding conviction based, in part, on the discrepant testimony of Mr. Schaible. It
seems to me as though the BATF is continuing to try and cover all of this up.
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In an article entitled “Institutional Perjury,” published in the October 1996 issue of Voice for the
Deferse, muthor James H. Jeffries TIL, Esq., stated that “the Busey tape was clearly exculpatory and
clearly implicated every Mational Firearms Act prosecution and forfeiture in living memory.” He
concluded:

Al across the country Assistant United States Attorneys, United States District Judges, and
other federal and local law enforcement officials are going 10 leamn what most defense lawyers
and gun dealers have known for years and what the aftermath of Waco and Ruby Ridge
starkly illustrated: BATF officers and agents lie, dissemble and cover up on an
institutionalized basis. These are not aberrations; they are an institutional way of lifie. Tust
who is the criminal in these cases?
For the above reasons, and the documented evidence I have presented in my 1996 and 1997
testimomies, as well as in the self-explanatory attachments to this testimony, I would like to
respectfully ask the Subcommittee to consider removing the NFRTR. from custody of the Bureau of
Mleohol, Tobaseo and Firearms (BATF), and to permanently reassign its functions to the Department
of Justice. The Depariment of Justice is the entity which actually conducts all of the background
checls that the BATF, and other law enforcement agencies, use at trial for violations of the law, and
has a much better system than does the BATF for assuring the accuracy and integrity of those
records. In contrast, the BATF has destroyed NFRTR records, Hed about it, and continued to lie
about it.

As you know, the “instant background check™ for persons who wish to purchase handguns is
scheduled to o into effect later this year, and the Department of Justice is responsible for doing these
record checks. Moving the NFRTR from BATF to the Department of Justice would mean that BATF
{or its successor—I am hopefidl of change in this area) would still certainly have access to these
records for legitimate law enforcement purposes; however, the BATF could no longer illegally
manipulate or destroy these records. The Department of Justice would have no institutional reascn
to do so and, indeed, would lkely be more objective about maintaining their accuracy and integrity.
In my jixdgement, by its past actions and comtimuing efforts at trying to cover up its wrongdoings, the
BATF has forfeited any right to custody of the NFRTR.

When I was a student in the first Intergovernmental Relations class that the late, great, Barbara C.
Jordan teught in 1979 at the Lyndon B. Johnson School of Public Affeirs at the University of Texas
at Austin, she told us:

“Government by the people is not a spectator sport.”

Enough said, and 1 thank you all for the opportunity to present this information.

47-740 98 -2
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251 Napolilli Lane
Fairbanks, Alaska 99712

L19/98

Desr Chairman Burton,

My name is Noel Napolilli. I am & retired public school teacher of 28 years. I am writing
to you regarding the seizure of my German MP-40, by BATF, in 1993,

1 recently learned that my case was included in formal testimony last April before the
House Subcommittes on Treasury, Poatal Service and General Government
Appropriations. I also discovered that it was specifically brought to the attention of Ms.
Carol Bergen of the Treasury Department Office of Inspector General last October,
although she has not contacted me.

Therefore I will not go into the legalities regarding my case here. I believe that the facts
will speak for themselves. [ simply would ask for your help in encoursging BATF to
reten my  MP-40.

As you know, I sued BATF for the return of my MP-40 (serial 4212) when they refused to
retorm it to me after I had voluntarily sent it to them for review of the firearm and it's
regigtration paperwork (Form 3). 1 sent these to them because they questioned the fact that
the MP-40 was legally registered. Their laboratory analyeis determined that oy
paperwork was not a forgery, yet they still would pot retarn my firearm or acknowledge its
registration, becanse they had po record of it in their data base. In 1994, after many months
of litigation, [ dropped the suit against the advice of my councils. This was because my
wife and [ were fearfiil of BATF reprisals, the seizure of my sizable firearm collection,
being “black balled” in fistore transactions requiring BATF approval and being harassed by
constant “inspections”, There was substantial evidence that these things would likely occur
based on other incidents with which I was familiar. [ also had to consider that the cost of
continuing litigation against BATF was going to far exceed the valoe of the firearm
imvolved. 1was very upset about having to drop this case af the time. It became worse
gfter [ learned that BATF employees had destroyed other registration documents to avoid
having to work on them snd that their data base spproached a 50% error rate. 1 fieel that this
entire incident was onnecessary and cavalier on BATF s part.

1 would respectfully request your essistance in amyway you would be willing to provide.

Sincerely,
F oo e e
Moel Napolilli

(24
Chairmsn Orrin G. Hatch Committes on the Jodiciary
Chairmsn Jim Kolbe Subcommittee on Treasury, Postal Service and General Government



34

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALASKA AT FAIRBANKS

NOEL E. MAFPOLILLI,
Flaintiff,
v. CIVIL ACTION WO.
F83-0037 (JKB)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

COMPLAINT FOR RETURH
OF PROPERTY

T Tt Mt Wt Nt T T s

Dafendant.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Noel E. Mapclilli, by undersigned counsael, brings
the following complaint and for his cause of action alleges and
complaine as follows:

1. The plaintiff, Moal E. Napolilli, is a natural individual
and an adult eitizen of the State of Alaska and the United States
of America, residing at 251 Napolilli Lane, Fairbanks, Alaska
99712, within the jurisdiction of this Court.

2. The defendant, United States of America, is the national
sovereign and may be found within the jurisdiction of this Court.

3. This ie an action for the return of personal property of
the plaintiff wrongfully and illegally saized from the plaintiff by
the United States and wrongfully and illegally withheld by tha
United States from the plaintiff. The events and acts complained
of herein occurred in the State of Alaska and tharefore within the
jurisdiction of this Court.

4. The Court has jurisdiction over the parties to and the
subject matter of this action by wirtue of the provisions of
Sections 1331, 1346(a) (2), 1356, 2201 and 2463 of Title 28 of the
United States Code; Sections 5872(b) and 7323 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, Title 26 of the United States Code; Section
924 (d) {1) of Title 18 of the United States Code and Faderal Bule of
Criminal Procedure 41(e); and the Court's equitable and anomalous
jurisdiction.

5. Venue is proper in this judicial district by wvirtue of
the provisions of Secticons 1351 (b) and 1402 (a) (1) of Title 2B of
the United States Code.
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6. The plaintiff, Neal E. Hapolilli, is, and.at all times
pertinent to this complaint was, licensed by the Bureau of Alcohol,
Tobacco and Firearms of the United States Department of the
Treasury (hereafter "BATF"), an agency and instrumentality of the
dafendant United States of America, as a dealer in firearms, doing
business as Nap Armament, a sole proprietorship. He is, and at all
times pertinent to this complaint was, a BATF Class 3 Special
Occupational Taxpayer, that is, one who may engage in the purchase
and sale of machineguns and other firearms as defined by Section
5845 of the Hational Firearms Act of 1934, as amended, 26 U.S.C.
section 5845, Intarnal Revenua Code of 1986.

’ 7. On or about July 13, 1985, the plaintiff purchased from
a fedarally licensed Fairbanks, Alaska, firearms dealer a federally
registered MP-40 machinegun, caliber 9 millimeter, serial numbar
4212 (hereaftar "the firearm"), a World War II era Garman military
machinegun commonly but mistakenly referred to as a "Schmaisser.™

B. On or about August 26, 1985, the Wational Firearms Act
Branch of BATF in Washington, D.C., through its authorized
represantative Gary Bchaible, approved the tranafer of the firearm
from the sellar to the plaintiff by execution of the required BATF
Form 3, "Application for Tax-Exempt Transfer of Firearm and
Registration to Special (Occupational) Taxpayer."™

5, Following the official registration and transfer approval
described in paragraph 8, abowve, plaintiff took possession of the
firearm and remained in peaceful, uninterrupted and lawful
possession of it until on or about February 3, 1992, Plaintiff has
remained the sole and lawful owner of the firearm from July 13,
1985, through the date of filing of this complaint.

10. In September of 1991, BATF conducted a firearms dealar
compliance inspection of the plaintiff's business. The inspection
was satisfactory, with the excepticon that plaintiff had in his
possessaion four Wational Firearms Act firearms (including the MP-40
which is the subject of this action) which the BATF inspector's
inventory did not show as being registered to the plaintiff.

11. BATF was ultimately able to determina that its records
ware incorrect as to three of the four guestioned firearms, and
that those three were in fact lawfully registered to and properly
in the possession of the plaintiff. BATF was apparently unable to
determine from its own records however that the MP-40 was lawfully
registered to the plaintiff (or to anyone) .

12, In December 1591, plaintiff was reguested by the
National Firearms Act Branch of BATF in Washington, D.C., to



provide it with a copy of his Form 3 transfar and registration of
the fireaarm and the plaintiff did so.

13. BATF Forms 3 are required by Treasury Regulations to be
submitted in duplicate original. When the transfer and
registration is approved, one original Form 3 remains with BATF as
part of tha Naticnal Firearms Registration and Transfer Racord (26
U.5.C. section 5841(a)) and the second criginal is returned to the
transfaror for transmission with the firearm to tha transferee.
Tha transferee of a Mational Firearms Act firearm must retain
possession of the duplicate original Form 3 so long as the firearm
exists and is registered to him/her.

14. Confronted with a copy of an approved transfer and

registration form which it apparently could not find in its own

. records, BATF took tha position that the Form 3 must be a forgery.

BATF then demanded the original form from the plaintiff with the

axpressed intention of submitting it to a BATF laboratory analysis.

Plaintiff provided BATF with his original Form 3 as waell as the
firearm itself.

15. BATF's laboratory examination determined that the Form
3 was not altered or fabricated. The necessary implication of
BATF's laboratory examination result, and of its course of
behavior, is that BATF has lost or destroyed its own records of the
firearm's provenance which BATF is mandated by 26 U.S§.C. sectien
5841 {(a) to maintain.

16. BATF's lost or destroyed records would have consisted
under the Wational Firearms Act of one of the following:

(A} A Form 1, "Application to Make and Register a
Firearm" (non-commercial manufacture by an individual); or

(B) A Form 2, "Hotice of Firearms Manufactured or
Imported” (manufacture by a licensed manufacturer or importation by
a licensed importer); or

{C) A Form 6, "hApplication and Permit for Importation
of Firearms, Ammunition and Implements of War (not for use by
Mambars of the United States Armed Forcas)™ (importation by a
commarcial imperter); or

{D) A Form &, Part II, "Application and Permit for
Importation of Firearms, Amminition and Implements of War (for use
by Mambars of tha United States Armed Foroes) (importation by a
non-commarcial, U.5. sarvice-mambar importer); or
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(E) A Form 10, "Application for Registration of
Firsarms Acquired by Certain Governmental Entities™ (by a law
snforcement or military organizatien); or

(F) MAn IRS ([ATF) Form 4467, "Registration of Certain
Firesarms during HNovembar 1968" (registration of existing but
unregistered firearms during a thirty-day amnesty pericd in 1968) ;
ma wall as some combination of the following forms for aach
succaessive registration and transfer:

(G} A Form 3, "Application for Tax-Exempt Transfer of
Firearm and Registration to Special (Occupational) Taxpayer,™ (a
tax-axempt transfer between special cccupaticnal taxpayers, i.a.,
importers, dealers and manufacturers); and/or

{(H). A Form 4, "Application for Tax Faid Transfar
andRegistration of Firearm,™ (a tax-paid transfer to an individual
who is not an importer, manufacturer or dealer); and/for

(I}) A Form 5, "Application for Tax Exempt Tranafer and
Registration of a Firearm," (a transfer from a: decedent's estates
or a law enforcement organizations). In summary, the missing BATF
records would show the complete history of the firearm since its
manufacture or importation into the United States.

17. Undeterred by its inability to establish a forged
registration or to locate its own registration records, BATF
submitted the firearm to a technical examination and concludad that
tha firearm must have, at some undetermined tima in the past, by
parson or perscons unknown, been falsely registered by the original
registrant as "remanufactured,™ a category of registration whearaby
a firearm previcusly rendered legally inoperable is restored to
ocparating condition and registered or reregistered as an oparable
Hational Firearms Act firearm.

i8. BATF has no evidence the firearm in guestion was
originally registered as "remanufactured,™ or that it wvas otharwvise
registered improperly or unlawfully, and its determination to that
effect is arbitrary, capricious and without foundation in fact or
law, Moreover, BATF has lost or destroyed the original
registration records, which it is mandated by law to retain and
prasarve, and which would establish beyond any gquestion how the
firearm was originally registered.

19. Purchasers of registered Hational Firearms Act firearms,
such as the plaintiff, have no legal or practical means of
determining the pedigree of a registered firearm and are totally at
tha marcy of BATF's approval of the transfer application and
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registration (BATF Form 3, 4 or 5) by which the purchasars cbtain
authority to receive and possess the firearm. BATF refuses to
disclose to subsequent registrants the prior registration and
tranafer forms pertaining to any Mational Firearms Act firearm,
citing the taxpayer privacy provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code, 26 U.8.C. section 6103, Thus, purchasers/transfarees of
Hetional Firearms Act firearms are totally at the mercy of BATF's
competence and diligence, or lack thereof, in obtaining valid and
parmanant possession of a validly registered firearm, and in being
able to subsequently effect a legal transfaer of such firearm. By
their wvery nature, legally restricted and oftan of historical
significance, Mational Firearms Act firearme ordinarily are valued
at thousands of dollars aach.

20. BATF is barred by its own violation{s) of law in losing
or destroyving required records from challenging the original
registration of plaintiff's firearm and from drawing a single
negative inference of improper registration from several poasible
types of registration, all others of which would be lawful and
pPropear.

21. BATF is estopped from challenging the original
registration of plaintiff's firearm by virtue of the approvals of
the firearm's registration and transfer to the plaintiff, and to
plaintiff's predecessor owner(s) and registrant(s).

22. In or about March 1992 BATF advised the plaintiff that
it was refusing to return the firearm and that BATF intended to
administratively forfeit the firearm as "ocontraband. ™

23, bDespite repeated demands by the plaintiff, by counsel
for plaintiff, and by membars of Alaska's congressional delegation,
BATF has refused to return the firearm. BATF's refusal constitutes
an illegal seizure of tha firearm and a taking of plaintiff's
property withocut due process of law.

24. The United States is mandated by law to commence any
"action or procesding for the forfeiture of firearms ... within one
hundred and twenty days of such seizure." 18 U.5.C. section
924(d) (1). The retention of the firearm by the United States and
its failure to commance such a forfeiture action or proceeding is
a denial of due procass of law and an unconstitutional taking of
plaintiff's proparty. The United States has lost any jurisdiction
over the firearm which it might otherwise hawve had.
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WHEREFORE, the plaintiff requests the following relief:

1. A declaratory judgment that BATF's seizure of the firearm
and its refusal to return it are arbitrary, capricious and
unlawful.

2. A detarmination that the United States is estopped by its
conduct from determining that the firearm is not lawfully
registered and properly in the possession of the plaintiff.

3. A determination that the United States has wviclated the
provisions of the Firearm Owners' Protection Act of 1586, 18 U.8.C.
saction 924(d) (1}, and is barred from forfeiting the firearm.

4. An order requiring the United States to immediately
return tha firearm to the plaintiff.

5. An award of the plaintiff's costa, expenses and
reascnable attorney fees incurred in prosecuting this action.

6. A judgmant for such other and further relief as is just
and propar.

JAMESE H. JEFFRIES, IIT

3019 Lake Forest Drive
Greensboro, Worth Carclina 27408
Talaphona: (910) 282-6024

LYHNH E. LEVENGOOD

Downes, MacDonald & Levengood
1008 16th Avenua, Suite 200
Fairbanks, Alaska S5701
Telephona: (507) 452-5196
Counsal for Plaintiff
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Institutional

Perjury

By Jomes H. Jeffries, I

n October 18, 1995, Thomas A. Busey, then

Chief of the National Firearms Act Branch of the
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (hereafter
“BATF") made a vide_utapeii training presentation to
BATF Headquarters personnel duﬁné a roll call training
session. “Roll call training” is weekly or periodic in-
house training for BATF officials — a routine show-and-
tell whereby bureaucrats learn about each other's duties
and functions,

Busey's Matipnal Firessms Act Branch adminisiers the Mational Firesrms Aet
af 1934, the wmxation sad regulwory scheme governing machineguns, silencers,
shomharrelled rifles and shotgans, destructive devices, ete. 1n his capacity of
MHEA Braech Chief Busey wis the officlal cusiodian of the Mational Firearms
Regiswration and Transfer Record (bereafter “NFR&TR™) mandaied by 26
US.C. 5841,

Buz=y's presentation was anything bat normal, roaning or customary. In
describing the NFR&TR, Busey made the sianling revelation that officisls ander
his supervision roatingly perjune themselves when westifying in cour sbout the
accuracy of the NFRATR.

Every progecution and forfeitare sction broaght by the United States and
involving an allegedly unregisiersd NFA firearm reguires testimany ender asth
by a duly-authorized custodias of the NFR&TR that after a diligent search of the
afficial reconds of which hedshe i cusiodian, mo record of the registration of the

2B  voict - vOLES KO8 CCTOREE BE

E. firearm in question wes found {or was
1 fousmd bet showed a differest registramt

than the person being prosecuted)® An
aleermative method of proving the same
faots is by admission into evidence of &
certified copy usder official Tressury
Depariment seal of & similar writtes
declaration by the oustodisn * This is &
critical element of the governmen:®s
proaf and, accoeding o Busey, cocurred
BAO times in 1995 alone (presumably
Fiscal Year 1595),

Busey began his roll call presssmios
by acknowledging that "(wur first and
main responsibility is o meke accurale
enlries asd o mainiain scceracy of the

:E NFRTR...." Momeets later Busey
{  makes the astonishing statement tha

.. when we testify in courn, we
testify that the data base i 100 per-
cenl accurale. That's whal we iest-
Iy 1o, and we will always testify o
that. As you probably well know,
that mey not ba 100 percent true.

Busey then goes on for several min-
ules describing the Types of omons which
ereep into the NFR&TE and then
repeats his damning adeission:

S0 the information om the
T28,000 weapons thal are in the
data bage bhas o be 100 percemt
accarate. Like I 1old you before, we
westify i cown and, of course, our
cerifications vestily 1w that, voe,
when we're nol physically there o
testify, that we are 100 percent
accurate.

How bad was the error rate in the

i WFR&TRT Busey again:

.. when 1 first came in & year

R



age. Dur exror pale was between 45 snd 50 percem, so
you can imagine what the accuracy of the NFETR could
b2, il youar ermor rate”s 49 1o 50 percent.

Duses anyane recall the phirase, “Hey, clase enough for gov-
smmant work™?

Coasider this malter in its sarkest serms: & senior BATF
official becturing other sensor BATF officlals st BATF nation-
ummwmmmbc declares apenly and
without &g ot b ice that BATF offi-
mﬂ&qlﬂﬂmﬂh&dﬂﬂllﬂlmmhﬂ:
routinely perjuned themselves abowt the accuracy of official
jovemnmenst records in order o send gun-owning citizens o

criminal in deese cases?

siomach. Acting on tips from several BATF officials (there
mre Banesl men and women uau‘mrunl.mnlllﬁ'lﬂ.l
prompily Gled a Froedom of 1 iom Act’ d pre-
cisely describimg the Busey @ape. The first reaction was pre-
dictable. Afier reviewing the incriminating tape, BATF offi-
cinls discussed whether they could get away with destroying,
it Wiser hesds prevadled: cbvicusly any outsider who knew
of the wpe probably woubd lesm of it destnsction — and |
would bave. Or perhaps all e official shredders were on
lean o the While House.

Afer much tocing and froing with a dismayed

Deparument of Justice a transeript of the Busey lape was |

sest 10 me in February 1596, The Depanment of Justice
was dismoyed becamse the Busey thpe was clenrly Brady
material. Ewery defense lawyer-knows that wnder the
Supreme Court's 1963 decision in Brady v unninm{. T3
U5, 43, the povermment is nequined in all i

tions 10 provide the defense, in sdvance ol trial, wun any
evidence tending 1o show the defendant’s inmocence,
Failure to do so can result in dismissal of an indscoment,
reversal of & conviction, of other sanctions, Willful faihsre

prafessional misconduct, of even & crime.

cated every Matlonsl Firearms Act prosecution and forfeiure
in living memary, Warse yer, Busey was only the tip of the
iesherg, When the fog bad clesred Justice learned thar the
NFR&TR inaceuracy problem had been the sabject of imemal
BATF discussion since af beasi 1979, BATF's [files were
replete with minses of mestings, stalistical sudics, memo-

ramdla, comespondence, cic., admiring the problem. The only
humwwwummmwmé o

reveal it 1o anyone cusside the apency.”

lw#mmwmuﬂum«&m?
every NFA defendant in the country of the sinaation. [t did

this with & recent mass mailing by United Sines Aliomeys o
defense lawyers and defendants of relevant BATF documents,
including the Busey wranseripl.

Thee direct consequenses of tis instinstiosal perjury are just
now beginning o occwr. |n Newport News, VA, on May 21,

15594, Unized Simes Dismict Judge John A. MacKenzie, after |

reviewing the Busey transcrips, promptly dismissed five

mn‘mudmﬂlﬂu:ln;hhnb.lﬂh&rlhpﬁ-
of mack not regi d to him* LeaSare, a

Class Il NFA mnuflﬂu.rer had received BATF i
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approval for the five guns. bud then decided to woid the trans-
fers and keep the guns, a3 be wes legally permined o do. He
prampaly fased the voided Forms 3 to NFA Brasch.
BATF subsequently ralded LeaSure snd charged him with
|llcﬂlhr passessing the five NFA firearms which, according
the NFRATR, were regisiered io someone else. The gov-
mwlmﬂﬁhmhMLﬂSm:ﬂh
wvodded the transfers there was a 21-minuse call on his soll
records from his fax number to NFA Branch's fax number =
& @ time when he could have had no idea be would one day
be proseceted for contisming o possess the guns.  Rather, the

| prosecution produced NFA Branch firearms: specialist Jary
prison andior deprive them of their property. Just who is the |

Schaible to westify as cusiodizn of the NFRETR that the gov-

{ emment's official reconds did not show any voided transfers
All this was ipo brazen for eves some BATF officials i |

and therefore LeaSure was in illegal possession of the guns.”

In essence Schaible was testifying that “We can’t find an
official record asd therefore the defendant is guilty.™ Wihat
we now know is thal Schaible showld have sestified that “We
can’t find half our records — even when we know they'ne
there — and therefore we're nol suare il amyone is guilty.™

The povernment’s case was nol saded when Schaible was
Torced 1o adenit on cros-cusmination s reo NFA Branch
exuminers were recently trassfermed because they had been
caught shredding NFA regisurmion dotuments in order w
avoid Baving 1o work on them.™ Mote that they were “trami-
ferred.” Mot disciplined. MNed fired, Nea prosecuted. Mo
destroyed in place, Trassfeseed, Just wisd is the criminal in
theese cases’

It is too early to predict how many new trials, sppests and
habess corpas actioes will result from this affair, Also of
imponanct & the number of comvicted febons preseatly suffer-
ing legal dissbilies" from flewed firearms convictions and
what effect the Busey dischosures will have on their sinustion,
The indisect consequences of BATF s conduct will et be

t a0 resdily apparent bul ase poaennelly devastaing. Al soross
to produce Brady maerial cen constitute contempd of coan,

Disarict Judges, and other federml and local law enforcement

| officisls are going w leam what most defesse lawyers and
The Busey wpe was clearly exculpaory and clearly impli-

gun deaders have known for yesrs and what the afiermach of
Waco and Ruby Ridge starily iNustraed: BATF officers and
agents ke, dissemble and cover up om an instituticnalized
bwaks, These are not aberrations; they are an institurional
ethic, &n cogasizational way of life. Just who is the criminal
in these casesT

-n." 591-9457. Fax (915) mﬁas,
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Lawyers and defendants in NFA cases who have not
received the “Buosey” package from the United Stares
Anomey should be making prompt demands — both for the
package and for an explanation of why it was sot imely pro-
duced. [ am acting as an informal clearing house for these
maiters. Those lawyers or dealers with questions or prob-

lems, or with new information, involving the Busey phenome- |
nom, or it conlisming aftermath, are inviled o contact me ar '

(9100 I82-6024.
[T author i& a retired U.5. Depariment of Justice lawyer
andl & retared codonel i the Marine Corps Resorve practicing

firearmes luw in Greensbano, NC. He is a 1959 praduate of the |
University of Kentwcky amd a 1962 graduate of the UK |

Callege of Law, whers be was Note Editor of the Kenbacky

holds BATF i ménimum high regard.]

I Public Law Mo. 474, ch, 757, 48 S 12361240 (Act of
June 246, 1934), 26 US.C. 1132-11329; as amended by
Aot of April 10, 1936, ch, 169, 49 S 1192; & codified
by chap. T3, Act of Augest 16, 1534 (lmemal Revenue
Code of 1954), 684 S, 721-729; 8 amended by Public
Law Moo B3-839, Tale 11, 203, 72 St 1427, 1418 (Ac of
Sepeember 3, 1938k & amended by Pablic Law No, 85-
478, 1-3, 74 St 149 (Acs of Juse 1, 1960k as smended
by Public Law Mo, 90618, Tide I, 201, 82 Swe 1227-
1235 [Act of October 22, 1968); as amended by Public
Law Mo. 94-455, 90 Seaa. 1834 (Act of Ocaober 4, 1976k
2 amended by Public Law Mo, 99308, 109, 100 S

449, 460 (Act of May 1%, 1986); and as amended by |

Advasced

c - - t ! H

LA A AR NN RN ER. )]

Legal Asistants can become Board

Certified in Criminal Law through the

Tesas Board of Legal Specakization,

I articpation of the Beard Cortification e, an Advanced
Crimiral Law sevingr for Legal Assisants will be held in
Auntiey, Oictober 15-26, 1996

Topics irchude: Rules of Evidence, Search B Seipure, The Pienal
Code, jury Sdection, Stres/Case Maragement, DWW Ulpdate,
Jueride Law, Ditscowvery, ard Ethies

Sussn Rogers Cooper, a crimse rovelist will be Friday's feabored
speaker, Dir. Maithew Ferara, & chnical and foresaic pspehalo-
et wll b bt featured kepnote ipeaker on Saturday.

W you wendd Bt regatration nkrmation pleass contact:

Ekzabeth Elfots, Law Cfice of Diavid A, Sheppard
14 Emposition D-T10, Austin, Teas TETO3 OR
pho S12-4T8-3483, fax 5124715418 e-mait perByesgom

Public Law Mo, 100-203. 101 Star. 1330 (Act of
December 22, 1987); Internal Revense Code of 1986,
Title 26 United Simies Code, ch. 53, 26 US.C. 5801-5872
{Title 1 of the Gun Cosrol Act of 1968).
2 See Federal Rule of Crimimal Procadune 27 and Federal
Rule of Civil Procedare 44. Sé¢ also Rules BO3E),
SONBNT), SU2(1), (I} (4). and 1005 of the Federal Rudes
of Evidence.
Thid.
JUS.C. 55
The first rule of & buresscrat is “Never disiurb a body at
rest.™ The second, —IF | doa't do anything. | can't do any-
thing wrong." The third, “When in doubt, mumble.”

(R P

{6 United Saaies v. LeaSare, Criminal Mo. 4:95CRS4 (E.D.
Law Journal, He is an sssociate member of TCDLA and |

Wa.. Newport Mews Div. ).

E'.l' “Special Occupational Taxpayers™ under 26 US.C. 5801

fall mio one of three categories: Class [l dealers can pos-
sess, sell and transfer NPA firesrms; Class [ manufacbar-
s can. in addilion. manufacture and regisier tem: Class [
importers can, in addition to all the foregoing. import
them, All 50Ts are also requined 1o possess Federal
Firearms Licenses, which themselves come in six different
claszifications. Throw in the import and expost licenses
state and local licensing and registration schemes
imvolved, the mandatory requaredd. and the
mmmmmuﬂm
have 8 lawyer's parsdise.

B BATF Farms 3 are used 1o suthorize ux-cxempl dealer-to-
dealer wansfers and 10 re-regiser the: firearmis) involved
o the mansferee. There are numeroas ceher ransfer and
registration forms used depending upon tee narure of the
transection, the sinss of the panies isvolved, and the type
of firearm and itz origin.

| © Viclations of the MFA are all | Deyear, $10,000 felomies.

See X6 U.S.C. 5871. WFA firearms, which carry some
impressive sticker prices, are also forfieit if esed in any
wiclation of the NFA_ See 26 US/.C, 34T2,

10 We are lefi 1 conpecnare where the NFA, Branch sheedder
I locmed in relation 1o s fax machine.

L1 In additan so ehe boss of civil ights imposed on convicied
feloms by the laws of most sistes, felons permancntly bose
the right under federal law 1o possess fireasms, & well &3
being potentially debarred from service in the armed
fowrces, civil employment in govermment, receiving securi-
ty clearances, bidding on federal contracts, sic.

STAFF
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CHANLES T. CAMADY FAEF o Bnmee:
e e o e, G A
Seromr

i Congress of the Tnited States g e
COMETTIE 05 AGRICULTUAE Bouse of Bepresentatives

Wlnshingten, BE 205150012
March 11, 1938

121% £ Lake Rochelle Dr
Winter Haven, FL 33881-9646

Dear Mr. Smith:

Thank you for contacting me regarding an article a.]_'.l.aging
mismanagement, misconduct, and criminal wrongdoing by the Bureau
of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (BATF). I appreciate hearing
your views on this important issue. : :

Encloged is the BATF'S response to the article. I hope this
informarion is helpful to you.

Agp a member of the House Judiciary Committee (which has BATF
oversight jurisdictieon}, I will remember your concerns. Again,
thank you for caking the cime to contact my office, Plaase lat
me know whenever you have concerns regarding iesues befcre che

Congress. .

Sincerely yours,

Ckrn

Charles T. Canady
Member of Congress

CTC: jm

EncloBure
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DEFARTMEMNT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAL OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCD AND FIREARMSE
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20226

FEB 2 3 1998

DIRECTOR

B 26 10y

Honorable Charles T. Canady a5
U.5. House of Representatives
Washington, DC 2051%

Dear Mr, Canady:

This is in response to your November 13, 1997, reguest
concerning allegations made by My, Eric M. Larson of
mismanagement, misconduct and criminal wrongdoi by
the Bureau of Alcchol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF).

Mr. Larson's allegations were contained in tha
October 3, 1997 issue of "Gun Liet." We apologize for
the delay in responding to your request.

By way of background, Mr. Larson has been requesting
information on the H & B Handy Gun and the Marble Game
Getter firearwms since approximately 1%86 or 1587.

Mr. Larson has reguested that these firearms be removed
from the scope of the National Firearms Aot (NFA).
Whenever Mr. Larson has contacted ATF wich a guestion
or reguest, ATF has provided the aveilable information.
In May of 19%7, the Assistant Inspactor Genesral (IG]
for Inmvestigations, Department of the Treasury,
received a letter from Mr. Laraon making allegations
againet wariocus ATF employees. The IG's Cffice
forwarded the letter to the Director of ATF to conduct
an appropriate investigation into these allegations.
The article contained in *Gun Lisc" references these
allegaciona and suggests thar the IG's Office has acted
inappropriately in allewing ATF to investigate
allegations of misconduct made against the agency.

Initially, we would note that it is the function of
ATF's Office of Inspection to investigate allegations
of wrongdoing made against ATF employees and that it
wag entirely proper for the IG's Office to forward

Mr. Larson's letcer to ATF for investigation.
Furthermare, while ATF did conduct an ternal
investigation into the allegations made by Mr. Larson,
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e
Honorable Charles T. Canady

the IG's Office aleo initiated an independent
invntiguinn intcu ﬂ';“ nliwguian- and ;iut i
nvestigation is st ongoing. Due te this cngoing
investigation we are unnl:g: b comment further on any
action that might be taken with respect to the
allegations made by Mr. Larson.

We hope that this information proves helpful in
responding to your comstituent. Please let me know if
we can be of further assistance.

Sincerely yours,

et

John W, Magaw
Director
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How Firearm Registration
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fr., :”

Hil.

laties ol the NFAis s felony carrying a
10-year, $10,000 fine pacalty upon
ennviction.

MFA firenrma are controlled un-
dar Title IT of the Gun Contrel Act of
1868, and are said to heve oo leagiti-
‘mate sporting purpose. NFA firesrms
are often referred to as “Title IT™ fire-
armi. innal rifles, shoty
platals and revalvera, -Iw‘hmm.
-dﬂndhbtrpurungﬂmml.hﬂ-
Fewer legal restrictions
lndmmdlﬂund.-r'ﬂu.'[ﬂ'm
10658 Art

Ia 1934, & provision that would
birvr inchuded pistols and revolvars
ander the NPA fuiled to pas tha Con-
mh]-l..-nghm Fuor technieal

they were d od

Ladili, bt not o be pistols or re-
volvern) the Tressury Departmant

The NFA is designed to contral  rubed in 1534 that o small greup of un-
E.I'El.l.'mlﬂmbﬂbl-llﬂ}'-dh nroal or specialized firearms fiell m-

distribution, and ownership. B is & sowoth bore 410 HAR Handy-Gun,
“ Ferniy fidern] b b6 dionirige ilgully and varioue animal trep guos. Thay
i ware nol—aves in 1

%
Sounce: published in The Gun Jouwmal, Vol 7. No. 5, March 1998, pages 18-19, 78-79.

shotguna or
Nas l;n-p.ﬂllun aff thide ul.ﬂuﬂ u
make Any vip-

identified s “gangater weapons*
Most others, such as knife-pistols,
ri- wers chaolete long before 15904 amd
were designed mors a0 gimmicks or

thon ne flresrma. Al are
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cinpsified aa “Any Cther Weapon®™
TADW) usder the NFA. | eibisasis
that fewer than 17,000 still exiat to-
day. ADWs manuofsciured in the
United States in or befors 1934 ase
among the ravest of fGresrma, snd are
highly prized by collectors.

What some peopbs have told me
regarding their discovery of one of
thens AOWa (usually & Guss Gettar
or Handy-Gun}in the estate of » par-
enk or stber relative war distarbing.
Upasn attempting to transfer the

Om April 30, 1906, 1 testified be-
fore -the House Scbcommitiss om
Treasury, Poatsl Serviee and Geesesal
Covernment Approprintions, which
fiands the BATF. This opportusity ec-
eierred becaues the Colleciors Arms
Diealers Ansociation (CADA) ineluded
me s o witness, st the evitation of
its then-Pressdent, L. Richard Littls-
fiedd. - Td known INck sincs shout
1985

Dick was aware of my resasrch
mnd thowght it wes tme to make &
case for & more reasonshle reatment
of these puna, as the law provides. In-
deed, im 1838, 1945 and 1864, the

Congreas amended the NFA o pro- 1
of

probably eEnacais -
‘more resscuahle teatment for "Any  self In early Dotober 1897, the Honss
Onber Weapon® frearms which wwrs  Committs sm Guvarnment Reform
marfsctured in the United States bn  gnd
or before 1834, and (2) provide BATF  pendently audit the BATFs firsarm
with an opportanity to do the right registration practioss. Furthar infor-
thing, wmmﬂ =

agnin on April B, 1847, almost & year
later, bafore the same suboomenities,

vid fisr @ more bemient tr
many of these firearmes, and in 1960
unamimasly deelared that sll AOWs
were muinly *gadget-type end usiges
weapons, which are often sought after
by gan collectors,” and unlikely to be -

Under the Gun Contral Ast of
1968, the Congress provided that
BATF csald i

burve (1) destroyed fi egia tecnnbly mot allow machine
tion documents rather than work o8 gimniker firssrms i contime to be rag-
thamn; (2) iHigally registered nearly jmered o persons that the BATF has
2500 NFA fresrme after the 1988 sinted pre dend -
amnesty period expired; (3) since

woch firearmas froen the NFAifit detar-
mined they are moinly collector’s
items and are oot Hkely to be aed as
wanpond, Usder the 1968 provisios,
BATF may have administrativaly re-

wwner confroated BATF with regis- Comtinuad on page T8

i



tary of the Treasury, directing bim to
gomduct 8 120-doy review of *whether

Eeat,”
and bo sospend all imports of Ui
wuns during the 120-day period.

I am concurned about how the
BATF will wlti | palizi-

caase for 16 years, BATF field agents
took exactly the spposite poai-
tinn—dsapite the fact that no less &

old A Serr bsd roled that the 410
Cootender was not subject ls the
HNFA Mr SBerr made this raling in an
oifficial Memoranduwm dated February
11, 1989, which was diatribuied
thraisghout BATF, inchading all ATF

cal directives such as this one, be-
beruly that are designed to fire
410 shotgar ammunition. As [ will
show, there are important similari-
s wnd pobentinls for abuss of discre-

frem the NFA. Thers i oo cradible
avidanes that the
Handy-Gun would b
likely to be used us &

barrela are cifllad;

hewever, more lm-

chuice by criminals,
mingleshol 410 is & parfect small-
gamse or rodant un, end sot geod for
emuch b

15 & lotter to ma dated Jaly 20,

s with law

e temder is one of ot loast & deven differ-

Production of the 410 Contender
soon resamed. Today, the 410 Con-

w;ud.nﬂ:ut pilery
fi or

¥ 7

bilit

HMeverihaleas, on June 18, 1968,
HATF agunts Cscil Welfs snd Paul

portantly, pone have been identified rule the 410 Contender to be an NFA
f chei o A B

il they didnl stop masufac-
i Termi rara—y

) im today—the
wast majority tucked in & fAshing
tmckie box or hunting jacket tn take oo
& bunting or fishing trip, for use
aguinst snakes, vermin or small
gamse. | have found no credible evi-
demce that any of these guns are com-
meonly wsed in strest crimes, or that
Emmﬂﬁuﬁwhwﬁi—

Iz & 1981 pressastion, BATF ar-
fusd in federal court that it was le-
mully impossible for & firearm soch as

that n sswed -off sbotgun aed an AW
ars oot identical, and cannot be iden-

Laring P

Mr Wolfe said, and inatrusied:
“Whatever your story will be, plesss
refrain from giving the impreasson
that the ‘Contender’ is a firearm un-

theal ding t law and lagisl
history. Althoagh & sawed-off shet-
gum, & 410 HER Handy-Gan, and &

sawed off the barrel of & Rager 10-22




earbine to o length of 107, and fash-
ioned tia steck inko a pistol grip, would
wiolats the NFA if he or she did not
| pay & E200 tax o “malks” the Gresrms,
| == well as obtain advenss spproval

firing 10 rounds of 22 ablibsr mmams.
mition threagh a 107 barrel, and &=
oifcralibis on the parson.

It i clonr, however, that the Con- |

s, by requiring that s $200 tax be

Tegml T
Ihvunﬁdnnldﬂ--flml-
able, 10-ahot i

ally evary sporting fresrs in the
United States

Which being us to 1997, and the

of Modified &
Amaault-Type Rifles,” which was writ-
unmmammm

i o0 i B mrticle i the Jume 1906 js-  Seally

nnfm&nm-:dl-t
“The NFA is relevast bs any cib-
firearm—not

with a 107 barrel, such ss the Roger
E2 ealiber target pistol. =

Yet, under Mr. Magaw's logie,
BATF could eatlaw the Ruger 10-ahot
semisutomatic target pastol becasse
“there is no practical differencs be-
oween the two types of weapens in
terms of design and fasction ™ In this
example, the point i clesr and the =
llll:u":l- is much less amo

d no bess correct than in the
ezample involving an H&R Handy-
Gum. Ttinlegnliyvi for Mr. Ma-

zan wh Hporting

Just to pecgle who choose to own 8 gan
fog sslf-proteclion. The “nasaalt
weapon ban® has lots of ragulsiery

P
arw clusxified as Title | firearme. NFA
firearms—maching guna, and the
like—are classified as Tithe 01 fire
mrma. Under the Gun Contrel Act of
1968, firsarms that don't have a

" are d e be

clnssified under Title I1. 'l'hk:l.lﬂ:;l
believe there will be cootinoous diffi-
eulty over how so-called “ssanult

pona” are regulsted. And if past
histery is any guide, ATF will miasp=
ply the ke to indude sporting fire-
arma exempted from the han™

I my judgemsent, gun collectors
wre on the verge of facing the grav-
est—and, perbaps. the most bi-

were followsd, then BATF could
prebebly successfully outlaw virtu-

calbed "nmaault weapona” i the kaais
for making a decision ia *thelr sasan-

tial oparstionsl mechoniem™? It In|
ssems to me that “their sosential op-  resers degee.

March 1888 78
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published in Official R. L. Wilson Price Guide to Gun Cellecting. by R. L. Wilson. First
. Mew York: The Ballantine Publishing Group/Random House, Inc., 1008, pages 56-59.

Smeoothbore Pistols Firing
Shotgun Shells

BY ERIC M. LARSON

As rare American cultursl anifacts, cerain smoothbore pis-
ks originally mansfacised in the Unhed Simes in or
befiore: 1934 pcoapy 3 unique niche o U5, firearms hissory
and gescalogy, They wre highly prized by collectors, yet
still inappropriasely regulated sercily &8 machine gans by
the: Burcai ol Aleohod, Tobacco and Firesmms (ATF).
These guns were made when no fiedernl bows (and rels-
tivedy fiew stue lws) affecesd firesrms design. Whille & is e,
the most commonly encountered example is the 12V, -barre]
H&R Handy-Gun, designed o fre the 204" 410 shotgun shell.
It ks one of several smoothbore platols thar competed with
mﬂMGmﬁnstaAmm
firesrm with & folding shoulder mock thes was firm A

Adver debase, the bill was amended 1o remove pistols
and revolwers, ke pod other conceslable fircarms. Thus.
small firesrms not readily classifisble as waditional pistols
or revolvers (such a8 cane-gums, knife-pisols, and so fort)
b v b registered, Bun Comgress did not defime the 1erms
“pismol,” “revalver,” "rifle.” “shotgen,” or “say other weapon™
umder the original NFA i 1934, Consequently, ATF applied
the NFA using admdnisorative repalations.

When the original NFA became effective on July 26,
1934, alf mems defined a8 “firesrms™ had 1o be rogisiered,
amd there was & $200 tax on each ransfer of ownership. The
mm set 1o equal the cost (in 1934) of a new 45 caliber

| 190 A feor smoothbore pistols (such i the XM-gange [dhaca
Aun & Burglar Gon) were markesd as defessive wespons, bor
e were relatively low-powensd small-game o

S-nnlﬂ;nnpmnh.l.lh the H&R Handy-Gun are -

lated by the Mational Fi Act (NFA) of

Iﬂumw.lud:ﬁqnudmcmnulﬁmwmh
mainky wsed by criminals by reguirieg registation of the
firearms, and using profibitive mxes o reduce their mane-
fachure, distribution, and ownership. It is a barsh federal lew
0 discourage illegally masafacnening, selling, or possesxing
hand grensdes, machine guns, snd similsr wespons, snd the
cmting down of conventiosa) shotguns or rifles (regandless
of their caliber} to make concealable firearms.

Curiously, a5 passed in 1934, the NFA specifically
excluded “s pistol of revolver,” and sill does wnday. As
originally enscted, the NFA defined o “firearm™ as:

A shotgan or rifie having & barrel of less than eigh-
ieen inches in lengeh, or any other weapon, except
& pisiol or revolver, from which a shot is dis-
charged by an explosive if such weapon is capable
of being concealed om the person, o & machine
gum, and inclsdes o muffler or silencer fior amy
fresrmn whether of not sach firesrm B inchoded
weithisn the foregoing definduon,

Bul several ariginal versions af te bill thar svenvaslly
was enacted as the NFA included “a pistol, revolver .., or
any other firearm capabde of being concealed on the person™
within the dofimition of an NFA “firearm.” Under the NFA
as onginally proposed. pistols and revolvers would have
been regulsed as sirictly as machine gans.

Subenachine gue, wes deshgned o be prohibitive.
mmmm-m-mm
d s | b d ot 50 bee pristods? In 19026, the
m&mmmummm
Cran ws “mod & R0l o revolver wishin the mesning . . . snd
iinﬂ.ﬂuﬂ‘mnrbjaumm“-dﬂumlm
Act of 1906, The 1926 Act had exempeed rifles, shocguns, snd -
ammunition from s 10 percent firsarms excise tax enacied in
1918, bu, became of anti-handgun politics, d it fior pis-
udmm;tnmm&l—imh

amother smoothbore pisiol, alen was exempied).

The 1926 nafing resulesd from an sgition by the H&R
mnd Stevens manufactrers, who argeed thar these firearms
wese pseful o mappers, farmers, hunters, lumberjacks, and
‘others who worked camdoors, being relatively compact and less
bulicy than & firearm inended 10 be fired from the shoalder,

A circs 1928 HER advenisement states: “The ‘Handy-
Gua' is classified by the LS. Government a5 & shotgun ™
Other documentation of the H&R Handy-Gun's clessifics-
Son as a “shotgun™ has not been locsted. Imierestimgly,
HER catalogees from thal e state that ander the laws of
some states, any firearm with a barrel less than 12 inches in
lempth was defined as 2 pistol; « quently, the 12Ysinch
barrel cassed the H& R Handy-Gen o svoid being regelaisd
in those stales a5 a pisiol.

ATF determined that “since the mamefacmrer bad argued
succesiflly his point in 1926 that the H&R Handy-Gun
was nol a pistol, it was very easy for the Buress i 1934 1o
poind out .. . that the weapon could not be excepasd from
the definition of a firesrm as defined in . .. the Natonal
Ferearms Act . . . as being & pistol.” =Therefore,” ATF con-
cluded, " was easy™ o place the H&R Handy-Gun withis
the berm “firearm™ a5 being “any other weapon™ capable of

A
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being concealed on the person. ATF used this interpretation
ncbﬁﬂmmnwmm"
mﬁrmﬂhﬂmﬁnnﬂ;_ﬂmﬁ.lﬂ}l
Mﬁq&T.mw.ish“]mmIﬁlpkﬂ
grip. which fires a shot shell™ and Ruling 5.T. 779 i» a
forearm that is “a single shot, single trigger, and single
hammer gan with a pisiol grip, and is chambersd for shot
Ipade.™ The test, 5.T. T79 stases, “is not the length of the
h-nl.bﬂhhﬁ.hlrlhlmhwﬂhi:‘m
mdﬂll.lmhm
e 5200 fer o vastly ded thedr
value a8 lirearms, oo smoothbore pisiol that was manafac-
mwred im 1934 was ever regularly, commercially manufac-
fured gain, Recognizing that some of these firearms have
“legitimate uses,” Comgress meduced the $200 tax 1o 51 in
1938 for Marble's Game Gemer Gun. The Congress
declared: “The weapon w0 which the logislation refers may
e wtilizped edther &5 4 shotgun o as 4 rifle and has legitimate
wses.” ATF admimistratively removed the 18-inch barrel
variation from the NFA n 1939 because, “aiter reconsidera-
tion,” it was not deemed concealable 0o the person,
In 1545, the Congress exended the 51 wax mdoction w0
a simgle-shon smoothbore pissol with 4 barel at least 12
Imches in lengsh, This redection applied 1w the 410 and 28
gauge H&R Handy-Gun, 410 Swievens, and 410 Crescent
Cetified Shotgun, among others. Again Coagress spoke
definitively, and determined that these firearms “are pamicu-

larly useful o farms and ehewhere for exmermanstion of
vermin and predaiory anitals, sod i hentng aed rapping
activities where quick firing & close range is esscatial”™ The
nesd such low-powered, so-called small-game pans, and
against those who make and deal in them.”

In 1960, Comgress changed the transfer tax 4o 35 for all
MFA firearms classified as “any am: '-ﬂpu-" [which
inchaded all bihore pistols), 1g, that they wene
mdmnmdmlﬂﬂyhhnﬂu

WEMDOOS.
Under the Gun Control Act of 1968, Congress provided
that ATF could admimstratively remove any fresm (exoept a
mackine gun or destnactive device, sach as a kand mine or band
remade) Erom the NFA, if it determined that whe firearm is pri-
marily a collector’s item and is not Bkely w0 be used a5 a
wrapon. Since 1968, il appears thal ATF oay have removed
50,000 so 100,000, or mere, fnearms from the NEA as collec-
tors” ibemes; and that the i majocity of thess fireanmms were
shoulder-smocked pisiols of the Mauser and Loger wariety.
Fewer than 10,000 smoothbore pistols masafactared in o
before 1534 are estimated 10 have sarvived until 1997, omt of
an origizal production of less than 100000 (see takle). While
Marbile’s Game Getier Gun i oot & smootibhon pissal, it is
inluded in the isble because of it hissorical relevimon.
Madern rified-barvel pistols tha are designed to fire

Extimated
mamber
Eptimared  that e
Name ar fype of firearm oniplsal  rarvieed
and years of manfocwre production wail 197
Smeothibors Pistols
A0 bore HER Husdy-Gun
(19211934 . X1 ] A R
ﬂmlﬂﬂﬂﬁr-ﬂi
(1921-1934) . TP S0
ll{lﬁmﬂuﬁdm
(193219045 . iwe [RrE T | 400
A1 Sievesa m!ﬂn"ﬂ
“OHT Hand™ pistal (19231934 .. .... . 25000 2.500
20 gaupe Decfiance Anti-Bandst
L Tk 20 e ) A 300 ki)

Estimated Totsl Production of Smocthbors Plsinks and Marhle's Gams Gettar Gun Driginally Commencialby
Manuisctursd in e Oniied Statss in or Bafors 1934 by Years of Production, and the Estimated Nomber That
Hawe Survived Unell 1957, Stll Undar Purvisw of the National Firearms Aot of 1834, as Amanded

*Thene incheds ihe 2-gauge Remapios Combination Fisol-Shoggan. 410 Vicier Ejoster Poiol, M-gauge Knickerbocker Paiol, 410 or X-pauge
Mew Empue Adto & Burghs Gus. Marbls's Cimne Getisr 21042 Fiswol, aid oy thes wre wcarlopsd asd uslosron il tes e because of deir
extreme ity (oaly o few, if oy, may B e Thess do aob inciuds sneotiibors Pl rmeval oo the Naboasl Feresrm Act of 04, o
e kel by Ot Beareass of Adcobol Tobaooe i Firearm (A TF) & cofiscun’ e soder the Cen Consoll A7 of 1968,

2 gauge Ithaes Acto & Burglar

Grom, Mol A (1922-1938) ......00c00 500 50
20 gaupe Ithaca Aveo & Burglar

G, Miodel B (1925-19%) ...........2,000 00
All oabeer smoothboee pisiols

[cires |BET-I934)® ... 3,000 300
T 000 080
Marhle's Game Gattar Gun

244 smoothbore, Mndel 1908

(1508-1914) . H PR [ [ 11 1,000
lll'.lll:l_mmlﬂl

(1921-1342) . 1,000
TOTAL . V1080

o
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sbetgun shells are nor subject to the NFA, that is, no federa)
mpisiration with ATF or fax payment is required. The
peason is that the Congress specifically excmpied asy pisiol
with @ rifled barrel fnom the NFA in 1968, The pistols dis-
cussed in this research wene ongisally manufscuned with
amoutkbore barmels.

Al of the smoothbore pistols and other fircarms lised
below are Clasr [ fircarms unless specifically noted. If
they are not currcatly vegisiered with ATF. thelr sale,
tramsfier, or possession i illegal. Moreover, it is also Wegal
for amy person t0 borow of otherwise possess any NFA
firearm that is registensd 1o another persom, even if the regis-
iered owner I5 presenl.

Because smoothbon pistols ane st frequently bought
or sold, establishing reliable values can be difficult. The
cantly acconfing to local sepply and demand I ATF
removed these rare frearms from NEA controls, as it bas for
50,000 1o 100,000 or more shon-hareled Winct and

—

VaE t‘ld
Mew Emplre, anmwﬁnl‘!'ﬁ dhonabsle iy, %
Cllars {TL. Cuarie . N0 sy

CRESCENT-DAVIS ARMS CORP.
Norwich, Compecticor, o [930-X1; production i probebly
frwer than 4 000 receiver may be blusd, tiger-stripe or color cas.
hardened, left side srked Crescent Certified Shotgun/Crescen.
Diavis Arma Corp/Morwich, Cosn USA

mwm»«.mhnmlm'mhﬂ
Class M, Carir . L5 7]

Add 5200 1o $500 for origisal candboand box.
HARRINGTON & RICHARDSON ARMS CO.

Wemeesier, Massachusetts, 1921-34; wal preducton  sbog
000 B e 120" 410 or 28-geuge vingle barrel; more than 50

Marlin “trapper carbines” snd various Luger, Mauser, and
oiber shoulder-socked pistols and other mune frearms, their
walies would probably morease substancially.

Vi Exr.
CALIFORNIA ARMS CO.
San Jowr, Califorms, distribeied cincs §926 10 1930, bt masufsc-
wred by The Amervican Machine Compasy in 192627, 24"
shotgun of tear-gas shells only; tofal prodection was probably
fewer dhan 300, Model A bae 1295° barmly and & checkersd
Forcarss: Moded B bas 12" burvels snd 5 smooth foresrm; Model
IC bans 12" barrels and 3 amooth Feecarm.

Defismce Antl-Bandit Gom, 20 gaoge, 129"
o 121y doubls berrels,
e CTTH T

CRESCENT FIRE ARMS CO.

miorwich, Consscnoer Knickerbocker Pisiol, circa 1900s; sots] peo-
duction unimows, sickelplwed bamels. Toieer B cme-
hssdened, fight side sarked AMERICAN GUN COUNEW YORE
U5 A, left side marked KNICKERBOCKER, Smed with checkered
piztml grip resembling that of the Model | and Model 2 smoodshore
H&R Handy-Can; ¥icor Bjeceor, carcn (91830, (otal picdsction
eaknewn, kel side of seoeiver marked Yictor Ejecion’ Crescent Fare
Arma Co Morwich, Coen. UL5.A 410 on wop lefi of receiver near
tweech, hived burrel marked GoaneE smsony STEEL. 34" shells
oaly: and Mew Empine, cires 1932, bined barvels, left side of case-
colored receiver marked Crrcent Fire Arma CouMorwich, Cosn.
LS4, right side marked Mew Empim, probably fewer thas 50
mamefactured, four knoen specimens bear sorial sumbers 5-1.
513, 518 amed 5-1% pefiersed o 8 “Cresoent Auio & Burglar
Gun™ in a 1937 adwertisemest i Hunier Trapper Trader.

wmﬂlﬂ.ll doizde tarrrds,
Clazs i, Carir .

:

'I'Iullljnﬂuhﬁ..dlﬂbu'l.ll‘ single harrel,
Claas 1TV, Ciarier .

existy valoes below mssame choked 410 or unchoked
ZE-gaups with 129" barrel, case-hardened reoeiver marked HL&R.
HANDY-OUN, s grip and plain trigger puard; sarly medets
haee: blued morivers sndier uncholed bemels, lne models have
caoked barrels sndior book on trigper pesnd. Other valuss may b
extimaied scconding o soaiy in serial member table. wiich i o
work i progs Privase. d [e.g- marked
ESSEX GUN WORKS o HIBBARD MODEL W. HL) varistios
mnist; all hawe pickel-plated rereivers and hiued harrels.

o made

Ertimated

pearis)of  Observed serial number ranger
Varianos moaugacure 410 bore I8 gouge
a1
Typel 152022 16T no 4981 510 4577
Type Ol 152y 05T o 6588 5554 10 674
Type Il 193=24  unkmown io 817 673 0 TOET
SOEEL 2
Type 1 192415 i L4660 10539 w T3
Type T 1925-77 15159 1o 3ETEI nome obscreed
Type 0T 1997-30 Y060 md7SIR  4A22E o 4447
wobEL 3
Typel 13 47642 w 45218 esknooen io SE566
Type 153233 45819 o 31653 pone oharmved
Type [ 193334 SIS0 Ml moos cheerved
HER Humdy-Gom, 410 booe, 120" clasked
single barrel,
Clisd MY, Cavir .
Hllmnmlm‘ﬂ
ningle barrel,

Rare vartion oemeand premiums: £ barel, 29% o 50%; 187
harrel, 200 1 400%:; unchoked 410, 20% w 30%:; 2§ gauge or
Mol 3 (onily] with Esciory -cquipped ceiginal detschabie shoulder
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VG, Esc.
mock, 150% o more; Bolsier, $75-5200; serisl matching bos,
S150-5400;, early bones ie cxtremely mre.

TTHACA GUN CO.

lthaca, New York, 1923-34; Model A {sper on grip), 2V;" shells
oaly, sbout 1500 manufactuned, 1522-26; Model B (80 spur}, 27
shells, abour 2000 marofacnsed; vefissony ris: vaucs below
ascome M-gange, 107 double barpels.

Auts & Barglar Gua, Mods| &,
Clans [V, Carvr . SLIM 51500
A-I'I-.‘h'ﬁ-.lvlnﬂ!
Claay M, Cawis _ . e (-] foi

Dly L1 special onder of Boanandand (410 beee, 2R gpauge, and 16
pige, with basrels from 107 80 267 in lesyth) Auto & Burglar
Cmd bave been documented. All are extremely e, and com-
mand premiems of M or more; aotheE DO Mol
highly mcommended. Onpmal holsers (maked ALUTO AND
BURGLAR CUNMADE BY/ITHACA GUN COUTTHACA.
MUY, ) wre rare and weorth $ 3005500,

1. STEVENS ARMS CO.

Chicopes Fulls, Mussschusens, Off-Hasd froes 1923-29, exast
wotal producticon msknown, but probably sbom 23,000, Aulo-Shot
drom 192034, about 2,000 menulecnred

F-Hasd Shil Gus Na. 35, Mﬂm

B o 12Vy" winghe barrel.

Clazs [, Carip .. it 300
Auio-Shot No. 38, 410 bore, §° or

121" simgle barvel.

oy B Corly - oo onmomanes =0 50

MARELE ARMS 6 MFG. CO.
Cladsione. Michigan, sueccessor in 1911 1o Marble Safery Axe Co.
First moded from 1908=14, second model from 192147 el pro-
ducthon wis sboun 10,000 foer cach model)l The 18™ bame] vams-
tioas dre exempl from e NFA caly if an original dhoulder stock
ansched. In 1961, ATF ruled that if the shoulder siock is removed
from any Came Getmer. regardless of s barrel lexgth, i b

L3 Exr.
13" barrels, with shoulder siock amiached,

Carics, Enernpt from NFA . ....__. 51000 1600
Marble's Game Getter Giun, Moded 1521

12° or 15° barveks, with shoubder sinck attached,

Clans (T, Carles . _ 650 B0
Il’mwﬁmm-n-d.

Caries, Evempd from NFA . ....... 500 1,000

Beoned g with scorisores, sonslasderd calibers (25-20,
32-20. 3640, wic.) command presmiu of 50% o 200% or
small nomber of Model 1908 Game Genizrs were ofigizally mans-
Tarnered &6 over-and-ander double refles, with rifled barvels. ATF
roquires. ihese frcarms by be rogimered &8 ahorl-barmeied rifles,
with & 5200 tanafer m mate, i the barrels e s has 167 i
length and origimlly manufactured with @ shoulder stock. B the
shoulder siock is removed, ATF has ruled it 8o be & “firctrm made
froes & rifle,™ also requining registaton and & 5200 eesfer wx.

Miarble's Game Getter Pistal,

Mol T8 97 hasrels, 2044 s bore,

Clarsy [ Chardes FEETECET RARE
In dy 1913, Marble ) ;| dy small

mamber of pimods with barrels anging fom 5 w 18 a8 experi-
memsl and specisl-onder guns, msing the Model 1908 meceiver.
These firesrms are curreatly defined a8 “nny other wespsa™
ot be regimered; the trasafer tax is 5. Thow frearms say be
redisbly identified by dhe lack of =n kel i e moriver o sftach 5
shoulder wock. One known specimen bears serial pumber 5637,

REMINGTON ARMS CO.
Mess, Mew York, ¢ 18857-TX M0 gauge, snglcbol with mlling
hileck sction; may be wed i pidsl of dhotnin, mually eaosn-
tered with 3 detschable shoulder sinck and clasifiod o 3 “shon-
‘barrebed shoigun™ by ATF (3300 transfer tax} in thai configuration.
Whether it qualifies for the 33 wansfer @x if unacoompanied by u
shoulder Rock is uaclesr. 1 cannor be classified as & Curio becanse
il b oas Anfigus Bresrm masulscnsad befiore 1599, i B also &
Clazs [F KFA fircerm bocssic o fires Bued {cartridye) smminition
thil is cerently available in endinary commeres,

Bk Cash .

“a firearm masde from & shotgun™ Pequinsg regismation &S & shon-
barreled shotpen with & 5300 ranafes e fae

Plarble’s Gasse Cetler Gun, Moded 1908
127 o 157 barrela, with shoulder sock sttaced.

Ol M, Corber < ccoovcninncnnns o0 1300

a0 Plszed-Shwigue.
117 sl barrel,

Class BF .. ..cvvvnnnes RARE

Noir: The smther wishes 80 thank Mr. Larsos for his contribation
of e e in this section. For mon informaton on smoothbon:
pistols, br. Larson may be contaceed m PO, Box 3497, Takoma
Fark MDY 3091 3; lophone {301) T70-3450.
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B maTok e EEL (CAREGH ATTACED wEmiOn GF FORS IRET

4 ST R - g S
FEB 111969

| » pnaistant Aerional Cormissioner
Alechal, Tebuces and Flrearas

Horth-Atlantic Reglon

|
I
| Alechol, Tobacce and Firewrms Divisien

Hatienn]l Office CPyAT1EOrJOC

Classification of the Thompason/Centar "Contender® single shot pdstol.

g EhﬂmmfdﬂwﬂmthMnﬂm
Mm-bwdmhmdmuﬂauwmw%_w =,
m.hm.hhdﬂn R

mmmmmwmm-mtmw
"Contender® i3 mamufactured in various pistol and revolver calibsrs such
as JZZIR, 20, .22 Bormet; .22 Rom-Jot, .30 Specizl, .357 Magum,
<256 Minchoster Hapuam and pessibly more. The calibar of the g ocun ba

the k5 Long Colt or L0 = This barrel messures & 1315 inchos
end comtaina rifling (spiral lands and grooves). A 1 7/ inch choke
dovies attachsd to a 1 5/16 inch is added to the

mumm,m-nnwmmummmwu
the firearm.

nllmm#wmmmwﬂuw *Comtendar®
wan, and is, originally deslgned as a pistol sod ito configurotions con=
mumwmumwumnmumurmlﬂs.
Titls 26, C.F.R. A8 a ths *Contander® is not & firearm subject to
the Nstional Firearms Act os amended by Public Low $0-618.

“(Signed) Harold A, Serr

Bareld L. Serr
. . DMrector il ]
cC:  ALL REOTONS 7 : :
b ;a:'..;l.u..fnu _1;"21..-"59 N s : e
— | | o | G| COATE M“i.:cw v A
[ - -hl'l'..l.-r- I_ui_l'-. LEP g_":-:-;_ _;_J o H‘:‘}:‘f‘:’u /;-i,




56

REPORT OF TRIF TO THOMPSON/CENTER ARMS, ROCHESTER
NEW HAMPSHIRE, OH JUME 18, 1959
CP AT 1EO s FHW

June 18, 1969

it 1135 pom. on June 18, 1969, a meeting was held st the
Thompson/Center Arma, Route 11, Rochester, New Hampalire, 03857,
regerding the status of the “Contender® when equipped with the
.hﬂ.mauﬂumburcmmimmm.

In sttendance st this meeting were the followlng personss
w.:mmwm:tﬂ;m
h-.'lh:-'mm:'rfﬂm.
m.mmm:m:m_u :
H.leum:ummlnmm,m

H:mhdq nomnomn-,m
Wr. Pmal Westanberger = Natlonel D:Eﬂnn,m

m.mwmnmwmmwum_udt,
that being to reash a mrtual agreement with Thompson/Center Arms
nzn@g_#.ﬁﬂuﬂmﬂnmmmmnmmwm
barrel. I_lﬁ.‘b!:_!‘u_thm;mnnmﬂputmﬂmmtw
m:iﬂlum,mmmmmunmh,mdm:
ther citing the Congressional history surrounding the chain of events
in past years.

The fellowing reflescts an sccurate sumsary of the qusstions

posed by the attendees of thes Thompson/Center krmsi

Q. (¥r. Thompsen) Mﬂlhmmmﬂmdm

A, (Mr. Wolfe) Tuuupﬂﬂu-(l'.i Terminate production snd
IRS will live with the barrels already in existence or (2) IRS will

1_?_!!}5_1 hma_ﬁnlliug that tha I;E!.I..ln I:aml on tha *Dontmdw"
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caunes it to fall undesr ths purview of the HFA.

Q. (¥r. Custaffson) What is the IES position on shot shell
ammundtien and would this be applicabls?

A (Mr. Wostenberger) Shu'huhnllmtdmandshﬁ'bgmm:
nition wers defined.

Q. {Hr._ Thorpeen) This will put us oot of business.

A, (M-, Wolfa) Hot necessarily, Manufacture could conbinue
under the crbegory of an NFA weapon.

Qu {Mr. Custaffson) Would cur dlstribotors regquire Moensing?

A, {Mr, Wolfe) mnmmﬂrmntamdtrm:'ﬂ:
gquiremants wers shated. _

Q. (Mr. Oustaffson) Whet would cccur if the barrel was only
sold as sn socessery ltem?

A. (Mr, Welfe) Aspects of the individaal cencerned and the
mamufacturing tax lishility wers reviewed,

Q. (Mr. Center) Thompson/Center will load shotshells, brass or
otherwise, what than? : '

4. (Mr, Welfe) The "Contendsr® canmeot be oepabls of firing sxisting
shotgun amewnition, Shotshells of plstol calibers, if mamifsctured
w:mmmu,mammmmummumam
or plastis hnlls,

Q. (Mr, Center) What shout mamufacturing shotshells nsing
metellia rifls cartridgs casinga?

A, (Mr. Wolfs)} We would mssame the "Contendar® would retains=*
its platol configurgtion and that shetshells would be of & cartridge



|
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E
i

peculiar to pletols.

Q. (¥r. Thompeon) Iaﬁuﬂm’objnﬁm.hthm'
presently having several barrels chambered for rifle cartridges?

A. (Mr. Westenberger) Thers is no objection on the part of
IRS. (The "Contender” presesntly comes with twslve assorted barrels,
excluding special orders. The .22 Hornet, .22 Jet and .255 Winchester
Magnum are rifls cartridges adapted to the “Conbtendsr.™

Q. (¥r. Comter and Mr. Thompson) Resums of the "Contender®
pales snd purpose was offersd, Wouldn't the fact that the "Contender™
{.110) 18 used for sporting purposss be justificstion for ita
contirmed mamfscturs?

4, (M. Wolfs) Mo, mmmmmm-mw:
mnmmmmmﬂﬂwm.

At this point in the conference, Mr, Canmter demcnstrated the
interchangesbls barrel capability of the "Contender.® ﬂﬂnmrn:l.:
lowed by a tour of the entire Theepeen/Center Arms Manufacturing
facility, showing investment casting process, polishing, machining,
engraving, blusing, asseskbly and test firing facility. .

The conference was resomed as follows:
¥r, Wolfe repested the definition of "iny other wespom® from the Oun
Control Aot of 1968 and the definition of m "Pistol" from Seotion 179.35
of NHatlonal Flresrss Act Rsgulsticns.

) Q. (Mr. Center) The shot pattern of the "Comtendar® with the
«45/.410 barrel spletters; it's not effective. The rifling is standard
for the L5 caliber eartridge both in depth of the grooves snd rumber
of turns per barrel. Would this help? -
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&. (Mr. Westenberger) The rifling is approprlate but tha
firearm stdll chanbars a .L10 shotgun shall.

Q. (Mr. Thempson) Wo then can redesign to shoot shotshella.

A. (Mr. Wolfe) I'1l redefine what we would sanction, shot shells
being ssnotioned platol casings that were loaded or reloaded.

Q. (Mr. Wolfe) Purpess of choke on the "Contendar."”

Ao (Mr, Westerberger) It mmmmmwmam:nr:
barrel axis since the rifling causes it to splral and become leas
affective.

Q. (Mr. Oustaffson) I didn't get what you seld you'd sanction.
Fleass repeat 1t.

A. (M. Wolfe) We would condons a plstol wilech was designed to
tmgnmnﬁl.lﬂh aveilable ball ammmnition. If the asmmition was
metallic and peculiar to a plstcl and loaded with shot, the weapon
wadmtmmduthulﬂnlmnthuhw&mrﬂ.ﬂd-ﬂmot:
gun shalla pould not be fired. mmmmummn:
techmant was installed.

Q. (¥r. Westanberger) Could we have acwirate production figures
hdltumthmaoldj_.w.hlﬂbmmmmmmm#
fimished snd unfinished .L5/.L10 barrela?

A. (Mr. Oustaffson) Yes, I'1l mail thesm to you in & few deys.
Wo've sold sbout S000 guns, 2000 barrels and probably hawve 1000 barrals
in various stages of completion, ﬁl:lllnlumbmlnhr'm
tell him to stop manufacturs.
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Q. (Mr. Custaffeon) And what will be the status of the
weapons thet are out with L5/.L10 barrels?

A. (Mr. Wolfe) We'll live with thoss. I don't feel that the
purpose of the law 1s baing subwerted.

Q. (Mr. Thompson) This will cause a stir, Who can be blamad
for the sudden stop in production?

A (Mr. Wolfe) If you say the Government asied us to quit there

would be ropercussions and & question sbout the status of those in
existence. We would get heat although we'we had heat bafors. ia
Herry Trumsn seld, "If you can't stand the heat, get out of the
kdtchen." T might sdd that we have had inguiries in the past on the
rtatus of the "Contender." We have also had varicus memafacturing
agresments with industry in the past in similar typs situstions
mmlﬂﬁg_putmuﬂmW. Whatever your story wlll be,
please refrain from glving the impression that the "Golz‘hmd.lr"hll.
firearm under the NFA. I would recommend that you sdviss your
distributors that in order to aveld amy suggestion that the weapon
might coms under the controls of the Act, you decided to redesign the
wespon 60 it won't chambar commercial shotgpon ammndtion.

Q. (Mr. Thompson) Could we fight this?

&, (Mr, Wolfe) My candid opinion is that it would depend on wilsh
ocourt got the case.

Q. (¥, Thompson) What would be the steps if we fought 1t?

As (Mr. Wolfe) We would just issus a Revemus Buling snd then
um%nnnﬂw{%r“,mlﬂmﬂdmﬁhﬂr
got B restreining order. From there we would probsbly have a hearing
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to dlscuss the charasteristics af the firearm, the applicabls lews
and the regulstions, There would be appeals and finally a court
datarmination.

Q. (Mr. Custaffson) What would be the next step if it were
an NFA weapofi.

4e (Mr. Wolfs) Since the amesty pericd is over there could not
be registration. They would be contraband snd subject to ssisure.
The cwnsrs would be in viclstion. Thers could possibly be a regis-
t-r:timmetw.

Q. (Mr. Thompson) Would the court set this up?

As (M, Wolfe) The court would not control this sspect.

Q. (Mr. Cemtar) What affect would an 18" barrsl make on ths
*Comtandar?®

A.D_I:-.':rnt-.nbuw] Nons, Since thes "Contender” is not a
shoulder weapon,barrel lsngth would have no bearing. o

nmm«;,&.mmmwwﬂmm
tien of the .L5/.410 barrels and would undertske a redesign. They
eapressed apprecistion for the fact that we would allow them to dis-
pose in commros of the inventory of fimished and unfimished barrels

on hand. . .
A1l aspects of the meeting were cordial and no bellaef exists that
Thompoon,/Center Arms will not abide by . /

Faul H. bargar
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ADDENIAH: MEMIRANDUM OF PHONE CALL

Mr. Thompson phoned st 3:30 p.m. on June 19, 1969, to give a
progress report on the status of the "Contender.” He advised that
latters have been sent to mmmmmmmmwm:
ing has been stopped. He further stated that the T7/C facility had !
ZEFUhmhinaMkinTHimmntw. Ha further
steted that this figure was higher than the prevists estimate in
thrtﬂugdl.dnutnmhﬂnbmﬂ#ﬂﬂ.uhmhgﬂﬂuopn;
tions. Imthﬂ]b.wumnhﬂm

thet he would contact Mr. Thompson upon



DEPARTMEMNT OF THE TREASURY
BUREALU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20226

FIRECTOR

Jur 20 1994

CC-43,771 FE:TGF

Mr. Eric M. Larsom
Post Office Box 5497
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913

Dear Mr. Larson:

This is in response to your letters dated May 31, 1994, to
the Assistant Secretary (Enforcement); June 3, 1994, to the
Director, Bureau of Alechol, Tobacco and Firearms {(ATF);
and June 14, 19%4, to Secretary Bentsen, asking for
reconeideration of ATF's decision of March 23, 1992, denying
your request for removal of the Harrington and Richardson
Handygun (H & R Handygun) from the scope of the National
Firearms Act (NFA), 26 U.5.C. Chapter 53. In support of
your regqueat for reconsideration, you submitted several
articlea. In the paragraphs to follow, we have addressed
those portions of the articles which relate to your regquest
for removal.

Az you observed, one of the reasons for denying your
request was ATF's conclusion that the H & R Handygun is
aimilar in design and function to the sawed-off shotgun, a
popular crime weapon that has been the subject of numercus
Federal and State prosecutions. You contend that this
position conflicts with the Government's argument in a
United States district court case. In that case, the
Government correctly pointed out the legal distinctien in
the NFA between a weapon made from a shotgun (e g., a
sawed-off shotgun) and an "any other weapon® (g.g., an H & B
Handygun) . Specifically, a sawed-off shotgun falls within
the definition of *"weapon made from a shotgun® in 26 U.S5.C.
§ 5845(a) (2), while weapons such as the H & R Handygun are
within the definition of "any other weapon®" in 26 U.S.C,
§ 5845(e). From a legal standpoint, the difference is
significant since the tax imposed on the transfer of these
weapons is 5200 in the case of a weapon made from a shotgun
but ocnly $5 in the case of an "any other weapon.® However,
as we stated in our letter of March 23, 1992, there is no

i difference between the two types of weapons in -
terms of design and function. Therefore, we see no conflict
between the positions ATF has expressed with regard to these
WEAPONS .

47-740 98 -3



Mr. Eric M. Larson

You also assert that a sawed-off shotgun has been converted
from a shoulder fired weapon for the purpose of transforming
it into an cffensive weapon, while the Handygun was designed
as a sporting pistol which is used as a small game gun.
Again, you believe that this difference renders erronecus
ATF's conclusion that the design of the two weapons is
identical.

From a utilitarian perspective, the fact that the H & R
Handygun is capable of being concealed and of firing a

fixed shotgun shell makes it comparable in design to the
sawed-oft shotgun. The Handygun can be used as readily for
anti-personnel purposes as for hunting small game or
exterminating varmints. Furthermore, the fact that che

H & R Handygun utilizes a receiver that is identical in
mechanical design and function to various single shot

.410 gauge shotguns produced by H & R indicates ics
gimilarity to a sawed-off shotgun. Finally, that Congress
chogse to include both weapons within the NFA definition of
"firearm®” indicates that both should remain subiact to NFA
controls unless it is clearly established that they meet the
criteria for removal. As we have stated repeatedly, the
criteria have not been met in the case of the H & R Handygun
since we cannot conclude cthat it is not likely to be used as
a weapon.

In further support of your request, you have again asked us
to compare the H & R Handygun with the .45 Colt/410 gauge
Thompaon Contender pisteol, a firearm you believe is similarxr
to the H & R Handygun and which is distributed in commercial
channels free of WFA controls. Again, we fail to see the
basis for this comparison because the Contender pistol is
not a smooth bore shot pistel subject to the NFA.

You also aver chat ATF did not give adequace consideration
to the statements of certain third parties in support of
your reguest. The statements of third parties were
considered but do not persuade us thact H & R Handyguns would
not likely be used as weapons if removed from MFA controls.

Your most recent correspondence states that ATF has

not given fair and adequate consideration to your arguments
and has responded cryptically to your reguests for
reconsideration. Our records indicate that ATF has
corresponded with you 17 times concerning the H & R Handygun

&
x




Mr. Eric M. Larson

from 1987-19%3. With the exception of the letter dated
July 29, 1%93, which briefly restated the basis for denial
articulated in the March 23, 1992 letter, all of our letters
have responded to the issues you raised.

Finally, we request that you delete from your articles the
invitation to your readers to contact ATF for copies of
court documents. Since these documents are public records,
copiea should be obtained by contacting the courts.
For the foregoing reasons, our decision must stand.

Sincerely yours,

John W. Magaw
o7 4

Director



66

Table 1

Handguns with Rifled Barrels Designed to Fire 410 Shotgun Shell Ammunition

Currently Being Manufactured and Sold in the United States, by Name,
Caliber(s), Barrel Length{s), and 1996 Retail Price

Mame of handgun
price

American Derringer Model 1
{two-shot)

American Derringer Model 4
(two-shot)

American Derringer Model 6
(two-shot)

D-MAX Sidewinder Revolver
{6-shot)

FMJ Single-Barrel Derringer
FMI Double-Barrel Derringer

Thompson/Center Contender
(single-shot)

Thompson/Center Stainless
Contender (single-shot)

Thompson/Center

Stainless Super 14 (single-shot)

Thompson/Center

Stainless Super 16 (single-shot)

Thunder-Five
(E-shot revolver)

Caliber(s}  DBarrel length(s)

A5 Colt, 410 24"
45 Colt, 410 3"
45 Colt, 410 3°
and 4570

A5 Colt, 410 3°

A5 Colt, 410 2w

A5 Colt, 410 3"

A5 Colt, 410 3"

A5 Colt, 410 3"

A5 Colt, 410 3"

A5 Colt, 410 3"

A5 Colt, 410 3"
and 4670

g

4.1"

4.1

6.5" or 7.5"

4
iy

1"

10

14"

164"

1996

$320000

$387.50

ST50.00

§ T0.00
100,00
$22750

$485.00

$520,00

S550,00

Sources: Standard Cotalog of Firearms, by Ned Schwing and Herbert Houze, 6th
edition. Tola, Wisconsin: Krause Publications, 1996, p. 757; and Guns Iustrated, 28th
edition, by Harold Murtz (ed.). MNorthbrook, llinois: DBl Books, 1996, pp. 147, 151-152,

154,



DEPARTMEMNT OF THE TREASURY
BUREALU OF ALCOMDL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS
WASHINGTOM, DC 20226

JAN 2 g 1998 REFER TQ: L:IxAG
98-311

Mr. Eric Larson
P.0). Box 5497
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913

Dear Mr. Larson:

This iz in response 1o your Freedom of Information Act (FOLA) request for access to information
maintained by the Burean of Alcohol, Tobaceo and Firearms.

Your request for an administrative appeal dated December 26, 1997, in response to our leter
dated December 22, 1997, is being processed as an initial request, becanse in the interim a final
decision was made on the report you requested. Therefore, your request is granted in part. We
are releasing portions of the record that contains exempt information and are withholding
portions for the reasons indicated on the enclosed *Document Cover Sheet.” We were unable to
identify responsive records to items numbered two and three of your initial FOLA request dated
September 28, 1997, Item thres never materialized.

The fees associated with processing your FOLA request were not waived. Please submit your
check or money order on receipt, in the amount indicated on the enclosed invoice.

Insofar, as your request has been partially denied by deletions, and some records were not

located, you submit an administrative appeal by following the procedure outlined in Part 111 of
the enclosed form, and also state vour reasons if you believe the search was not adequate.

Sincerely yours,

LA ehedins

Averill P, Graham
Senior Disclosure Specialist
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DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

BUREALU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS

FOIA/PRIVACY ACT INVOICE

Date: 01/27/98 I Disclosure File Mumber: 98-311

| mvorce NUMBER: 98-46

Instructions to Payer

Send check or money order to "Burean of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms™, 1o the address shown
below, Please include a copy of the invoice with your payment.

To: {Payer) Mr. Eric Larson

From:

PLEASE PAY THIS AMOUNTS

P.O. Box 5497 Chief, Disclosure Division
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913 | Bureau of Alcohol, Tobaceo and Firearms
Room 8430
Washingron, DIC 20026
DESCRIFTION COST | EACH | QUANTITY OR TIME AMOUNT
Photocopies 515 Page | 51 pages $7.65
Review Time | 2894 |Per |4 hour $14.47
hour
Records Search $34.42 | Per 1 1/4 hour $43.03
hour
$65.15
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DOCUMENT COVER SHEET: EXEMPTIONS LIST AND APPEAL RIGHTS

PART HDocumsnd Cowsr Shet

1. Requesens Mame 2, Fibe Mumber k8 Ramuudduw_enum
Mc. Eric larsen 58311 M R
A, Dou.mmﬁ'ambdngmhﬂmd: 5. Package ends with document ¥: 6, Tots # of documenis denbed:
[gateost [ ]without cost =51- ==
7. Emempticons cited ko inl ior Blackened-sut on pages released: See Part || for explanation of exempbions)
[ 10 [ ] P [ 1) 4 [W]-Fe] 1 14 dl
[ 17 Ay [ Ime® - E1ein o 1 1k (7 [ 11007 46D 1 1 iR

[N Dunlmmmlehlrwﬁhdd:

Document # — Exemption Document # = Ex i (u + —
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DEFPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAL OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS
WABHINGTOM, DC 20136

DEC | 7 B850 EANAN
2146

MEMORANDUM TO:  ATF Specialist

FROM: Chief, Fircarms, Explosives and Arson
Services Driviss

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Clearance

1 have reviewed Office of Inspection (OI) Report of Investigation, number 70178-01,
dated October 22, 1997, and determined that disciplinary action is not warranted.

The report documents O1's investigation of allegations made against you and two
other Bureau employees by Mr. Eric M. Larson of Takoma Park, Maryland.

Mr. Larson sent a better to the Offics of the Assistant Inspector General (1G) for
Investigation, dated May 10, 1997. Later forwarded to Of, Mr. Larson's letter alleges
that you and the other Bureay employees committed the following offenses: 1) ATF
employess destroyed firearm registration documents that they were required by law o
maintain; 2) ATF employees registered approximately 2,500 uvnregistered National
Firearms Act (NFA) firearms without the proper authorization from Congress; 3) you
and another ATF employee perjured yourselves in two betters o Mr. Larson;

4) registration activiry that ATF classifies as “other™ could include registrations of
fircarms that ATF employess registered contrary o the law, and that ATF refused to
disclose the mature of this registration activity; and 5) thar a significant number of NFA
firearms were registered to persons who were decsased. However, the investigation
did not substantiate any of the allegations and | have found no evidence of any
wrongdoing on your part.

Therefore, [ am issuing this memorandum of clearance concerning the incident covered
in the above-referenced O report of investigation.

Walftéd A. Nelson



DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAL OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AMD FIREARME
WASHINGTOMN, DC 20228

DEC 1 7 1997 F-SD:WAN
2146

MEMOBANDUM TO:
Chicf, Firearms Technology Branch

FROM: Chief, Fircarms, Explosives and Arson
Services Division

SURJECT: Memorandum of Clearance

The Professional Review Board (PRE) has reviewed Office of Inspection (OI) Report of
Investigation, oumber 970178-02, dated October 22, 1997, and has determined that
disciplinary action is not warTanted.

The report documents O1's imvestigation of allegations made against you and two
other Bureau employess by Mr. Eric M. Larson of Takoma Park, Maryland.

Mr. Larson seat a leter to the Office of the Assistant Inspector General (1G) for
Investigation, dated May 10, 1997. Later forwanded o O, Mr. Larson's lener alleges
that you and the other Bureau employees committed the following offenses: 1) ATF
employess destroyed firearm registration documents that they were required by law to
maintain; Z) ATF employees registered approximately 2,500 unregisiered National
Firearms Act (NFA) firearms without the proper authorization from Congress; 3) you
and another ATF employes perjured yourselves in two leniers o Mr. Larson; 4)
registration activity that ATF classifies as “other™ could include registrations of
firearms -that ATF employess registered contrary 0 the law, and that ATF refused to
disclose the nature of this registration activity; and 5) that a significant number of NFA
firearms were registered to persons who were deceased, However, the investigation
did not substantiate any of the allegations and 1 have found po evidence of any
wrongdoing on your part.

Afier a careful review of the report, [ concur with the PRB. Therefore, [ am issuing
this memorandum of clearance concerning the incident covered in the above-
referenced O] report of investigation. -

Walfréd A. Nelson @
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREALU OF ALCQHOL, TORACCO AND FIREARMS
WASHINGTOMN, DE ZO226

AATL
OEC 1 7 Bt _ 2146

MEMORANDUM TO: .

FROM: Assistant Director, Alcohol and Tobacco

P . W‘,,,(zﬁ;

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Clearance

The Professional Review Board (PRE) has reviewed Office of Inspection (OT) Report of
Investigation, number 970178-03, dated October 22, 1997, and has determined that
disciplinary action is not warranted.

The report documents OT's investigation of allegations made against you and two
other Bureau employees by Mr, Eric M. Larson of Takoma Park, Maryland.

Mr. Larson sent a letter o the Office of the Assistant Inspector General (IG) for
Investigation, dated May 10, 1997, Later forwarded 1o O, Mr, Larson's letter alleges
that you and the other Burean employees committed the following offensss: 1) ATF
employess destroyed fircarm registration documents that they were required by law o
muaintain; Z) ATF employees registered approximately 2,500 unregistered National
Firearms Act (NFA) firearms without the proper authorization from Congress; 3) you
and another ATF employes perjured yourselves in two leters to Mr. Larson;

4) registration activity that ATF classifies as "other™ could include registrations of
firearms that ATF employess registered contrary to the law, and that ATF refused to
disclose the nature of this registration activity; and 5) that a significant number of NEA
firearms were registered to persons who were deceased. However, the investigation
did not substantiate any of the allegations and 1 hkave found o evidence of any
wrongdoing on your part.

After 2 careful review of the report, [ concur with the PRB. Therefore, [ am issuing
this memorandum of clesrance concerning the incident covered in the above-
referenced O report of investigation.

- ..r-:ﬁlh.-n--
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS
WASHINGTON, OC 20226

ODEC & |91

M:P:R:DEK: s5wW
2143

MEMORANDIM TO:
Assgistant Director, ARlcchol
and Tobacco

FROM: Chair, Professional Review Board

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Clearance for

The Professional Review Board (PRB) has reviewed Office
of Inspection Report of Investigation, number 970178-
03, dated October 22, 1997, and has concluded that a
memorandum of clearance is warranted for

Chief, Rewvenue Division. Accordingly, attached is the
memorandum to the employee for your signature.

HOTE: If you disagree with this action, or have any
questions about the PRB recommendation, please
feel free to contact me at 202-927-8555 prior to
signing the memorandum.

If you agree, please review, sign and date the memo,
and then issue it to the employee. The employee may
also be allowed to read the OI report should he ask te
do so. Please forward a copy of the signed, dated
memo, to:

+ Chief
Employee and Labor Relations Branch
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms
650 Massachusetts Awvenue, N.W., Room 4300
Washington, D.C. 20226

It is important that you send this memo as scon as
possible so that ELBE can close the case with the
Office of Inspection. You should also complete page 1
of the OI Report of Investigation (ATF Form B&0D.38,
Investigation Referral Memorandum), items 12 through
15, and return the OI Report to the Office of
Inspection.

2
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Should you hawve EL'H.I changes to the memo, please contact
your servicing employee relations specialist,
z at 202-927-8640.

Don E. Keith
Attachments
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DEFARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BURCAL OF ALCOHDL, TOBACCO AMND FIREARME
WARHINGTON, DE 20228

ocT 24 B

I:RJTH
270178

TO: Assistant Inspector General
for Investigations

FROM: Assistant Director
Inspection

EUBJECT: Himmg'mt and misconduct by ~
& and other unidentified
mlurm of the Bureau of Alcohol,
and Firearms. Case Number: 97-1-075=R

I refer to your memorandum dated June 5, 1997,
referring this matter for investigation.

The investigation has been coepleted and the report has
been given to - , Auditor, Chicago Office of
Inspector General, who is reviewing this issue for the
Treasury Office of Inspector General..

— RichhrA 4 \fiEsRKInson
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASUn T

BumEpsy OF ALCONDL; TORACCD AMD FIRCARMS
Report of Investigation

In May 1997, Raisa Oterc-cCesarie, Assistant Inspector General
(IG) for Investigations, received a letter alleging that
eaployess of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF),
Mational Firearms Act Branch, had acted erronecusly and without
congressional approval on five separate issues. The letter,
which was authored by Eric M. Larson of Takoma Park, Maryland,
requests the O0ffice of Inspector General to investigate the
alleged ATF violations. IG Otero-Cesario forwarded the letter to
the Director, ATF, who requested that the Office of Inspection
(CI}) investigate the allegations.

0I determined that the ATF employees referred to in the first
allegation as being suspected of destroying records were, in
fact, contract employees who were hired to assist in the backleg
of paperwork that resulted from an influx of registrations as per

- Depending on the year in question, if there was
an increase in any Wational Firearms Act (NFA) firearm
registrations, as alleged, this may have been an adjustment as a
result of a different form number or registration date for the
particular firearm.

To address the second allegation, ATF continued to register
weapons after 1971 because the backlog of paperwork that resulted
from the amnesty period was wvery large and filing the documents
required extra time. In addition, some individuals were granted
extra filing time if they were out of the country when the time
expired for filing.

Regarding Larson's third allegation, the truthful information
furnished te Larson by ~ and in their
raspective letters involwves a criminal case in Oregon
investigated by ATF. The suspect, John David Dudley, a multi-
convicted felon, dealt in narcotics and illegally possessed
firearms which included an H & R Handy Gun. Dudley was charged
and subsequently plead guilty in Federal court on Federal
firearms viclations. 7
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Larson's fourth allegation suggests that ATF is using the “other
gategory” to illegally register firearms. However, this category
is used when the computer program cannot recognize a non-standard
document that has been submitted for registration. For instance,
some registrations were actually filed in correspondence on
letterhead. If an ATF employee entering the information into the
computer enters a Form 3 as a Form 33, the program will assign
the document to the “other” column. The fact that the form is
antered in the "other” column does not mean that the firearm is
illegally registered.

In his fifth allegation, Larson states that some of the NFA
wespons registered may be registered to deceased persons. While
it is possible that, unknown to ATF, some NFA weapons may be
registered to deceased individuals, the integrity of the NFA is
incumbent upon the individuals who possess legally registered
firearms to report deaths and reregister the weapon.

o

In closing, Larson suggests two solutions to the problems he
cites in his allegations. His first recommendation is te remove
17,000 "any other weapons" listed under the HFA. Although
Congress did enable firearms classified as collectors' items to
be removed from the NFA, contrary to Larson's interpretation it
did not mandate their removal. Therefore, if an individual
weapon is suggested for removal, ATF will consider the particular
firearm on a case-by-case basis and determine if removal is
warranted.

Furthermore, 'to address Larson's second solution, if the original
registration of a firearm is misplaced, the owner needs only to
contact ATF to obtain another copy. Tiere is no need to re-
register, and there is no need to establish an amnesty period as

Larson suggests,
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CHEOHOLOGY OF INVESTIGATION

on June 10, 1997, the office of Inspection (0I) received a
memorandum from Raisa Otero-Cesario, Assistant Inspecter General
for Investigations (IG), that referred a letter alleging
misconduct by Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF)
employees. The complaint alleges that various employees of ATF
have destroyed (and may have illegally added) National Firearms
Registration and Transfer Records (NFRTR), have committed perjury
in letters of response to the complainant, and have been
negligent in removing firearms registered to deceased
individuals.

In his letter dated May 10, 1997, Eric M. Larson sets forth the
following allegations:

1. ATF employees have deliberately destroyed firearm
registration documents that they are required by law to
maintain, as noted in sworn testimony in 1996 by ATF
Special Agent In analyses of data
made public by ATF, I [Eric M. Larson] found that
during 1992 to 1996 ATF may have added 119 or more
firearms to the NFRTR which were originally registered
on Form 1 or Form 4467 during 1934 to 1571, for which
ATF lost or deliberately destroyed the original
records.

2. ATF employees registered almost 2,500 unregistered
NFA firearms on Form 4467 after December 1, 1968,
without proper authorization by the Congress. In
addition to not being authorized by the Congress, such
registrations were prohibited by the Supreme Court in
1971, yet it appears that ATF registered 172 or more
unregistered NFA firearms on Form 4467 after 1971. I
have included an example of one apparently illegal
post-December 1, 1968, Form 4467 registration in my
testimony.

3. ATF employees and
; " committed felony perjury in lettu.-a written to me
dated March 23, 1992, and July 29, 1993, respectively.
and each alleged I'_hat "an unlawful
trafficker in drugs with an extensive criminal record:
was in possession of a .410 bore H & R Handy-Gun "while
committing drug vielations.” This alleged instance of !
criminal conduct was used to deny my petition to remove
the H & R Handy-Gun from the NFA as a collector's item.
In fact, a Freedom of Information Act reguest disclosed
that the Handy-Gun was recovered from an acquaintance
of the trafficker, who said that the trafficker had
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given it to him for safe-keeping (see pages 212-215,
222=-230, and 233-236 of my 1996 testimony). Any person
who petitions for removal of a firearm from the NFA
must state the reasons under penalty of perjury. The
plain language of the statute at Title 26, U.5.C., §
5861(1) and § 5871 applies to any person who knowingly
makes or causes the making of a false entry on any
document regquired to be prepared as a result of
administering the WNFA, including the legal decision
regarding the classification of an NFA firearm. Both

: and deliberately falsified the facts
of the case they cited.

4, Certain "registration activity® that ATF classifies
as "OTHER" could include registrations of firearms that
one or more ATF employees registered contrary to law,
because ATF has refused to disclose the nature of this
"registration activity.” To the best of my knowledge,
I've never heard of any forms numbered other than 1, 2,
3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10 or 4467 being used to register or
transfer WNFA firearms. According to a letter to me
dated January 9, 1997, from NFA Branch Chief

. the "OTHER" category is "comprised of
registrations where the form number is different from
the other ones tabulated.® . however, has
declined to provide the names or numbers of these
forms. Coupled with the other evidence of registration
mismanagement I have documented, it appears that the
“OTHER" category may represent firearms that were
registered illegally, as noted in my 1997 testimony.

5. It appears that a significant number of NFA
firearms are currently registered to persons who are
deceased, and that ATF has been aware of this fact
since at least 1981 and done nothing about it, as noted
in my 1997 testimony. Conseguently, a significant
number of NFA firearms are now illegally possessed, in
some instances by persons who are unaware they are in.
violation of the law. The reason is that many firearms
classified as "Any Other Weapon” are rare collecteor's
items that many people do not consider weapons, as
noted in both my 1996 and 1997 testimonies.

(Exhibit 1, Larson letter)

on July 10, 1997, Special Agent (SA) 5 ; Office of
Innptction (0I), interviewed Office of Chief Counsel Attorney

ATF, who related the following facts:
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is currently employed by ATF, as an Associate
Chief Counssl in the Office of Chief Counsel in
Washington D.C. He is aware of an individual by the
name of Erlc Larson, whom he has spoken to and
corresponded with concerning issues related to
particular firearmse, specifically, the H & R Hn.ndy r.un
shotgun and the Marble Game Getter.

According to . Larson has been reguesting
information on the Handy Gun and the Marble Game Getter
since approximately 1986 or 1987. Larson has requested
that the H & R Handy Gun be removed from the National
Firearms Act (NFA) arguing that the firearm should only
be classified as a curic or relic subject to the 1568
Gun Control Act. has debated the issue with
Larson on numercus occasions, both verbally and in-
writing. Furthermore, whenever Larson has contacted
ATF with a question or request, ATF has provided the
information available.

Regarding Larson's first allegation, stated
that the conclusions Larson draws from s
testimony may be incorrect, and recommended that

be contacted for the correct response.

In response to the third allegation, stated
that neither ~ nor L perjured
themselves in their letters to Larson. The information
referred to in each letter, | letter dated March
23, 1992, and letter dated July 29, 1993) is
true and correct based on the facts at the time.
and of the Firearms Technology

Branch authored the letter for response. Larson
refers to a viclation of 26 USC 5861(1) and 5871 by

and . stated that he is unavare of
any violation in these two laws from correspondence
between or and Larson.

»

responded to Larson's fifth allegation, which
refers to inaccuracies in the NFRTR by explaining that
the NFRTR only reflects changes in the record when an
individual legally transfers and registers a previously
registered weapon. The HFRTR has no way of detectimg
how many times a firearm may have been transferred
between the years 1940 and 1968 unless the transfers
wvere recorded in the NFRTR. ~ ~ =tated that if
ATF were to allow pericdic amnesty pericds, as Larson
suggests, the NFA may be circumvented any number of
times by individuals in violation of the law. For
example, a person could obtain a firearm illegally and
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wait for the amnesty period to register the illegally
obtained firearm.

explained that when the original paperwork
for a registered firearm is lost, the owner mersly has
to contact ATF to obtain copies of the original. If a
firearm is already registered, there is no need to re-
register the firearm.

Regarding lLarson's first solution, explained
that ATF is not required to remove a firearm from the
HFA it determines that the firearm is not likely to ba
used as a weapon. ATF did not draw this conclusion
regarding the H & R Handy Gun. stated that
if Congress wants to remove the weapons from the NFA,
it has the authority to do so. In the late 1%50's or
early 1960'=s, Congress did lower the tax on the "any
other weapon® category from 5200 to $5. The category,
however, was not removed from the NFA. The H & R Handy
Gun has the same configuration as a sawed-off shotgun
and is readily concealable. This configuration makes
the firearm an unlikely candidate for removal from the
HFA. 5

states that Larson's second solution, that
the Secretary of the Treasury grant an amnesty periocd
as in 1968, is very unlikely to occur because ancther
amnesty period is not warranted. Moreover, a new
amnesty period could jeopardize pending investigations.
This would also be an opportunity for pecple to avoid
paying the tax to transfer the weapon. The 1968
amnesty was originally enacted to provide the public a
brief opportunity to comply with the NFA as amended
that year. The 1968 amnesty period served its purpose,
and there is no legitimate reason for another amnesty.

BA - presented with the above summary of his
statement, and stated under oath that the facts
contained in the summary are true and correct to the best of his
knowledge and belief.

On July 14, 1997, SA interviewed : at his
office in the WFA Branch. advised SA of the
following information:

. stated that he has been employed by ATF for
the past 25 years and has been assigned to the NFA
Branch for approximately 16 years.
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He is aware of an individual by the name of Eric Larson
and has spoken with Larson about statistics concerning
NFA weapons. states that Larson has been
vriting letters to ATF for many years regarding HFA
weapons, in particular the H & R Handy Gun.

In response to Larson's first allegation regarding
testimony in U.S. District Court,

made reference to certain documents being destroyed at

the WNFA Branch. . stated he made the comments
in reference to thousands of Title II firearms
manufactured by ag that were being
exported to various manufacturers were

forwarding the paperwork for these firearms. However,
not all of the paperwvork was entered properly into the
HFA system. It was suspected that some of the contract
employees had destroyed some of the documents in an
effort to reduce case load. ~ admits that
Larson may have construed from his testimony that ATF
employees were destroying documents, but this was not
the case. suggested that if there was an
increase in any WFA firearm registrations, it may have
resulted from the changes made to reflect different
form numbers being located and entered or from the
transposition of registration dates on the original
form. Such changes would have been added to the NFRTR.

then addressed the second allegation in the
letter, which concerns. the filing of the proper
paperwork for NFA firearms during the amnesty period
Congress enacted in 1968. He explained that the
backlog of paperwork received as a result of the
amnesty program back in 1968 was very large, and the
filing of these documents reguired extra time in order
to get the registrations docusented.  .In addition,
papervork was also received late, because certain
groups of individuals were granted an extended period
to file the paperwork. These individuals would have
been granted extensions if, for example they were
overseas when the amnesty pericd closed..

Regarding the fourth allegation, stated that
Larson is referring to the statistics maintained by the
NFA Branch. The “"other” category Larson refers to in
his letter i=s a category designated by the computer
program -that produces statistics when a standard form
number is not provided. For instance, -an individual
entering the information into the ATF computer may
enter a Form 3 as 33. This form would then be placed
in the "other” category. If an application for
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registration were received in correspondence on
letterhead, without a form number, this would also be
placed in the "other” category. The fact that the form
has been placed in the “other” category does not mean
the form cannot be located. All registration
correspondence is numbered and identified for proper

filing.

In response to the fifth allegation, - - Stated
that if a possessor of a legally registered NFA weapon
passes away and the beneficiary of the estate wants to
register that firearm in his or her name, ATF will do
whatever is necessary to assist that individual in
registering the firearm. The individual needs only to
contact the NFA Branch, and an ATF employee will assist

in any way.

assertd in response to Larson's first sclution
that ATF will not arbitrarily remove any firearms from
the NFA. Congress has the authority to do so and, if
Congress deems it necessary to remove some of these
firearms, it will do so.

In response to Larson's second solution, he stated that
ATF will provide anyone copies of registration forms
for documents that may have been misplaced or lost.
Another amnesty period has been discussed by Congress,
the White House, and ATF; however, the idea was
rejected because of pending investigations and other
issues related to the registration problems that may

arise.
S5A "~ provided with the above summary of his
statement, and stated under ocath that the facts

contained in the summary are true and correct to the best of his
knowledge and belief.

on July 21, 1997, SA interviewed _ . Chief of the
Industry Compliance Branch. -~ ¢ advised SA . that he has
spoken with Larson on the telephone concerning the removal of the
H & R Handy Gun. also advised SA ~ of the following
facts:

He was the Chief of the NFA Branch in 1986 and 1987 and
was unaware of any documents being destroyed by any ATF
employee. At that time, some paperwork was missing and
some contract employees hired by ATF were suspected of

misplacing ATF paperwork.
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stated that the Handy Gun has a configuration
similar to tha sawed-off or short-barreled shotgun. He
likewise statd that it is within the purview of
Congress to remove the firearm from the NFA.

Finally, also stated that when the paperwork for
a legally registered HWFA firearm is lost, the owner
need only contact ATF for coplies of the original. ATF
has the original documents, and a copy can be forwarded
to the legal owner.

Another amnesty peried for the registration of NFA
wveapons must be authorized by Congress and the
Secretary of the Treasury.

Sh presented with the above summary, and stated
under oath that the facts contained in the summary are true and
correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

(Exhibit 2, Letter from to Eric Larson dated July 29,
1993)
Oon July 31, 1997, SA contacted Eric Larson by telephone to

arrange an interview concerning his correspondence to the IG.
Over the telephone, Larson stated that MFA status of a firearm
known as the Game Getter put him over the edge on this issue, and
he felt that there should be one person in the United States that
stands up for what he believes in. Larson stated that he works
for the Government Accounting 0ffice (GAO) in the section that
audits ATF. Larson added that he is not involved in the audit of
ATF. He stated that he would like to meet with SA and he
would try to think of anything he may have forgotten to put in
his letter to the IG.

On August 1, 1997, SA interviewed s Chief of the

Firearms Technology Branch, ATF. stated that he has been

employed by ATF since November 1972 and knows of Eric Larson.
advised SA of the following:

The letter that Larson refers to was authored by ATF
Counsel from information obtained by

. Assistant Chief of the Firearms
Technolegy Branch.

~ stated that if Congress wants to change the law as
it pertains to some NFA weapons, he would have no
problem with it. Congress has the authority to amend
the law with respect to HFA weapons. If the law ware
changed, ATF would adhere to whatewver change was made.
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He added that ATF would help, in any way possible, an
individual obtain proper paperwork [or NFR

registration.
{Exhibit 3, Letter from to Eric Larson dated March
21, 1192)
on hugust 1, 1997, S5A interviewed ; Chief of

the Firearms and Explesives Regulatery Section, ATF.

informed that he has been employed by ATF for the past 25 years

and has been in his current position since January 1996.

stated that he knows of an individual by the name of Eric Larson
and has written a response letter to Larson. advised SA

= of the following:

With regard to Larson's fifth allegation, if the
relatives of a deceased person notify ATF about the
death of a firearm owner and wish to reregister the
firearm, ATF will help, in any way it can, to
facilitate the registration process. However, the only
way ATF would be aware of someone's passing away is if
the family of the deceased advised ATF.

In response to Larson's first solution, is not
aware that ATF can legally remove NFA firearms without
the approval of the Congress.

In response to Larson's second solution, ATF does not |
have the autherity to establish a 90-day waiting
period. If the original copy of the NFA registratiom
iz lost, the owner of the firearm need only contact ATF
and a copy will be provided.

5h provided with the previous summary, and
stated under ocath that the facts contained in the summary are
true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief.

on August 1, 1997, SA interviewed « Chiaf of
the Hational Firearms Act Branch, ATF. stated that she
has been employed by ATF for 11 years and has been in her current
position since March 1996, She knows of an individual by the
name of Eric Larson and has had corresponded with him.

advised SA of the following:

In reference to Larson‘'s first allegation,

stated that she is unaware of any eriginal documents
being destroyed by any ATF employees. The testimony
given in U.5. District Court by _ concernad
contract employees hired by ATF who were suspected of
destroying or misplacing ATF documents. Such activity
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iz by no means recent and occurred well over & years
ago.

Regarding Larson's fourth allegation, the "other”
category of registrations is used to capture non-
standard documents. For instance, if a Form 3 is
entered as a Form 31, the computer software would
avtomatically place the form in the "other® column. If
an individopal files a registration on correspondence
with letterhead, the entry ie alec entered as "other.”
Furthermore, if errors are located, they are corrected.

Concerning Larson's fifth allegation, if heirs or
executors of estates of deceased individuals wish to
transfer legally registered firearms to themselves,
they wust contact ATF. ATF will conduct a query for
the individual and the particular firearm and advise
the individual of the procedure to register. If an
executor finds a firearm that is not registered, ATF
will advise of abandonment procedures for the weapon.

stated that family of the deceased go
through enough without having to worry about firearms
they were unaware of.

In response to Larson's first solution, Levine stated
that ATF should not make a blanket removal of some
17,000 firearms classified as “any other weapons.” She |
suggested that some of these weapons may be looked at {
on a case-by-case basis and examined individually for |
removal from the HFA.

Regarding Larson's second solution, copies of lost I
registrations are requested by registered owners and i
the requests are respornded to. There would be no

reason for another amnesty period, as it would serve no

purpose.

4. provided with the previcus summary, and
stated under cath that the facts contained in the summary are
true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief.

(Exhibit 4, Letter from to Eric Larson dated

January 9, 1997) i

Oon August 1, 1997, Shs and . 0I, met with

Eric Larson and his attorney, . Larson stated the |
following:

He had nothing to add to his allegations, and he felt i
he had filed everything that pertained to the issue.
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He stated that he received the case information
referred to in his third allegation through the Freedom
of Information Act. This was the only case pertaining
to the issue that he had received, and he felt that ATF
had no other cases pertaining to the misuse of the H &
R Handy Gun.

Oon August 5, 1997, SA interviewed
Assistant Ehilf n:l' the Firearms Technology Branch, who hnu been
employed with ATF since 1973. stated the following:

Bh

He knows of Eric Larson and has supplied information
about the H & R Handy Gun to the Office of Chief
Counsel for responses to Larson's inguiries. The case
cited by Larson refers to a case from the Portland,
Oregon, Post of Duty in which an H & R Handy Gun with a
metal cannabi= leaf tacked onto the stock was seized
during an investigation. The firearm was taken into
custody from an acqguaintance of an individual by the
name of John D. Dudley. The case included a Title 26
charge and a felon-in-possession charge. Dudley,
however, was not charged with possession of the firearm
in guestion.

There are numeérous cases across the United States
irwul‘.’ing the criminal possession of an H & R

Gun. cited three other investigations that he
is aware of that took place between 1990 and 1992.

This does not preclude the possibility that other
investigations may have been going on that was
unaware of. The fact that only one was presented to
Larson under his Freedom of Information request does
not mean that there were no other investigations of
this sort taking place or that no cases had been
adjudicated prior to Larson's reguest.

presented with the previous summary, and
stated under cath that the facts contained in the

summary are true and correct to the best of his knowledge and
belief.

Oon hugust 5, 1997, SA telephoned SA of the
Fortland, Oregon, Field Dffice about defendant John Dudley. SA

stated the following:

He investigated a previously cenvicted felon by the
name of John David Dudley of Jacksonville, Oregon, in
1990. Dudley was suspected of methamphetamine
trafficking, possession of stolen property, and being a
felon in possession of firearms.
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was contacted by a local task force concerning
Dudley after Dudley was stopped on a traffic vielation
and found to be in possession of an unregistered pen
gun and a Browning 9mm handgun. Shortly thereafter, a
State search warrant was executed nt the residence of
cne of Dudley's assoclates, ~ Recovered
from 3 were 27 firearms, including an H & R Handy
Gun, which, along with all of the other firearms
located, allegedly belonged to Dudley. advised
authorities that Dudley reguested that 1 keep the
firearms at his residence. Dudley was taken
into custedy, and presented the casze to the
U.8. Attorney's Office for prosecution. The Assistant
United States Attorney (AUSA) handling the case decided
to indict Dudley on possession of the two firearms
found during the traffic stop. The AUSA decided not to
indict Dudley for the other 27 firearms that were
recovered from . Dudley was indicted for
violations of 18 U.5.C. 922(g) (1) and Title 26 S861(d).
Dudley was subsequently sentenced in July 1991 to &0
months imprisonment followed by 36 months supervision.

(Exhibit 5, Copy of ATF Form 1270.1 reference IN #93360-20-4058
8.}
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

Letter from Eric Larson Takoma Park, Maryland, to Inspector
General Valerie Lau, dated May 10, 19%7.

Letter from ~ Chief of the Firearms and
Explosives Division, to Eric Larson, dated July 29, 1993.
Letter from ¢ Chief of the Firearms Technology

Branch, to Eric Larson dated March 23, 1992.

Letter from Chief of the National Firearms
Act Branch to Eric Larson, dated Januwary 9, 1997.

Copy of ATF Form 3270.1 regarding John David Dudley,
investigation #93360-90-4058 5 from Portland, Oregon, Field

Office.
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May 10, 1997

Ms. Valerie Lau, Inspector General

Office of the Inspector General

Department of the Treasury

1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Room 2412
Washington, D.C. 20220

Dear General:

I am writing to call your attention to, and provide specific documented valid and reliahle
evidence of, what appear to me to be serious instances of mismanagement, misconduct and
illegality by employees of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF) in
administering our Nation's federal pun control laws. [ have presented this evidence in
testimony to the House Appropriations Subcommittee on April 30, 1996, and on April 8,
1997.% I have enclosed a copy of my 1997 testimony for your convenience of reference,
All of these instances of apparent mismanagement, misconduct and illegality involve the
Mational Firearms Act (NFA) of 1934, as amended, which is a statute that falls under the Tax
Code of 1986, and thus involves taxpayer information. Taxpayer information is secret under
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules and the law, but under court rules and criminal case
law, prosecutors are required to disclose any information that could be used to impeach a
government witmess., Consequently, the instances | have identified here appear to affect
certain types of prosecutions for alleged violations of the NFA, and in particular the alleged
nonregistration of NFA firearms.

Based on my 1996 and 1997 testimonies, it appears that one or more ATF employees have,
in the course of their official duties, committed a number of serious acts which are contrary

"Statement of "Curio or Relic’ Firearms Manufactured in or Before 1934 Which Are Also
Classified in the 'Any Other Weapon® Category Under the National Firearms Act (NFA) of
1934, as Amended,” by Erde M. Larson, in Treasury, Postal Service, and General
Government Appropriations for Fiscal Year 1597, Part 5. Testimony of Members of
Congress and Other Interested Individuals and Organizations. Hearings Before a
Subcommittee of the Committee on Appropriations, House of Hepresentatives, 104th
Congress, 2nd Session. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1996, pages 37-
274.

‘Slﬂzmmtmhupmedﬂemmﬂufﬁumhmmmshhnuﬁmmdhﬂww_mh
or Before 1934 from Purview of the National Firearms Act (NFA) of 1934, as Amended, and
Their Reclassification as ‘Firearms’ as Defined in Titde 18, U.5.C., Chapter 44," and "Errors
in the National Firearms Registration and Transfer Record: A New Amnesty Perod May be
Required to Correct Them ™ 2 @
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o law. Consquently, [ would like to respectfully ask you to consider conducting a criminal
Investigation of a number of specific instances where it appears that ATF employees have
violated the law. From the nature of these possible violations, it appears that it may be
desirable for you to consider conducting a forensic audit of the Natonal Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record (WFRTR), as these data may have been illegally created or
altered. It may also be necessary to have such a forensic audit conducted by an entity which
Is totally independent from ATF, to avoid any conflict of interest that would obviously result
from allowing ATF to investigate itself.

These specific alleged acts are as follows:

1. ATF employees have deliberately destroyed original firearm registration documents that
they are required by law to maintain, as noted in swormn testimony in 1986 by ATF Special
Agent Gary M. Schaible® In analyses of data made public by ATF, [ found that during 1992
to 1986, ATF may have added 119 or more firearms to the NFRTRE which were originally
registered on Form 1 or Form 4467 during 1934 to 1971, thuch&TFImtnrdeﬂbm
destroyed the original records.

2. ATF employees registered almost 2 500 unregistered NFA firearms on Form 4467 after
December 1, 1968, without proper authorization by the Congress. In addition to not being
authorized by the Congress, such registrations were prohibited by the Supreme Court in 1971,
vet it appears that ATF registered lmmmmﬁemdmnﬁmamsml‘ommm
1571. Thave included an example of one apparently illegal post-December 1, 1968, Form 4467
registration in my 1997 testimony.

3. ATF employees Edward M. Owen, Jr. and Terry L. Cates committed felony perjury in
letters written to me dated March 23, 1902, and July 28, 1983, respectively. Mr. Owen and
Mr. Cates each alleged that "an unlawful trafficker in drugs with an extensive criminal
record” was in possession of a .410 bore H&R Handy-Gun “while committing drug violations.®
This alleged instance of eriminal conduct was used to deny my petition to remove the HE&R
Handy-Gun from the NFA as a collector's item. In fact, 3 Freedom of Information Act
request disclosed that the Handy-Gun was recovered from an acquaintance of the trafficker,
who said that the tafficker had given it to him for safe-keeping (see pages 212-215, 222-230,
and 233-236 of my 1996 testimony). Any person who petitions for removal of a firearm from
the NFA must state the reasons under penalty of pegury. The plain language of the statute
at Titde 26, US.C., § B361(I) and § 5871 applies to any person who knowingly makes or-
causes the making of a false entry on any document required to be prepared as a result of

-

*United States vs. John Daniel LeaSure, Criminal No. 4;95:3&64, Newport New|, Virginia,
May 21, 1996. Transcript of Proceedings before the Honorable John A. Mackenzie, United
States District Judge. muaswmmmbmma?mﬂmum
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administering the NFA, including a legal decision regarding the classification of an NFA
firearm. Both Mr. Owen and Mr. Cates deliberately falsified the facts of the case they cited,

4. Gertam'mgﬁ:rahun actvity” that ATF classifies as "OTHER" could include registrations
of firearms that one or more ATF employess registered contrary to law, because ATF has
refused to disclose the nature of this *registration activity.” To the best of my kmowledge,
[ve never heard of any forms numbered other than 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10 or 4467 being used
to register or transfer NFA firearms. According to a letter to me dated January 8, 1997, from
NFA Branch Chief Nereida W. Levine, the "OTHER" category is "comprised of registrations
where the form number is different from the other ones tabulated.” Ms. Levine, however, has
declined to provide the names or numbers of these forms. Coupled with the other evidence
of registration mismanagement [ have documented, it appears that the "OTHER® category may
represent firearms that were registered illegally, as noted in my 1997 testimony.

5. It appears that a significant number of NFA firearms are currently registered to persons
who are deceased, and that ATF has been aware of this fact since at least 1981 and done
nothing about it, as noted in my 1997 testimony. Consequently, a significant number of NFA
firearms are now illegally possessed, in some instances by persons who are unaware they are
in violation of the law. The reason is that many firearms classified as "Any Other Weapon®
are rare collector's items that many people do not consider weapons, as noted in both my
1996 and 1997 testimonies.

ATF's most recent data (as of December 31, 1996) disclose that of the 14,260 firearms
registered during 1934 to 1930, exactly 11,175 (78.4 percent) are stll currently owned by the
person or government entity that registered or acquired it during that same time period. And
of the 58,904 firearms registered in 1968, a stunning 85.4 percent are still owned as of 1996
by the same persons who registered or received them by transfer in 1968, Consider that in
1981, an internal ATF study reported:

We have the condition where people who registered firearms under the original
National Firearms Act at age 65 would now be 112 years old. We lmow that these
people are dead and their heirs have not taken the necessary steps to contact us 50
that the involuntary transfer created by the registrant's death can be formalized.*

One result of ATF's negligence is that some persons who own certain rare, valuable firearms
that have special value to collectors have been instantly transformed into criminals. The
reason is that through natural disasters (such as the recent floods in North Dakota, house
fires, and similar tragic events), the owners of these firearms have lost their copies of the
documents which prove their lawful ownership, and the taw does not allow these firearms

i

*"Status Report: National Firearms Registration and Transfer Record (NFRTR),” by Deron A
Dobbs. Internal ATF report dgt.ed July 1, 1981, @

3
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to be voluntarily re-registered. [ believe there are two possible solutions to this problem, and
neither requires legisiation ‘The reason is that each solution may be achieved by
administrative action on the part of ATF. These solutions are:

1. Administratively removing approximately 17,000 "curio or relic® firearms classified
as "any other weapon® under the NFA, which were originally commercially
mmwmlmmmmmn.mwm
that these "any other weapon® firearms were mainly collector's items and not lileely
to be used as weapons in 1960. It was not untl 1968 that the Congress passed
legislation enahling these firearms to be removed from the NFA as collector's items.

2. Establishing a 90-day amnesty period to allow persons who may have innocently
lost their copies of the registration form to reregister these firearms. The Congress
has authorized such amnesty periods to be established by the Secretary of the
Treasury under § 207(d) of the Gun Control Act of 1968.

For the past several years, in response to my petitions or requests, ATF has refused to
implement either solution that [ have proposed. [ believe that removing these firearms from
the NFA is an ideal solution, but also believe that an amnesty period may also be an
appropriate solution. X

I hope that you will take prompt action to resolve the problems that I have documented. If
you have any further questions, please contact me.

Thamk you.
Very truly yours,
Eric M. Larson
P.0. Box 5407
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913
(301) 270-3450
cc:  The Honorable Janet Reno
Attormney General
Department of Justice "
The Honorable Bill Archer f
Chairman %

House Committee on Ways and Means
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Mr. Eric H. Larson
Post Office Box 5497
Takoma Park, MD 20913-5497

Dear Mr. Larson:

This is in response to your July 12, 1993, follow-up letter
to Treasury Secretary Bentsen. In your httlr you take
igsue with our response, on Secretary’s Bentsen’s behalf, to
your June 14, 1993, regquest that the H & R Handygun be
removed from the National Firearms Act (NFA).

H & R Handyguns currently fall within the "any other weapon®
category of NFA weapons. As defined in 26 U.5.C. 5845(e),-
the term "any other weapon™ means: '

{A}ny weapon or device capable of being concealed

on the person from which a shot can be discharged
through the energy of an explosive, a pistol or
revolver having a barrel with a smooth bore designed
or redesigned to fire a fixed shotgun shell. . . .
Such term shall not include a pistol or a revolver
having a rifled bore, or rifles bores, or weapons
designed, made, or intended to be fired from the
shoulder and not capable of firing fixed amsunition.

The weapons meet this definition because of their

concealability on the person (having an lpprnxi.ube mfmll.

length of 17 inches), and because they are smooth bore

pistols designed to fire a fixed shotgun shell. They have

bj_:E“ subject to the WFA since the Act was originally enacted
1934.

The H & R Handygun was manufactured between 1920 and 1934.
Although the exact number of Handyguns mamufactured is
unknown, available information suggests that between 20,000
and 25,000 were made in different gauges and calibers. The ™
value of the Handygun is estimated to range from 5400 to
§600 for standard variations, with scarcer versions
exceeding that amount.

)
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Mr. Eric M. Larson

Pursuant to 26 U.5.C. 5845(a) and the regulations in 27
C.F.R. 179.25, the Bureau of Alcochol, Tobacco and Firearms
(ATF) may remove weapons other than machineguns and
destructive devices from the scope of tha NFA which,
although originally designed as weapons, are determined by
reason of their date of manufacture, value, design, and
othaer characteristics to be primarily collector’s items and
not likely to be used as wveapons.

The removal of weapons from the scope of the HFA is an
action mot taken lightly by ATF, and the.requester has a
heavy burden of establishing that an item is not likely to
be used as a weapon. This is particularly true where, as in
the present case, a substantial number of weapons are sought
to be removed. In addition, your reguest requires close
scrutiny in view of prior congressional action with respect
to H & R.Handyguns and similar WFA weapons.

In 1945 and 1960, Congress amended the NFA by changing the
rate of tax on the transfer of these smooth bore shot
pistols with the scope of the “"any other weapon®™ category.
Because the weapons were found to be of interest to
collectors and useful for certain legitimate purposes,
Congress in 1945 reduced the original $200 transfer tax to
%1 and in 1960 changed the transfer tax to %5 for all
weapons within the category "any other weapon.® It is
significant that, although the shot pistols were considered
collector’s items, Congress did not choose to remove them
from the NFA. Moreover, the legislative history shows that
Congress deliberately left these weapons within the purview
of the NFA:

However, this "any other weapon® category will
continmue to be subject to the present control
provisions applicable to all firearms under present
law. As a result, the safequards of present law are
maintained, while applicable taxes are lowered to the
level which makes it possible for gun collectors to
obtain novel weapons in the category . -

5. Rep. Ho. 1303, 86th Cong., 2d Sess. 2, reprinted in 1960
U.S5. Code Cong. & Admin. Hews 2111. i

As previously stated, one of the criteria to be considered

in acting upon a removal regquest is the *design®™ of the

weapon. The design and function of the H & R Handygun are
identical to that of the sawed-off shotgun, which is also @
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Mr. Eric M. Larson

gubject to the NFA. Both weapons are smooth bore

which fire a fixed shotgun shell and are concealable on the
person. The weapons differ in two regards, neither of which
relate to their design or function: (1) the typical .
sawved-off shotgun is made by converting an existing shotgun
into a shot pistol, whereas the H & R Handygun was
originally manufactured as a shot pistol; and (2) the
sawed—off shotgun is subject to the NFA because it fits
within the definition of "weapon made from a shotgun® in

26 U.5.C. 5845(a)(2), whereas the H & R Handygun is within
the NFA definition of "any other weapon.® Practically
speaking, however, the two weapons are substantially the
Same. ] -

The sawed-off shotgun is a popular crime weapon and has been

the subject of numercus Federal and State prosecutions.

This is attributable in part to the availability of such
weapons. As stated above, sawed-off shotguns are produced
by simply altering conventional, sporting shotguns which are
readily available in the marketplace and which are not

themselves subject to the NFA’‘s registration or other
requirements.

Although E&R Handyguns have not freguently been used in
crimes, these weapons have been found in the possession of

criminals. The subject of a recent ATF case was an unlawful-

trafficker in drugs with an extensive criminal record.

¥While committing drug wvioclations, this person was in
possession of two NFA weapons, a sawed—-off Savage Arms
shotgun and a .410 bore H & R Handygun. H & R Handyguns may
well become a crime problem if they become readily available
in commerce. We believe that their limited availability is
affected by the fact that the weapons have not been
manufactured since the 19%30's, as well as the fact that they
have been subject to HFA controls since 1934. Under the
HFA, weapons not registered in the National Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record are contraband and cannot
be lawfully transferred. Possessors of reglistered weapons
may only transfer the weapons pursuant to applications
approved by ATF. Transfer applications ate denied if the

transferees’ receipt and possession of the weapons would |
violate any law. 4
As stated above, the removal of a weapon from the HFA
requires a finding that it would not likely be used as a
weapon. We believe that removal of H & R Handyguns would
increase the circulation of these weapons in commerce and
their availability to those who would use them for criminal
purposes. Because of the number of weapons originally
manufactured, we cannot conclude that they would not find

@




Mr. Eric M. Larson

their way Into criminal hands and be put to unlawful use.

As previously stated, it is believed that 20,000 to 25,000
were manufactured, but the precise figure is unknown. In
addition, we do not believe that the walue of the weapons is
a0 high as to make the weapons inaccessible to criminals.
Because the weapons are identical in design to the sawed-off
shotgun, we have no doubt that those acquired by criminals
would be used for unlawful purposes. For the above reasons,
it has not been established that the weapons would not
likely be used as weapons if removed from the HFA.

In support of your reguest, you have clted examples of ATF's
removal of certain other weapons from the NFA.

Specifically, you refer to Mauser and Luger pistols with
shoulder stocks and trapper carbines. In our view, these
veapons are distinguishable from the H & R Handygun in that
neither they nor any similar weapons have constituted a
crime problem. You also suggest that we compare the H &€ R
Handygun with the .45 Colt/410 bore Thompson Contender
pistol, a firearm which you state is similar to the H & R
Handygun, is distributed in commercial channels today, and
iz not considered a crime weapon. We do not believe this to
be a valid comparison because the Thompson Contender pistol
is not a smooth bore shot pistel and is not a weapon subject
to the NFA. A

Aoccordingly, we must affirm our denial of your request to
remove the H & R Handygun from the scope of the HFA since we
cannot conclude that such weapons, if removed from the Act,
would not likely be used as weapons.

Singerelv wours,

-Tdidy L. cates
Chief, Firea and Explosives Division
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Mr. Eric M. Larson
Post Office Box 5497
Tacoma Park, Maryland 20913-54%7

Dear Mr. Larson:

This is in response to your reguest for removal of the
Harrington and Richardson Hendygun (H & R Handygun) from the
gcope of the Mational Firearms Act (HFA), 26 U.E.C.

Chapter 53.

The weapons in guestion are .410 and 28 gauge H & R Handyguns
which currently fall within the "any -other weapon®™ category

of HFA weapons. As defined in 26 U.5.C. § 5845(e)., the term
"any other weapon™ means: i

[Alny weapon or device capable of being concealed
on the person from which a shot can be discharged
through the energy of an explosive, a pistol

- or revolver having a barrel with a smooth bore
designed or redesigned to fire a fixed shotgun
ghell. . . . Such term shall not include a
pistol or a revolver having a rifled bore, or
rifles bores, or weapons designed, made, or
intended to be fired from the shoulder and not
capable of firing fixed ammunition.

The weapons meet this definition beceuse of their concealability
on the person (having an approximate overall length of

17 inches), and because they are smooth bore pistols designed

to fire a fixed shotgun shell. They have been subject to the
NFA since the Act was originally enacted in 1934.

The H & B Handygun was manufactured between 1920 and 1934.
Although the exact number of Handyguns manufactured is o
unknown, available information suggests that between 20,000
and 25,000 were made in different gauges and calibers. The
value of the Handygun is estimated to range from $400 to
£600 for standard variations, with scarcer versions a:cnedinh

that amount.

EXHIBIT NO. 2




Mr. Eric M. Larson

Pursuant to 26 U.5.C. § 5845(a) and the regulations in

27 C.F.R. § 179.25, the Bureau of Alcohel, Tobacco and
Firearms (ATF) may remove wespons other than machineguns and
destructive devices from the scope of the WFA which, although
: originally designed as weapons, are determined by reason of
their date of manufacture, value, design, and other
characteristics to be primarily collector's items and not
likely to be used as weapons.

The removal of weapons from the scope of the WNFA is an
action not taken lightly by ATF, and the requester has a
heavy burden of establishing that an item is mot likely to
be used as a weapon. This is particularly true where, as in
the present case, & substantial numbar of weapons are sought
to be removed., In addition, your request requires close
scrutiny in view of prior congressiomal action with respect
to H & R Handygung and similar NFA weapons.

In 1945 and 1960, Congress amended the WFA by changing the
rate of tax on the transfer of these smooth bore shot
pistols within the scope of the "any other weapon™ category.
Because the weapons were found to be of interest to
collectors and useful for certain legitimate purposes,
Congress in 1945 reduced the original %200 transfer tax to
$1 and in 1960 changed the transfer tax to §5 for all
weapons within the category "any other weapon.®™ It is
significant that, although the shot pistols were considered
collector®s items, Congress did not choose to remove them
from the HFA.  Moredsver, the legislative history shows that
Congress deliberately left these weapons within the purview
of the NFA: :

However, this “any other weapon™ category will
continue to be subject to the present comtrol
provisions applicable to all firearms under
present law. As a result, the safeguards of
present law are maintained, while applicable
taxes are lowered to the level which makes it
possible for gun collectors to obtain novel
- weapons in this category . .

5. Rep. MWo. 1303, 86th Cong., 2d Sess. 2, reprinted in
1960 U.S. Code Cong. & Admin. Kews 2111.

As previously stated, one of the criteria to be considered
in acting uwpon a removal request is the “design®™ of the !
weapon. The design and function of the H & R Handygun are
identical to that of the sawed-off shotgun, which is also



Mr. Eric M. Larson

subject to the NFA. Both weapons are smooth bore handguns
which fire a fized shotgun shall and are concealable on the
person. The weapons differ in two regards, neither of which
relate to their design or function: (1) the typical .
sawed-off shotgun is made by converting an existing shotgun
into a shot pistol, whereas the H & B Handygun was originally
manufactured as a shot pistol; and (2) the sawed-off shobgun
iz subject to the NFA because it fits within the definition
of "weapon made from a shotgun® in 26 U.5.C. § 5845(a)(2).
whereas the H & R Handygun is within the HFA definition of
“any other weapon.” Practically speaking, however, the two
wiapons are substantially the same.

The sawed-off shotgun ig a popular crime weapon and has been
the subject of numerous Federal and State prosecutions. This
is attributable in part to the availability of such weapons.
As stated above, sawed-off ghotguns are produced by simply
altering conventional, sporting shotguns which are readily
available in the marketplace and which are not themselves
subject to the WFA's registration or other requirements.

Although H & R Handyguns have not freguently been used in
crimes, these weapons have been found in the possession of
criminals. The subject of a recent ATF case was an unlawful
trafficker in drugs with an extensive criminal record. While
committing drug vioclations, this person was in possession of
two HFA weapons, a sawed-off Savage Arms shotgun and a .410
gauge H & R Handygun., H & R Handyguns may well become a
crime problem if they become readily available in commerce.
We believe that their limited availability is affected by the
fact that the weapons have not been manufactured since the
1930's, as well as the fact that they have been subject to
NFA controls since 1934. Under the NFA, weapons not
registered in the National Firearms Registration and Transfer
Record are contraband and cannot be lawfully transferred.
Possessors of registered weapons may only transfer the
weapons pursuant to applications approved by ATF. Transfer
applications are denied if the transferees’ receipt and
possession of the weapons would violate any law.

As stated above, the removal of a weapon from the HNFA
requires a finding that it would net likely be used as a
weapon. We believe that removal of H & R Handyguns would
increase the circulation of these weapons in commerce and
their availability to those who would use them for criminal
purposes. Because of the number of weapons originally i
manufactured, we cannot conclude that they would not £ind -




Mr. Eric M. Larson

their way into criminal hands and be put to unlawful use.

As previously stated, it is believed that 20,000 to 25,000
wereé manufactured, but the precise figure is unknown. In
addition, we do not believe that the value of the weapons is
50 high as to make the weapons inaccessible to criminals.
Because the weapons are idemtical in design to the sawed-off
shotgun, we have no doubt that those acquired by criminale
would be used for unlawful purposes. For the above reasons,
it has not been established that the weapons would mot likely
be used as weapons if removed from the HFA.

In support of your request, you have cited amples of ATF's
removal of certain other weapons from the HFA. GSpecifically,
you refer to Mauser and Luger pistols with shoulder stocks
and trapper carbines. In our view, these weapons are
distinguishable from the H & B Handygun in that neither they
nor any similar weapons have constituted a crime problem.
You also referred to ATF's "removal®™ of the Marble Game
Getter with an 18-inch barrel from the "any other weapon™
category. This weapon was not removed from the NFA because
it was not subject to the Act in the first place. Because
of its overall length, it is not considered concealable on
the person and, therefore, does not fall within the
definition of "any other weapon.® You also suggest that we
compare the H & R Handygun with the .45 Colt/410 gauge
Thompson Contender pistol, a firearm which you state is
similar to the H & R Handygun, is distributed in commercial
channels today, and is not considered a crime weapon. We do
not believe this to be a valid comparison because the
Thompson Contender pistol is not a smooth bore shot pistol
and is not a weapon subject to the NFA.

AT L
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Accordingly, we must deny your regquest to remove the H & R
Handygun from the scope of the NFA since we cannot conclude
that such weapons, if removed from the Act, would not likely
be uged as weapons. MNevertheless, we commend you for your
thorough research and presentation and regret that our
decision could not be more favorable.

Sincerely yours,
SIGNED

Edward M. Owen, Jr. “
Chief, Firearms Technology Branch I
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DEPARTMEMNT OF THE TREASURY
BURLCAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS

WASHING TON, D.C 20226 LAREDAqTF
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Mr. Eric M. rson *
P.O. Box 5497 1;-I

Takoma Park, MD 20913
Dear Mr. Larsom:

This is in response to your letter of Hovember 21,
1986, in which you request confirmation of atatementcs
made about data in the “NFA REGISTRATION ACTIVITY -
ANNUAL COMPARISON® table. You enclosed a copy of the
ceble with dara through December 31, 1995.

The table shows Form 4467 registrations after 1971 and
before 1968. We beliewve that there are errors in the
date or form fields which cause the registrations to
appear in those years.

The table shows pre-1934 daca. This data results from
errors, blanks, or misrepresented characters in the
dacte field which cause the registrations to appear
prior to 1934. This.statistical report was developed
several years after the implementation of the automated
database and the programmer apparently included a
procedure co capture these date ranges because errors
in the date field showed daces prior to 19340

You asked about the “OTHER" column in the table. This
category would be comprised of registrations fure che
form number is different from the other ones Yabulated.
An incorrect form number would be counted inflhat

column,

f
In regard to items 5 and & of your letter, we are @
constantly verifying the information in our database.

I1f we do locate a record where cthe date, form number,

ful
o
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Mr. Eric M. Larscn

or ocher information was not entered correctly, we
encer the correct informacion. These actions may then
result in an adjustment to previously generated
scacistica.

We would like to point out that errors in the date or
form number fields would not affect the thoroughness of
a search of the databsse by WNFA Branch perscnnel. We
use a search methodology that ensures a thorough review
of the database for all possible responsive enfries and
an examination of the original registration document.

Finally, you asked whether a firearm would be {‘d.d.ad. ==
the Registry if a person possessed a valid reg.stration
chat was not in the Registry. The document ' person
possesses is his or her evidence of registrazion. It
would be added to the Wational Firearms Registracion
and Transfer Record if the information was not already
in the Record.

We trust this has besn responsive to your reguest.
Should any additional information be needed, please
contact us at (202} 927-8330. 3

Sincerely yours,

Chief, Wational Firearms Rct Branch
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i This status report relates Co alleged wioclacions of federal fire +laws by

John David oudley. a multiple comvicted Felon, who was unlewfully using and
carrying flrearms while trafficking in druge in the Judicial Digtrict of
I oregon. Thies investigation ig classified acs CIP: Marcotice.

Joha David Dudley has a criminal history dating back to 1977. Dudley's

| criminagl history reflects four felony convictions. one for first degres
theft and three for the delivery and possession of controlled substapces.
Dudley also has four misdemeanor convictions, numerous arrests for both the

| possession and delivery of controlled substances. ex-con in possescion of a
firearm, parole viclavions, burglary., cheft and mogt recently, the manu-
Eacture of controlled substances. John Dudley i currently undeér two sep-
arate Oregon state indictments for possespion of a controlled substanca,

i mathamphetamine and marijuana; manufacturing a controlled substance, meth-
amphetamingé; criminal conspiracy: and ex-con in possession of a firesrm,.

] On Hovember 29, 1989, based on inforsation received from a confidential
informant about drug activity., the Jackeon County MHarcotice Enforcement Team
(JACHET) . served a cearch warrant at John Dudley's residence.

I Oregon. During service of this warrankt, a ssmall
gquantity of methamphetamine, photos of a "Streeteweeper” shotgun ilying omn the
car seat of John Dudley's Corvette and the cwner's manual for the "Streec-
sweeper” were seized. On November 30, 1989, John Dudley was subseguently

I arrested for possession of a controlled substance/

methamphetamine.

| On March 30, 1950, a snu'ch warrant wag served on a shop building located ac
: oregon. Officers discoversd a methamphat-
amine lab and numercud firearms in a hidden compartment next to the lab.
Evidence wat found that linked Johm Dwdley and smother individual to the lab.

[ JACHET offlcers found drug records and property in the lab that r-.la.t- ta
John Dudley.

[ on April 12. 1990, a asarch warrant was served at Joha budley's residence

[described as fifch wheel trailer) oregon.
Buring chis {E}-?bq. an AMT, .45 caliber pistol. bearing serial number B21196.
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{Criminal Enforcement)

| DUDLEY, John David I 53360-90-4 0585

was found in a gym bag that also contained several ocunces of both
methamphetamine and marijuana. MWumerous letters. receipte for telephone
bille and other-correspondence in the name of John Dudley were found in
this same residence. Prior to the service of the warrant, -John Dudley
wan scopped while leaving his property and advised of the warranty ha
chose not to remaln on the premices. In another trailer on this, same
PEOpETEY. . an agaociate of John Dudlaey, was £ to be
in possession of a small amount of mathamphetamine. wAE A

for the possession of a controlled subatance/methamphetamine. 3
sequently. John Dudley was indicted in stace court for (1) manuffpcruring
a controlled cubstance, mechamphetamine, (2]} possecelon of & © led
substance, methamphatamine, (1) pocsession of a controlled substance,
marijuana. and [4) ex-con in possession of a firearm.

On April 21, 1950, & weapon made from a shocgun was seized during a

conaent mearch of OEegon. PUrsSuant To
an arrest warrant for John Duodley. . & rasident of E
. stated that "Dudley owne all the gune" that ware found in
the residence, and that Dudley and had brought the guns -
ower To house at different times during & two-week period.

A tocal of 27 Eirearms, including the weapon made from a ahotgun; were
Eound and seized from the residence. Three of the above firearms were
found to be stolen,

on June 1. 1990. sheriff's deputies went co .
oregon, [John Dudley's residence] to do a follow-up imvestigation of a
burglary, and smelled phenylacetic acid and F2F on che property. Based
wpon the deputies’ experiences wich methamphecamine laboracories and the
odors associated with the chemicals used in the making of methamphec-
amine., ‘a8 search warrant wae igsued and executed at the addrese. In
addition te stolen property, an operating methamphetamine lab wag
discovered In a shed located on the property. Four firearms wark seired
during execution of the search warrant. Including a shocgun which was
scrategically placed atop the doorway leading into che sechamphetamine
laboratory. Subsequently. Joha Dudley and two other SusSpects wWere
indicted in otate court for (1] criminal conspiracy. (2] manufacturing a
controlled substance. (3) possession of a controlled substance, and (4]
ex=gon in pocceegion of a Elrearm. Arrest warrants were issued for all
three; John Dudley rturned himeelf in and was relgaced on bail,
A Eirearms crace of the Cobray "Streetsweeper™, 12 ga., semlauto shot-
gun. bearing serial mmmber §193., found durimg a search warrant on the
recidence of revealed that it was purchased by
Both imaividuals are known associates of John Dudley.

trancporced several firearme., Including the Cobray *Screaet-
suaeper® chotgun, Lt residence, allegedly akt John Dudley's
requent.

The Jackson County HMarcotice Enforcement Team currently has a cocal of
55 firearms in custody from various seizures that are lioked to John
David Dudley.
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OUDLEY, John Dawvid l 93360-50-4 0585
T

A Erace has been inictiated on several of the other firearms that wers
selized by JACNET. .

AL present. ATF/Portland has no property in cwatedy relating to this
caga. .

MIER has expressed Interest in pureuing federal
proasecution for wvioclavions of Federal Eirearms laws in this case,

Imventligation to continue.
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Thig statws reporc relates te alleged violations of federal firea laws by

John David Dudley, a multiple convicted felon, who was unlawfully ucing and
carrying firearms while crafficking in drugs in the Judicial piskrict of
oregon. This lovestigation is classified as CIP: Marcotice, : A

John David Dudley has a criminal histery dating back to 1977. Dudley's
criminal history reflects four felony convictions, cme for Eirat degree
theft and three for the delivery and possession of controlled substances.
Dudley alee has four mizdemeanor convictions, numercus arrests for bath che
peesession and delivery of controlled svbstances. ex-con in possession.of a
firearm, parole violacions. burglary, theft and most recently, the manu-
facture of controlled substancee, John Dudley ie currently under two sep-
arace Oregon stace indictmente for possession of a controlled substance,
r methamphetaming. and marijueena; manufacturing & controlled substance, meth=
amphetaming; criminal .conspiracy; and ex-con in possession of a flrearm.

ko described Ln the previous status report, from Wovembar 1989 te June 1990,
five search warrants were executed by the Jackson County Hareotics Enforce-
ment Team (JACHET) om John Dudley's residence or his asgociates’ residences
that contained Dudley's propercy. During theee search warrants, RUmercus
firaarms, various quantities of both methamphetamine and marijuang, a "boxed"
rethamphetsmine 1ab and an operating methamphetamine lab were discovered by
police officers. During an April 21, 1990, search warrant on one:of John
Dudley's associates, two Title II firearms were found that belonged bo
Dudley.

I THE FOL] E THE LAST STATUS

On December 11, 19%0. a Jackson County Sheriff's deputy spotted a stolen
vehicle and followed it until. the vehicle came to-a Stop. Two white males

I exiced the vehicle and. che deputy immediately recognized the driver as being
Jahn Dodley. - Both John Dudley and hin passenger. - WELE
taken into custedy for the unauthorized use of a motor wehicle . WaAE

' later veleaged). Officers discovered a pistol, in plain view, wedged betwesn
the console and passenger wide seat., Officers found that the pistol, an F.N.
Brosning. Smp plstol. bearing serial numbaer 295501, wan loaded, complete with
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T ]
ong round in cthe chamber- and ready to fire. A computeér check on. tha -
piatol revealed that it- had been stolen during & residential burglary in
Jackaon County- two months- previously.. Officers also diacoverad A
cylindrical matal. chiect. in-Dudley's laft jacker pocker.. Upon further
examinaction the object. proved to be a .38 caliber pen gun.. The %38.
caliber pen gun does notb have & serial mumber. John Dudley was arrested
for the unsuthorized use of & motor wehicle and ax-con in n-nuu*inn of

A WEADONn. :
On January 2. 1590. AUSA. agreed bo indicl John
pudley for felen in posgession and the unlawful possecsion of und
raglateced Title II firearm. based upon Dudley's December 31, 1890,
arrest., Based upon the vacionale chat Dudley intimidatves several of che
potential witnesses againec him and that once he is in custody, these
Bame witnesges may be. willing to testify. AUSA wankts o make &
Aupplenental indictment on several of Dudley's previous arrescs afcer he
is taken inte federal custody.

On January 3. 1550, the F.N. Browning 9mm pietol, described abowa,. wa
fingarprinted by the Jackson. County Sheriff's laboratory with neagative
results. Both the F.H. Browning, 9mm pistol, bearing serial nunber
295501, and the suspected .38 caliber pen gun, no serial number,” dis-
covared durlng the Decesber 11, 1590, arrest of John Dudley, ware caken
inte custody by ATF/Portland. . Mdicionally, che two unreglstered Title
II firearms, allegedly owned by John Dudley and seized in an April 21,
19590, JACHET search warrant, were taken lnbe custody by ATF/Portland:

1. BEavage Ahrms, Svevens Model 54, Series M, .12 gouvge shotgun,
Bearing serial number RO0QOTS, barrel length of 13-3/4 inches,
and an overall length of 21-11/16 inches. p

2. Harringeon. & Richardson. H & R Mandy~Gun, .410-12 m/m :gi:e.
bearing eerial number 37757, barrel length of 12-1/4 i 8.

The .38 caliber pen-gun, taken Erom John Dudley on December 31, 1990,
will be saent to Firearms Technology Branch for a Title II determination. -

An HFA search was conduvcesd under the name of John David pudley, with
negatlve resulta.

On January &, 1991, thia case was presented befora a federal g-r.Lnd Jury.
It im anticipated that Dudley will be indicted for his 12/31/90"11)egal
possession of two flrearmss,

Invesbigation to continue,

NTTACHMENTS ¢ !

ATF F 3100.7 = cCase Summary @

ATF F 3400.16 - Propercy Inventary (3]
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This report is submitted to update the status and request property
disposition regarding the investigation of John David Dudley. Dudley is a
multiple convicted felon, who was unlawfully using and carrying firearms
while trafficking lm druge in the Judicial District of Oregon, This
investigation is classified as CIP1 Harcokics. »

John David Dudley has a criminal history dating back to 1977. Dudley's
eriminal histery reflects Fowr felony convictioms, one for first degree
theft and three for the delivery and possescion of controlled substances.
Dudley alss has four micdemeanor convictions, numerous arrests for both the
possession and dalivery of controlled subatances, ex—con in posseésslon of &
firesarm, parole wviclations, burglary, theft amd most recently. the manu-
facture of controlled subatances. .

As described in the previous scatus reports, from Wovember 1985 to June 1950,
fiwe search warrankts were executed by the Jackson County Warcotice Enforce-
sent Team (JACHET) on John Dudlay's residence or his associaces' residences
that contained Dudley's proparty. During these search warrants. numerous
firearms, various quantities of both methamphetamine and marijuana, & "boxed®
methamphetamine lab and an operating methanphetamine lab were digcovered by
police of ficers. During an April- 21, 19%0, search warrant on ond of John
pudley's associates, two Title IT firsarms were found that belonged to
tudley, On Decesber 31, 1990, John Dudley was stopped while driving a stolen
wehicle and found to be in possesaion of a %wm pistol and a .38 caliber
pen-gun, he wac arrested for the unawthorized use of a motor wehicle and
ex=con in possesslon of & weapon.

An WFA search wag conducted under the name of John David Dudley. with ne-
gative results. : i

on January 9. 1991, this case was precanted belore a federal grand "_iuty;
John Dudlay was subsequently indicted for viclations of federal Eirearms
laws, Title 18 U.8.C., Section 923(gl, and Ticle 26 U.5.C.. Sections 5861([d}
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Oon Jenuary 17, 1!91 John Dudley was arrested by ATF/Portland, and he
is currently in the cutada' of - the F-deral Hureau of Prisome.

“On May 9. 19&1. Jn}m David Dudlw pled guilky =-§ the original !I.nu['l.i_‘l:‘-
ment. _

on July 22, 1991, John David Dudley was sentenced ko &0 moatha ileprison-
ment with three years of supervised release. pPermigsion is ¥ aced o
destroy the seized property in this investigation and to releaasey tha
retained property back te the Jackson County Sheriff's office.

ATTACHMENTS

ATF F 3770.6 - Progress Record of Defendant
ATF F 3400.16 - Property Inventory - Request for Dispositiom (3)
ATF F 1850.23 - Release of Proparty
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DUDLEY, John Dawvid
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supervised release.

Trus Bill Indicomant oLf11/91
Counk I Tiele 18 U.5.C.. 922ig) (1)
Felon in FPossession of Firearm
Counkt 2: Title 26 U.5.C.. 5861(d) and 5871
Fossesgion of an Unregiscered Title IT Firearm e
]
[+
'.wﬂ'"lﬂ.ﬂl CTHER FIH&L CHERI1TRRH Ganbabeg dfgeail (LS & toanin s ree e for sddroons! ITLHI‘
FLED GUILTY to both counts 1 and 2 of the origimal Indictment, 05/05,51
Sentenced bo 60 months imprisommant followed by three years : Ly rrrhh




Responses to the Bureau of Aleohol, Tobacco and Firearms' Internal Investigation of my complaint

My five onginal allegations quoted from
my letter dated May 10, 1997, to the
Treasury Department Inspector General:

BATFs responses quoted from the
"Synopsis” of its internal investigation and
final report dated September &, 1997:

My comments;

"1. ATF employees have deliberately
destroyed original firearm  registration
documents that they are required by law to
maintain, as noted in sworn testimony in
1996 by ATF Special Agent Gary N.
Schaible.

In analyses of data made public by ATF, I
found that during 1992 to 1996, ATF may
have added 119 or more firearms to the
NFRTR. which were originally registered
on Form | or Form 4467 during 1934 to
1971, for which ATF lost or deliberately
destroyed the original records.”

“0I determined that the ATF employees
referred to in the first allegation as being
suspected of destroying records were, in
fact, contract employees who were hired to
assist in the backlog of paperwork that
resulted from an influx of registrations as
per [deleted by ATF]"”

“Depending on the year in question, if there
was an increase in any National Firearm Act
(NFA) firearm registrations, s alleged, this
may have been an adjustment as a result of
a different form number or registration data
fior the particular firearm.”™

Page 23 (references are to the FOIA page
numbers) states that contract employees
were suspected regarding missing NFA
paperwork during 1986-87; on page 22,
Mr. Schaible apparently identifies this same
incident as the subject of his May 21, 1996,
itestimony, vet in his 1996 testimony Mr.
|Schaible states that BATF employees could
thave thrown away the defendant’s
iregristration documents in 15994, It does not
‘appear that these discrepant statements,
igach made under oath, can be reconciled.

BATF offers no empirical evidence for this
hypothetical interpretation, and does not
even directly answer the question. Proof of
firearms being added may be established by
determining if a “docket number™ (first
created in 1976 for keeping track of
incoming paperwork) is found on the
records of firearms registered in or before
1971, and by other methods that BATF
apparently did not employ,

0zl




"2. ATF employees registered almost
2,500 unregistered NFA firearms on Form
4467 after December 1, 1968, without
proper authorization by the Congress.

In addition to not being authorized by the
Congress, such registrations were
prohibited by the Supreme Court in 1971,
yet it appears that ATF registered more
than 172 unregistersd MFA firearms on
Form 4467 after 1971,

I have included an example of one
apparently illegal post-December 1, 1968,
Form 4467 registration in my 1997
testimony."”

“To address the second allegation, ATF
continued to register weapons after 1971
because the backlog of paperwork that
resulted from the amnesty period was very
large and filing the documents required
extra time. In addition, some individuals
were granted extra filing time if they were
out of the country when the time expired
for filing.

A statement on Form 4467 states that
“This form cannot be accepted for
registration of & firearm except when
received by Director during the time period
November 2, 1968, through December 1,
1968, As my 1997 testimony documents,
each Form 4467 had a date’time stamp
epplied on the rear to indicate receipt, and
actual time filed in some cases was in 1969,
however, o Freedom of Information Act
request disclosed that the date of
registration, which BATF reports in its
statistics, is the actual date the form was
filled out by the person who registered the
firearm, and BATF s own data indicate that
nearly 2,500 firearms were registered on
Form 44567 after 1968,

BATF has not answered whether it has
illegally registered firearms on Form 4467,
despite clear evidence that it has done so.
Notably, BATF has not disclosed any
required notice in the Federal Register or
other Congressional authorization to
accept registrations after December 1,
1968,




*3, ATF employees Edward M. Owen, Jr.
and Terry L. Cates committed felomy
perjury in letters written to me dated March
23, 1992 and July 29, 1993, respectively.

Mr, Orwen and Mr. Cates each alleged that
“an unlawful trafficker in drugs with an
extensive criminal record™ was in
posseszion of a 410 bore H&R Handy-Gun
"while committing drug violations,"

This alleged instance of criminal conduct
was used 1o deny my petition to remove the
H&R Handy-Gun from the NFA &s a

| collestors item.

“Regarding Larson's third allegation, the
truthfisl information furnished to Larson by
[deleted by ATF)] and [deleted by ATF] in
their respective letters involves a criminal
case in Oregon investigated by ATF. The
suspect, John David Dudley, a multi-
convicted felon, dealt in narcotics and
illegally possessed firearms which included
an H&R Handy-Gun. Dudley was charged
and subsequently pled guilty in Federal

court on Federal firearms violations.

The H&R Handy-Gun in question was, in
fact, in the possession of an acquaintance
of the drug trafficker at the time of the
violations. BATF's manner of stating
“poszession” implies that the trafficker was
carrying the H&R Handy-Gun on his
person at the time the drug crimes were
committed. BATF has interpreted that the
drug trafficker was in “constructive”
possession of the HER Handy-Gun, even
though he was not charged with illegally
possessing it (see page 27 of the internal
BATF report). There is the truth, and then
there is the legal truth.

el




[3. continued) In fact, a Freedom of
Information Act Request disclosed that the
Handy-Gun was recovered from an
aequaintance of the trafficker, who said
that the trafficker had given it to him for
safe-keeping (see pages 212-215, 223-230,
and 233-236 of my 1996 testimony).

Any person who petitions for removal of a
firearm from the NFA must state the

reasons under penalty of perjury.

The plain language of the statue at Title 26,
U.S.C., § 58561(1) and § 5871 applies to any
person who knowingly makes or causes the
making of & false entry on any document
required to be prepared as e result of
administering the NFA.

B-uthMr mmmer I:und.d:humly :

As noted, the characterization may not
have been legally false; however, it was
definitely misleading,




"4, Certain ‘registration activity’ that ATF
classifies as "OTHER" could include
registrations of firearms that one or more
ATF employees registered contrary to law,
because ATF has refused to disclose the
nature of this ‘registration activity.'

To the best of my knowledge, I've never
heard of any forms numbered other than 1,
2,3,4,5 6,9 10 or 4467 being used to
register or transfer MFA firearms.

According to a letter to me dated January
9, 1997, from NFA Branch Chief Nereida
W. Levine, the 'OTHER' category is
‘comprised of registrations where the form
number is different from the other ones
tabulated.'

Ms, Levine, however, has declined to
provide the names or numbers of these
forms,

Coupled with the other evidence of
registration mismanagement [ have
documented, it appears that the *"OTHER"
category may represent firearms that were
registered illegally, as noted in my 1597
testimony,”

Larson's fourth allegation suggests that
ATF is using the “other” category to illegal
register firearms. However, this category is
used when the computer program cannot
recognize a non-sthndard document that has
been submitted for registration.

For instance, some registrations were
actually filed in comespondence on
letterhead,

If an ATF employee entering the
information into the computer enters a
Form 3 as a Form 33, the program will
assign the document to the “other” column.

The fact that the form is entered in the
“other” column does not mean that the

firearm is illegally registered.

During each year from 1992 to 1996 (the
most recent year for which the BATF has
released MFRTR data), there were more
than 8,000 entries under the “OTHER"
date category. 'What are these “non-
standard documents?”

There is a separate “LTR"” category, which
Gary Schaible stated contains firearms that
were  registered or transferred  on
letterhend, when standard forms were not
available.

A normal computer program for sensitive
documents would not accept the incorrect
entry of a form, and data entry could not
proceed.  How many other errors were
created in the NFRTR because of a failure
to properly debug the computer software?

Meither does it mean that an incorrectly
registered or transferred firearm can be
located in the NFRTE. Consider the
statement of Mr. Thomas Busey in the
October 1995 “Roll Call Training™ session:
“It was fine to begin putting everything in
pocurate & year ago or at least be
guarantesd & year ago it was correct, but
what are you going to do with the entries
that go back to the early “80s and the *70s
and the ‘6087

Fel




"5, It appears that a significant number of
WFA firearms are registered to persons
who are deceased, and that ATF has been
aware of this fact since at least 1981 and
done nothing about it, 8s noted in my 1997
testimony.

Consequently, a significant number of NFA
firearms are now illegally possessed by

whao are ungware that they are in
violation of the law,

The reason is that many firearms classified
as 'Any Other Weapon' are rare collector's
items that many people do not consider
weapons, as noted in both my 1996 and
1997 testimonies.

“In his fifth allegetion, Larson states that
some of the NFA weapons may be
registered to deceased persons. While it is
possible that, unknown to ATF, some NFA
weapons may be registered to deceased
individuals, the integrity of the NFA is
incumbent upon the individuals who possess
legally registered firearms to report deaths
and reregister the weapon.

“Unknown to ATFT" Excuse me.

As my testimony and letter to the G state,
an internal BATF report dated July 1,
1981, by BATF employee Deron Daobbs,
states: “We have the condition where
people who registered firearms under the
original National Firearms Act at age 65
would now be 112 years old. 'We know
that these people are dead and their heirs
have not taken the necessary steps to
contact us so that the involuntary transfer
created by the registrant’s death can be
formalized "

gel




[5. continued] ATF's most recent data (as
of December 31, 1996) disclose that of the
14,259 firearms registered during 1934 to
1939, exactly 11,175 (78.4 percent) are still
currently owned by the person or entity
that registered or acquired it during that
same time period.

And of the 58,904 firearms registered in
1968, a stunning 854 percent are still
pwned as of 1996 by the same persons who
registered or received them by transfer in
1968,

Consider that in 1981, an internal ATF
study reported: "We have the condition
where people who registered firearms
under the original National Firearms Act at
age 65 would now be 112 years old.

We know that these people are dead and
their heirs have not taken the necessary
steps to contact us so that the involuntary
transfer created by the registrant's death
can be formalized,™

BATF's most recent (as of December 31,
1996) data disclose that exactly 108, 556
persons have never legally transferred the
ownership of machineguns, bazookas,
sawed-off shotguns, hand grenades, anti-
tank rifles, and similar devices that they
registered or acquired by transfer in or
before 1971,

Of the 58,904 amnesty registrations,
50,314 (85.4%) are still owned by the same
person. Since the social security number
wats & required data field, it would take no
maore than a few hours to determine from
the Social Security Death Index exactly
how many NFA firearms are registered to
people who are dead—and when those
people died.

9z1
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My summary of the problems, issues, and
proposed solutions, quoted from my letter
dated May 10, 1997, to the Treasury
Department Inspector General:

BATFs reponses quoted from the “Synopsis"
of its internal investigation and final report
dated September 8, 1997; .

"One result of ATF's negligence is that some
persons who own certain rare, valusble
firearms that have special value to collectors
have been instantly transformed into
criminals.

The reason is that through natural disasters
(such as the recent floods in North Dakota,
house fires, and similar tragic events), the
owners of these firearms have lost their
copies of the documents which prove their
lawful ownership, and the law does not
allow these firearms to be voluntarily re-

registered.”

—

The 5th Amendment apparently applies to
the Bureau of Aleohol, Tobacco and
Firearms as an institution, But who answers
for the institution?

131



SOLUTION #1:  "Administratively
removing approximately 17,000 'surio or
relic' firsarms classified as ‘any other
weapon’ under the NFA, which were
originally commerically manufactured in or
before 1934 (but not replicas thereof).

The Congress determined that these ‘any
other weapon® firearms  were  mainly
collector's items and not likely to be used as
weapons in 1960,

It was not until 1968 that the Congress
passed legislation enabling these firearms to
be removed from the NFA as collector's
items.”

[Larson's] first recommendation is to remove
17,000 “any other weapons™ listed under the
NFA. i

Although Congress did enable firearms
clnssified s collector’s ftems to be removed
from the WFA, contrary to Larson's
interpretation it did not mandate their
remaval, Therefore, if an individual weapon
ia suggested for removal, ATF will consider
the particular firearm on a case-by-case basis
and determine if removal is warranted.

1 never stated anywhere in my letter of
complaint, or in either my 1996 or 1997
testimony, thet the Congress mandated any
firearm to be removed from the NFA as a
collector’s item.  Identify exactly where [
stated this. That is not what the law says,
and I didn’t say that On page 115 of my
1596 testimony, | did state: “Mr, Chairman,
no legal evidence exists to show that the
Congress sought to exclude the [Marble's
‘Game Getter Gun] from the remowval!
provision under the 1968 Act.™ T made this,

statement because of the fact that the BATF |~

formally determined (in writing) that the
Game Getter was mainly a collector’s item
and was unlikely to be used as a weapon;
however, the BATF legal counsel later took
the position that it nevertheless could not be
removed because the Congress excluded it
from the removal provision. My 1996
testimony (see pages 107 to 118) cites the
law, legislative history, and documents that

there is no legally velid and reliable evidence

821




SOLUTION #2. "Establishing a 90-day
amnesty period to allow persons who may
have innocently lost their copies of the
registration forms to re-register these
firearms.

The Congress has authorized such amnesty
perinds to be established by the Secretary of
the Treasury under § 207(d) of the Gun
Control Act of 1968."

“Furthermore, to address Larson's second
solution, if the original registration of a
firearm is misplaced, the owner needs only
to contact ATF to obtain another copy,,

There is no need to re-register, and there is
no need to establish an amnesty period as
Luarson suggests. :

BATF presumes a fact not in evidence, and
for which reasonable doubt exists: namely,
that BATF has pot lost or destroyed its
copies of onginal registrations. 1t appears
that for more than 100,000 NFA firearms,
there is just & single document (the original
registration) in the NFRTR to prove
ownership. As noted in my 1996 testimony
(see pages 92 to 95) and 1997 testimony
{see page 72), | asked Mr. Gary Schaible if
BATF had ever added firearms to the
NFRTR because BATF had no record of the
original registration—but the original owner
did. He stated: “Yes, [ assume that's
happened” BATF's conclusion is
premature, since it appears that BATF has
lost ar destroyed original registrations,

In a “Response to letter from Senator
[James A ] McClure™ dated November 29,
1979, bearing symbols LL. JJD: ajw, Philip B,
Heyman, Assistant  Attorney  General,
Criminal Division; and Lawrence Lippe,
Chief, General Litigation & Legal Advice
Section, Criminal Division, Department of
Justice, stated that if’ an individual had a
valid NFA firearm registration document,
but that BATF could not find any record of
it in the NFRTR, “the only solution would
be to declare another amnesty period. The
Secretary [of the Treasury] is empowered to
do this under mmﬁ Hllmon




January 31, 1998

Mereida W. Levine
Chief, National Firearms Act Branch
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms
650 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20226

Dear Chief Levine:

I am writing this letter to request from you a written statement from the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco
and Firearms (BATF) regarding the legal status of four Mational Firearms Act (INFA) firearms that
I currently own, which apparently were illegally registered years before [ acquired them, as well as
the BATF's policy regarding the legal status of other NFA fircarms that may have been illegally
registered without the knowledge of their current owners.

I discussed these issses at some length in my 1997 testimony before the Subcommittes on Treasury,

Postal Service and General Government Appropriations, to the point of specifically identifying each
firearm by serial number and citing or providing relevant documentation.

It is perplexing that BATF did not address any of these issues in its recent internal investigation that
is based on my testimony. [ also find it difficult to imagine that you, as Chief of the National Firearms
Act Branch, would not be concerned about the accuracy and integrity of the National Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record (NFRTR). After all, the only documentation that any lawfil owner
of an NFA firearm has to justify the legality of its possession, are documents issued by the NFA
branch.

What if NFA firearms were registered illegally? What if BATF's records are inaccurate, or missing?
What if BATF chooses to confiscate an affected NFA firearm—even though its current owner
acquired the firearm lawfully, BATF approved the transaction, and the curremt owner had no
knowledge of past defiects in the history of the firearm which BATF later interprets as transforming
the firearm into illegal contraband? Can the lawfil owner have faith in the “title” to his or her firearm,
and rely totally upon the documentation of an approved transaction by the BATF as evidence that he

My concerns are not hypothetical, theoretical, or a "fishing expedition” to try and create problems
that do not exist, because BATF has already confiscated at least one NFA firearm after alleging it was
illegally registered at some time in the past, though without knowledge by its owner and after BATF
had approved the transfer of its ownership.

It is & fact that BATF confiscated an NFA firearm from Noel Napollili of Fairbanks, Alaska, on the
grounds that it had been illegally registered sometime in the past by unknown persons, although
BATF issued Mr. Napolilli & lawfil registration document for the firearm when he purchased it for
%2500 in 1985, When BATF moved to seize the firearm in 1993, Mr, Napollili filed a lawsuit to
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demand its return, but dropped the lawsuit before the case could be brought to trial. James H. Jeffries
I, Esq., of Greensboro, Morth Caroling, who acted as Mr. Napollili's attorney, told me that the case
was dropped because Mr. Napollili's wife was afraid that BATF agents were going to kill Mr.
and Waco, Mr. Napollili's wife's concerns may be understandable, and probably any person who is
married can understand the need for domestic tranquility. In any case, Mr. Mapollili, as far as he
knew, lewfilly purchased the firearm and wes issued 2 registration document by BATF in 1985,
Suddenly, in 1992, BATF alleged there was absolutely no record that the firearm had ever been
registered, even though BATF had issued a registration document entitling Mr, Mapoliili to lawfully
possess the firearm. T incheded a copy of the Napollili case with my April 8, 1997, testimony, and at
that time the Subcommittes placed it into its permanent files.

The Tax Code and the NFA each prohibit disclosure of the past history of NFA firearms because such
information or docurnents are considered to be “tax return™ information, so the average person who
owms an WFA firearm cannot learn anything about its provenance—Ilegal or otherwise, My case is
rather unusual because through the umble vire of diligence 1 leared the history of certain firearms
that [ own. The average person has no means of questioning a forfeiture action by BATF based on
the provenance of a firearm, or any protection against BATF flat out lying. ;

1 am the current lawfill owner of four smooth bore HER Handy-Guns bearing serial numbers 5592,
29691, 50885, and 53637, as evidenced by my possession of a BATF issued-and-approved Form 4
for each firearm These are the only documents which evidence my lawful ownership of these
firearms, and BATF is the only entity which can issue them. 1 obtained some documents, or copies
of documents, reganding past transfers of these firearms from the former owners, mainly because they
respected my dedication as a firearms researcher and thought the documents would be an interesting
addition 1o my collection.

It was not until 1996, under various Freedom of Tnformation (FOLA) requests, that T was able to learn
from BATF the dates of original registration of the firearms that 1 own. On the basis of this
information supplied by BATF, I believe that the four firearms identified above were illegally
registered by BATF and that BATF may attempt to confiscate them as contraband at some unknown
time in the future for that reason. Since the accuracy and integrity of BATF s firearm registration
records is unknown, the situation that [ have identified is of potential concem to tens of thousands
transfer forms from the BATF. The apparently illegal registrations of my firearms on Form 3 or Form
4 considerably widens the potential for other illegal registrations, because these are very commaonly
used in ordinary transactions to transfer title of ownership.

A group of smooth bore H&R Handy-Guns bearing serial numbers 5592, 43950, 50885, 52551, and
53637 were transferred by and from H&R to Peter Dowd in 1986, using a Form 3 transfer form
approved by BATF. Yet, these were not "new” firearms; these guns had existed since at least 1934,
As oy 1997 testimony documents, HER advised BATF in writing on November 27, 1953, that “H
& R has not manufactured Handy-Guns since the [NFA] law was passed in 1934, and later states
that *in the last two (2) years, all our Handy Guns in 410 gauge and 28 gauge were exported to
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Canada™ Senal numbers 5592 and 50885 are new in their original boxes, and former HER
employees have advised me that HER had possessed these guns for many years. Yet, under a FOLA
request, BATF stated that three of these guns—which I bought during the early 1990s—were
originally registered by BATF on April 16, 1986, the date of application for their transfier by H&R;
indeed, this is the same date listed on the Form 3 transfer from H&R to Mr. Dowd. -

A manufacturer is supposed to register unregistered NFA firearms it has manufactured on Form 2,
and Form 3 is supposed to be only used to transfier the ownership of NFA firearms that are already
registered. Registering an NFA firearm on Form 3 seems to be a clever way to register an
unregisterable WFA fircarm, because it places the firearm imto the NFRTR, and raises questions about
the accuracy and integrity of the NFRTR—and the conduct of whomever approved the transfers (in
this particular case, the Form 3 transfers were approved by Gary Schaible via facsimile signature,
which may also raise questions about who has access to the signature facsimile machine). As you
may know, the U.S. Supreme Court prohibited the registration of such unregistered NFA firearms
on April 5, 1971. Consequently, it appears that BATF illegally registered the five firearms described
ahove, three of which 1 lawfully purchased and was issued lawful registrations by BATF.

The other smooth bore H&R Handy-Gun in question that [ own is a rare 28 gauge bearing seria]
number 29691, [ purchased it from the estate of its former owner, whose executrix gave me the old
registration {2 Form 4 that was approved by BATF on March 23, 1972). According to BATF, this
firearm was oniginally registered on March 2, 1972, more than a year after the U.5. Supreme Court
prohibited such a registration. Finally, the old Form 4 that | possess bears the signature of the person
who approved its transfer to its now-deceased former owner: the Director of the then-Alcohol,
Tobacco and Firearms Division, Rex [, Davis. Based on examples of Mr, Davis” signature on official
BATF letters in an unrelated court case during the same time period, it appears that Mr. Davis is not
the person who signed this Form 4. Thus, in addition to the firearm being illegally registered by
BATF, it appears that someone within BATF forged Mr. Davis” signature. Both of the events that
I have documenmted—an apparently illegal registration, and an apparently forged transfer
document—definitely are viclations of the NFA.

I respectfully request that you, as Chief of the NFA Branch, state in writing to me what BATF's
policy is regarding the legal status of these four smooth bore HE&R Handy-Guns and, specifically,
whether BATF regards them as lawfully owned by me or as unlawfil contraband because they were
apparently Wlegally registered or illegally transferred (or both) without my knowledge by BATF years
before T purchased them. This is a law enforcement, compliance, regulatory, and policy issue that
potentially affects me as well as thousands of other persons who have lawfully purchased NFA
firearms as evidenced by BATF s approvals of these transactions.

1 am going to let personal concerns involving selected NFA firearms that [ legally purchased speak,
in part, as well, for the many people who have contacted me over the years sbout similar concerns.
These people are genuinely terrified of BATF as an arm of the Internal Revenue Service (TRS), and
25 a law enforcement agency that has in the past over-reacted in situations in which human life was
apparently unnecessarily lost. No person should fear being victimized by the unlawful actions of a
federal law enforcement agency.
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If you are unable or unwilling to provide me with a written official answer, and policy position,
sddressing thess issues, [ am going to take action against you personally regarding your conduct in
the performance of your official duties, through appropriate channels.

Very truly yours,
{signed—Eric M. Larson)

Eric M. Larson
P.O. Box 5497
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913

- Ms. Carol Bergen, Office of the Inspector General, Department of the Treasury
The Honorable Jim Kolbe, Chairman
Subcommittee on Treasury, Postal Service and General Government
The Honorable Dan Burton, Chairman
House Committes on Government Reform and Oversight
The Honorable Orrin G. Hatch, Chairman
Senate Committee on the Judiciary
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20226

WR -3 1008 F:NFA:GS

179.101/98-4516

Mr. Eric M. Larson
PO Box 5497
Takoma Fark, MD 20913

Dear Mr. Larson:

This is in response to your letter of January 31, 1998, in
which you reguest confirmation of the registration status
of four Harrington and Richardson Handy Guns.

The Hational Firearms Registration and Transfer Record
reflects that the following four Handy Guns are lawfully
registered to you as follows:

Serial number 55%2, Form 4, approved October 6, 1989

Serial number 296%1, Form 4, approved Rugust 22, 19594
Serial number 50885, Form 4, approved October 24, 1989%
Serial number 53637, Form 4, approved Octocber 17, 13%0

Should any additional information be needed, please contact
us at (202) 927-8330.

Sincerely yours,

Heraida W.'Levine
Chief, Wational Firearms Act Branch




March 6, 1998

Nereida W, Levine, Chief

Mational Firearms Act Branch

Buresu of Alcohol, Tobaceo and Firearms
650 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20226

Dear Chief Levine;

Thank you for your letter of March 3, 1998, responding to my letter dated January 31, 1998,
regarding the legal status of four (4) H&R Handy-Guns that are currently registered 1o me, given
that they were apparently illegally registered by BATF without my knowledge many years before |
purchased them, and thus these firearms may be subject to forfeiture. These firearms bear serial
numbers $592, 20691, 50885, and 53637, 1 raised a number of questions about these specific
firearms, as well as about BATF's policies regarding NFA firearms it may have illegally registered
or transferred in the past—unknown to their current lawful owners,

Your letter states that “the National Firearms Registration Record reflects that the{se] four Handy
Guns are lawfully registered™ to me. This response does not fully address the issues thar 1 raised,
a5 explained below,

There are three things at issue. One is whether I could be prosecuted for possessing these
guns—was there some crime? I think the answer is clearly no. It is not a crime to possess a
firearm that was ever transferred or registered in violation of the Mational Firearms Act (NFA),
Mothing in Title 26, United States Code, § 5861 says so. : ;

Second is whether any of these four firearms are subject to forfeiture under Title 26, United
States Code, § 5872, That seems to encompass any firearm ever involved in a violation of the
statute. Tdon’t se¢ how a statement that the listed guns are registered to me means BATF is
claiming the listed guns were never, to its knowledge, involved in a violation of the NFA.

In shor, 1 believe I am safe from criminal prosecution with regard to these four firearms, and 1
have always thought that. However, then as now, [ don’t see any representation from BATF that
BATF doesn't think these four firearms are not subject to forfeiture. 1don’t see how just becauss
BATF states these firearms are registered to me, means they were never registered or transferred
in violation of the NFA and, therefore, subject to forfeiture.

Third is what BATF's position is regarding the legal status of MFA firearms that the BATF itself
illegally registered or trensferred. The law seems to state that such firearms are subject to
forfeiture regardless of when the violation of law occurred, and regardless of whether the person
who bought the firearms was aware of any such violations. Does BATF take any position that
there is a statute of limitations upon such forfeitures? .
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An important element of my January 31, 1998, letter asked BATF for a statement regarding its .
viewpoint regarding a forfeiture action or actions against these specific firearms. 1 would,
therefore, very much appreciate it if you would be kind enough to state what BATFs policy is
regarding any possible forfeiture action against these four specific firearms. IFBATF intends to
seize these firearms because BATF without my knowedge illegally registered or transferred any of
them in the past before [ lawfully purchased them, 1 would like to be informed immediately. | IT
BATF does not intend to seize these firearms, 1 would appreciate it if you would be kind encugh
10 state, in writing, that BATF does not regard any of these firearms as subject to forfeinure.

I recognize there is, unfortenately, en adversarial element regarding interpretations of law as it
regards gun control, [ honestly wish this was not so. 1 hope that you will accept my good wishes
and apologies for continuing to bring matters of concern to your attention. My reason for doing
50 is that I would fike to have these issues publicly and openly resolved,

Thank you.

Sincerely,

(Signed—Fric M. Larson)
Eric M. Larson

P.O. Box 5497

Takoma Park, Maryland 20913

ce:  The Honorable Dan Burton, Chairman
House Committee on Government Reform and Oversight

The Honorable Jim Kolbe, Chairman
House Subcommittee on Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government

The Honorable Ormin G. Hatch, Chairman
Senate Committes on the Judiciary
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February 8, 1998

John W. Magaw

Director

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms
650 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20226

Dear Darector Magaw:

T am writing to alert you to a senous flaw in the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms® (BATF)
recent internal report that was submitted to the Treasury Department Inspector General in response
to my May 10, 1997, letter describing apparent mismanagement, misconduct, and criminal
wrongdoing by BATF agents or employees. Right now | am preparing a detailed rebuttal of many
of the report’s findings, but in the meantime would like to respectfully request that you consider
addressing one of the most egregious flaws in the internal BATF investigation. [ am taking the time
to write to you personally, because [ plan to ask Chairman Jim Kolbe, Subcommittee on Treasury,
Postal Service, and General Government Appropriations, to request you to address these matters in
a formal hearing this Spring.

What I'm asking vou to consider doing now is pretty simple: namely, doing some straightforward
COmputer runs using existing data to determine if BATF has added firearms to the Mational Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record (NFRTR) because there was no record of the registration of said
firearms, after BATF was confronted with a valid registration document by their lawfil owners. T
will describe how I became gware of this problem, what 1 did to independently determine that it
actually existed, and will identify a method for detecting the extent of this problem.

As my research on the smooth bore HE&R Handy-Gun, and other “Any Other Weapon™ category NFA
firearms has become better known, through publication in the Standard Catalog of Firearms, the
Biue Book of Gum Values, and the Cficial Price Guide to Antigue and Modern Firearms, a number
of people have contacted me for additional information. 'What some of these people alleged was very
disturbing—that BATF had moved to confiscate a family heirloom firearm because the firearm was
allegedly not registered, but BATF added the firearm to the NFRTR data base after the lawful owner
produced a valid registration. This has not been a common event, and [ don’t think more than five
people have ever told me this. Because the NFA and the Tax Code' each require an NFA document
to be regarded as a “tax return,” these records aren’t open for inspection or research.

Until the Thomas Busey matter came up and a transcript of Mr. Busey"s remarks in his capacity as
Chief of the MNational Firearms Act Branch about serious errors in the NFRTR was made public, [
believed there was no way to determine the truth or falsity of the allegations of firearms being
“added” to the NFRTR. 1 then re-thought the siuation and inspected and analyzed the data on
firearm transactions as reported from the NFETR data base, which BATF has publicly released since
approsdmately 1989, 1 examined the records of Form 1 registrations from 1934 to 1971, and all Form
4467 { Amnesty Period) registrations, to see if the number of registrations changed over time. In
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theory, the orginal date of a firearm registration should not change, but [ found otherwise;
specifically, the number of original registrations showed apparent increases over time. This was
consistent with the allegations I'd heard that BATF had added firearms to the NFRTR data base. It
also appeared that BATF had illegally registered NFA firearms on Form 4467 (nearly 2,500) after
December 1, 1968, when the Amnesty Period expired.

At the time, in the spring of 1996, I was preparing to testify before the House Subcommittes on
Treasury, Postal Service and General Government Appropriations, which as you know funds BATF.
I wanted to address this issue of “Jost-then-found”™ registrations, and post-December 1, 1968, Form
4467 registrations, and wondered what I could do to independently confirm whether firearms were,
indesd, being added to the NFRTR, so [ called Mr. Gary N, Schaible, because 1 recognized how
serious this issue is. For me to testify about matters imvolving possible misconduct or criminal
wrongdoing by & federal law enforcement agency is something I regarded as a grave matter.
Specifically, given the nature of my employment, it would be professionally ruinous for me to give
such testimony without providing significant and credible, documented evidence.

In an April 1996 telephone interview, I asked Mr, Schaible if, in fact, BATF had ever added firearms
to the NFRTR because lawful owners produced valid registrations, yet there was no record of the
firearm in the NFRTR. Mr. Schaible answered: “Yes. 1 assume that’s happened.” I asked Mr.
Schaible this question several times, and each time the answer was the same; [ definitely did not
misunderstand him. Mr. Schaible also stated that BATF had registered NFA firearms on Form 4467
after December |, 1968, but could not explain those apparently registered in 1972 and later (such
registrations were prohibited by an April 5, 1971, U.S. Supreme Court decision). My account of
talking with Mr. Schaible appears on pages 38 to 96 of my 1996 testimony (see official printed
hearing record).

In my 1997 testimony, [ simply carmied my 1996 findings forward one year and dealt with this issue
in considerably more detail. Specifically, | determined that BATF may have added 119 or more
firearms to the NFRTR during 1992 to 1996 (the most recent year for which data were then available)
after being confronted with a valid registration (see pages 51 to 67 of my 1997 testimony, in the
official printed hearing record). In a previous letter, NFA Branch Chief Nereida W, Levine stated
that adjustments to dats to correct errors may cause changes in the statistics, and that if a firearm was
lawfully registered but not in the NFRTR data base, it would be added.

In my May 10, 1997, complaint to the Treasury Department Inspector General, 1 stated, in part:

In analyses of data made public by ATF, I found that during 1992 to 1996, ATF may have
added 119 or more firearms 1o the NFRTR which were originally registered on Form 1 or
Form 4467 during 1934 to 1971, for which ATF lost or deliberately destroyed the original
records.

The implication of such registrations “lost or deliberately destroyed™ by BATF is that if the lawful
owner loses his or her copy as well, the firearm is instantly transformed into unlawfisl contraband that
nobody can own. The proven fact of such loss by BATF would require that another amnesty period
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be established to correct the NFRTR, so the stakes in this matter are quite high. In a “Response to
letter from Senator [James A ] MecClure™ by Philip B. Heymann and Lawrence Lippe of the
Department of Justice dated November 29, 1979, bearing symbols LL-JTD:ajw, stated that if a lawfial
owner presented a valid registration for which no record in the NFRTR existed, “the only solution
would be to declare another amnesty period. ThtSm'ﬂs:y[uftlnTrmﬂumpuwuudtﬂdn
this under existing legislation.”

BATF's internal investigation into this matter is unsatisfactory, because it leaves the question of “Jost-
then-found registrations unanswered. Specifically, the BATF report states:

Depmadingmtbeywinmmﬁthutm.mhminmyﬂuﬁmdﬁ-mm
{MFA) firearm registrations, as alleged, this may have been an adjustment as a result of a
different form number or registration date for the particular firesrm.

This response to my allegation is unsatisfactory because the increases [ documented certainly “may
have been™ the result of any number of things, and because the response is not legally definitive;
indeed, BATF has cited no empirical, documented evidence backing up its response.

In contrast, | suggested at least one method in my testimony that could establish with definitive legal
cenainty whether the increases in NFA firearm registrations that [ detected are, in fiact, the result of
BATF adding firearms to the NFRTR after being presented with valid registrations by the firearms”
lawful owners, The following method, in fact, is summarized from pages 74 to 77 of my 1997
testimony (again, see the official printed hearing record). In brief, the method involves comparing
the “docket number™ in the NFRTR for specific firearms with the original registration dates of these
firearms. In approximately 1976, BATF began assigning unique “docket numbers™ to paperwork
(such as NFA firearm registration and transfer forms) that came in for processing.  As we have seen,
I have alleged that 119 or more firearms may have been added to the NFRTR. during 1992 to 1996,
for original years of registration from 1934 to 1971; and note that NEA Branch Chief Levine stated
to me in a leter dated January 9, 1996, that a frearm “would be added to the National Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record if the information was not already in the Record ™

Director Magaw, 2 simple computer run that compared original years of registration of MFA firearms
from 1934 to 1971 with “docket numbers”™ might well conclusively establish whether or not BATF
lost or destroved original registrations and was forced 1o add them back when confronted with valid
registrations by the firearms® owners. If a firearm originally registered in 1936 or 1968 or 1954 or _
1962 or 1945 had a “docket number,” that would be pretty conclusive evidence that the firearm had
been “added” to the NFRTR as the result of a lost registration.  Such a computer run could be done
in as hitthe as 10 wo 20 minutes, it is not complicated.

Of course, independent manual verification and inspection of any paperwork/documents identified
in such a search would have to be done. It would also have to be determined if there were any
suspicious “breaks” in the “docket number” sequence that would indicate tampering with records,
such as to try and cover up whether firearms had been added.
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The astonishing thing is that nobody at BATF apparently tried to match “docket number™ with year
of original firearm regastration, bt it is not astonishing if you consider that BATF management may
have specifically prohibited doing this check of the records. After all, proof that BATF lost or
destroved records, in the opinion of the Department of Justice, requires that another amnesty period
be established. In addition to the adverse publicity that would result, such dereliction of duty would
seripusly call imo question the competence of BATF to administer this Mation®s firearms control laws,

In the past, BATF has covered up wrongdoing of this type. In the Busey case, [ invite your attentions
to Mr. Busey's remarks on October 18, 1995, He said, in part

Let me say that when we testify in court, we testify that the data base is 100 percent accurate,
That's what we testify to, and we will always testify to that, As you probably well know, that
may not be 100 percent true . . . we're hoping [that numerous cross-checks using multiple
identifiers] eliminates the possibility that anything goes out erroneous because we know
you're basing your warrants on it, you're basing your entries on it, and you certainly don't
want a Form 4 waved in your face when you go in there to show that the guy does have a
legally-registered Title 2 weapon. ["ve heard that's happened. I'm not sure . . . when [ first
came in & Year &0, OUr error rate was berween 49 and 50 percent, 50 you can imagine what
the accuracy of the [NFRTR] could be, if you're error rate’s 49 to 50 percent.

BATFs inernal investigntion of Mr. Busey’s remarks does not inspire confidence. Consider the sole
statement of Special Agent Joseph E. Dugan, who was assigned to the case:

On Movember 30, 1995, Linterviewed BUSEY under cath. The scope of this interview was
limited in aceordance with the discussion 1 had with Mr. [Associate Chief Counsel (Firearms
and Explosives) Jack B.] Patterson. BUSEY related the following in an affidavit, which is
attached hereto:

When he said that members of his staff testify that the NFRTR database is 100%
socurate although they know otherwise, he made a misstatement of the facts, What
he meant to comvey was the fact that the database contains eertain inaccuracies which
can be attributed to human error. His personnel testify only to the accuracy and
diligence of their search and make no comment, either in court or on any officials
document, concerning the accuracy of the datdbase. If he were asked shout the
sccuracy of the database under either direct or cross examination, he would reply that
the database contains evidence of human error. He would then explain how & search
ia performed.

You will note that Mr. Dugan avoided asking Mr. Busey about “a Form 4 waved in your face when
you g in there to show that the guy does have a legally-registered Title 2 weapon, I've heard that's
happened.” Well, I checked the Form 4 data, and found that a BATF agent could have had a legal
Form 4 “waved in" his or her face at least 625 times during 1992 to 1996 (se pages 68 to 72 of my
1997 testimony). Moreover, BATF has officially identified “Approved form never updated in
NFRTR" &5 a significant problem (see pages 100 to 106 of my 1997 testimony). Finally, the indented
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statement in Mr. Dugan's report, which implies quoted material, isn't actually an “affidavit™ from Mr,
Busey. The statement is simply what Mr. Dugan says that Mr. Busey would say, and is hardly a
direct legal statement. In my judgement, Mr. Dugan didn’t ask Mr. Busey about Form 4 and other
MFRTR problems because he was specifically directed not to. .

The preceding discussion suggests why | had so fittle faith in BATF's internal review process, that
I contacted the House Committee on Government Reform and Owversight to try and prevent what
surely would have been just another coverup. As you know, the Committee has requested the
Treasury Department Inspector General to: (1) conduct an independent sudit of BATF's firearm
registration practices, and (2) evaluate the BATF's internal report. The latter has been completed,
and the former is apparently still ongoing.

masters in the Executive Branch allow them to go where the evidence leads? What for me began as
& simple concern about lawfil heirs who have inherited certain rare, collector’s-item firearms being
unjustly deprived of these firearms, has evolved into & more lengthy analysis of how BATF has
administered the National Firearms Act and obviously serious problems with the NFRTR database.

Diirector Magaw, you ane in a position 1o require BATF personnel to answer the questions that 1 have
asked truthfully, directly, and completely. So far, BATF has responded with hypothetical or
misleading answers that simply are not legally sufficient, and do not cite any definitive, empirical
evidence as normally would be required in an audit or investigation. Where are the work papers?
BATF s reply 1o mé is that none can be identified. Similarly, a list of witnesses “never materialized ™

Today is February 8, 1998, 1 am sure you will receive this letter within a few days. There is roughly
& 2-month period between now and when BATF's Appropriations hearings will be held. 1 am
providing Chairman Kolbe with & copy of this Jetter at the same time [ have sent it to you, and [
sincerely hope that he considers asking you to respond to this letter for the record.

Very truly yours,

Enric M. Larson
P.O. Box 3497
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913

[ Ms. Carol Bergen, Office of the Inspector General, Department of the Treasury
The Honorable Jim Eolbe, Chairman
Subcommittee on Treasury, Postal Service and General Government
The Honorsble Dan Burton, Chairman
House Committee on Government Reform and Oversight
The Honorable Orrin G. Hatch, Cheirman
Senate Committee on the Judiciary
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October 27, 1987

Mr. Eric M. Larson
P.0. Box 5497
Takoma Park, Maryland 20913

Dear Mr. Larson:

Thank you for your letter regarding che Bureau of Aleccohol,
Tobacco and Firearms (BATF). I care deeply about the rights
provided and protected under the Constitution of the United
States and appreciate the opportunity to respond to your
CORCETNS .

I am aware of the alleged violations committed by BATF
agents. Trying to balance the public’'s need for effactive law
enforcement and the rights of individual citizens is often
difficult. But it can be done. Unfortunacely, the BATF is
plagued by continued allegations of abuse and misconduck.

In the past, the Judiciary Committee has thoroughly
investigated the actions of federal law enforcement agencies in
connection with the tragedies at Waco and Ruby Ridge. I am

committed to pursuing credible allegaticns through exhaustive and
F fair hearings in the Judiciary Committee. You can be sure that I

will do everything in my power as Chairman of the Senate
Judiciary Committes to impress upon federal law enforcement .
cfficials that they must implement policies that prevent abuse
and punish those who overstep their authority.

Meanwhile, the government still has the responsibility to
perform the regqulatory functions now executed by the BATF. The
question that remains, then, is how best to perform these
functions while preventing future abuses. I am currently
reviewing the feasibility of three specific suggestions for the
future of the BATF: first, congress could abolish the BATF and
trangfer lta funcrions to the FBI; second, congress could
diggolve the BATF while assigning its enforcement functions to
the Secret Service and its regulatory functions to che U.S5.
Customs Service; and third, congress could put the BATF under the
authority of the Department of Justice, allowing that Department
to review its policies and procedures.
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October 27, 1997
Page 2

Ultimately, I will do everything I can to maintain the
balance between effective law enforcement and protected civil
rights.

Again, thank you for writing to me on this impertant issue.

1y,
Orrin G. Hatch J

Chairman
CGH:jgg
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Beecy A Dot Abagady Ol Cooenisi

March 11, 1998

Mr. Bric M. Larson
F.0. Box 5497
Takoma Park, MD 20913

Dear Mr. Larson:

Thank you for your lettera regarding the BATF in which you
included testimony given before the House of Representatives’
Appropriations Committee. I appreciate the information you
provided because it is essential to the oversight role of che
Judiciary Committesa. Your concerns, combined with the concerns
of others like you, provide insight that would be difficulc for
me to obtain in any other way. I will certainly keep your
information in mind when considering future legislation dealing
with the BATF.

Once again, thank you for taking the time to write to me on
this imporcant issue.

Sincerely,

orrin G. Hatch
Chairman

OGH:jgg
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JOHN D. LEARSURE
S@a7C VICTORY BLVD., BOX 368
YORKTOWM, VIRGINIA 234693
TEL: 757-B74-7717

MARCH 31, 1998

THE HONDRABLE JIM HDLBE, CHAIRMAN

SUBCOMMITTEE OM TREASURY, POSTAL SERVICE AND GEMERAL
GOVERNMENT.

HOUSE OF REFPRESENTATIVES

B 307 RAYBURM HOUSE OFF ICE BLDG.

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20515-4028

TEL: 202-225-5834

DERR CHAIRMAM KOLBE,

1 AM ENCLOSING THE FOLLOWING MATERIAL THAT REFER TO EFFORTS
BY THE BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS TO COVER UP
ERRORS IN THE WATIDNAL FIREARMS REGISTRATION AMD TRANSFER
RECORD, AND TO JLLEGALLY WITHHOLD EXCULPATORY EVIDENCE IMN
CRIMINAL PROSECUTIONS.

1 WOULD RESPECTFULLY ASH THAT MY TESTIMONY BE MADE PRART OF
THE WRITTEM RECORD.

CHAIRMAM KOLBE, I WOULD ALSD ASK THAT YOU SUFPFORT CHAIRMAN
DAN BURTON 1IN REQUIRIMG THE TREASURY DEFARTHMENT INSPECTOR
GENERAL TO DO A CREDIBLE INVESTIBATION INTD THE B.RA.T.F. AMD
THE NATIONAL FIREARM REGISTRATION AMD TRANSFER RECORD.

AMD TO ALED SUPPORT REMOVING THE W.F.R.T.R. FROM B.A.T.F. AND
TRANSFERRING 1T PERMAMENTLY TO THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

THARNK YDU.

P A S

JOHM D. LEASURE
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Statement on

Efforts by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms to
Cover Up Errors in the Waticonal Firearms Registration and
Transfer Record and to Illegally Withhold Exculpatory Evidence
in Criminal Prosecutions

by

John D, LeaSure

5007C Vvictory Blvd., Box 360
Yorktown, Virginia 236%3

Tel: 757=-874=7717

Prasentad

bafore the

Subcommittee on Treasory, Postal Service and General Government
aof the

Committee on Appropriations

House of Representatives

B3I0T Rayburn House Office Building
Washingteon, D.C.

April 3, 1998
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Svbcommittee:

My name is John D. Leasure. I have prepared this testimony because I
hawve an important stery to tell about how part of the legal system in
this country is broken. I say "part of the legal system,” because
certainly all of it is not broken. In addition to having 5 felony
convictions reversed because the Bureaun of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms
(BATF) withheld exculpatory evidence, having the opportunity to
personally bring this matter to your attention by myself, in my own
words, means & great deal to me. There i still a cloud over my name
right now, but it is my hope that the Federal Couwrt system will clear me.

I prepared this testimony for three basic reasons.

First, I want to document for the Congress how BATF illegally withheld
exculpatory evidence in the coorse of charging me with and prosecuting me
for so-called "crimes"™ that were artifically created only by flawed
firearm registration records.

Second, and perhaps most importantly, I want to place in the formal
record of this hearing evidence that the BATF is continuing to try and
cover up its misdeeds, and is thus continuing te try te illegally
prosecute some pecple on the basis of firearm registration records that
BATF knows good and well are not reliable.

Third, I hope that by bringing this information to your attention, the
Subcommittees can help keep what unjustly happened To me from ever
happening again to somebody else.

All of the laws that I have been accused of violating are part of the
Hational Firearms Act (NFA) of 1934. The NFA regulates the manufacture,
sales or distribution, and possession of machineguns, barookas, anti-tank
rifles, land mines, hand grenades, sawed—off shotguns, firearm silencers,
rockets, and similar implements of war. In addition to law enforcement
reasons, there are many legitimate activities inwvolved with these items.
Museums have them, pecple study them for research and development
purposes, other people collect them as historical artifacts, and they are
regularly used in movies. I will pot try and address all of these uses
here, and instead will begin by explaining how I got where I am today
from my perspective.

PERSONAL BACHGROUND
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! am an inventor of firearm silencers, which are sometimes called

| "suppressors, " because they reduce or eliminate the sound of a firearm
being discharged. I hold a patent on my silencer invention, which was
patented in 1992, and which is considered among the best in the industry.
While I have =old perhaps a handful of these items to certain gualified
individuals, wirtunally all of my clientele has been the U.5. Government,
its foreign-government allies, and law enforcement agencies. 1In other
words, my business is not with the civilian market. As a federally
licensed manufacturer under the HFA, I was legally gualified to
manufacture silencers as well as any other HFA firearm or device.

I also make & good product. You n':ay not have heard of me before today,
but I'm sure you all have heard of Tom Clancey, the author of Without Remor

L1
Well, the technical information in that book regarding firearm silencers
came from me.

My legal problems with BATF forced me to close my first company,
Precision Arms International, which was located in Saluda, Virginia. As
a convicted felon, I cannot possess any firearm, nor heold a federal
manufacturer's licemse. At the moment, I am a consultant to SiOpts.

HOW MY LEGAL PROBLEMS STARTED

In February 19%4, I was contacted by BATF for a compliance inspection.
When Inspector Charles Tuzner arrived at my place of business, we tried
to retrieve my records via the computer. I had problems with the
computer, so he left and returned two days later with a computer printeout
of my supposed inventory provided by the NFA branch in Washington, D.C.
When our records didn't match, Inspector Turner said he would return in a
few days. Three days later he returned, along with three other BATF
agents, with a search warrant. I offered the hard coples of my records to
Special Agent Karen Dutton, but she said they were not interested in the
hard copies. They seized approximately 60 items, saying they would be in
touch with me. (Trial Jan. 18, 1996, Page 96, Line 1-25.

Throughout I called the Morfolk BATF office numercus times ingquiring as
to the status of my inventory and trying to Eind out exactly what was
going on. I was told, "It is still pending." In late 1994 I was forced
to close up my company, Precision Arms International, due to poor
business. I was told by a good custemer that word had gotten arcund that
I was having problems with BATF.

I re-opened my business in Newport News, Virginia under the name of

Silent Options. In Hovember 1995 I was contacted by Special Agent Karen
Dutton and tald the grand jury had returned a true bill on my indictment
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and I had better get a lawyer. When my lawyer, David HN. Montague of
Hampton, Virginia, called on Movember 16, 1995 to the U0.5. Federal
Eastern District Court, he spoke with Arenda Wright-Allen, Assistant U.5.
Attorney. She told Mr. Montague I had HOT been indicted, but my case was
still under investigation. Three days later, and two days before
Thanksgiving, I received my indictment, delivered by a U.5. Marshal. The
grand jury had met on November 14, 1995 and returned a true bill.

We obtained a copy of Special Agent Karen Dutton's testimony of the grand
jury hearing. In her testimony, she testified I had in my possession
three unregistered functioning machine guns. These "machine guns™ were
small replacement parts I was licensed to possesa. This tainted the
testimony to the grand jury. As a matter of fact, these were replacement
parts of a United States military project. Ewven though during my trial
Judge MacKenzie guestioned why I was even charged with this count, it
still was an issue we had to spend time and money fighting and proving my
innocence, Furthermore, this prevented the negotiation of reducing my
charge to a misdemeancr, and points were added to my sentencing
guidelines for this count, ewen though I was found not guilty. (Grand
jury hearing, 11-14-95, Page 10, Line 16.)

In December 1935 David N. Montague, my attorney, asked Arenda
Wright-Allen if there was any way this could be reduced to a misdemeanor
and was told absolutely not. On Jenuvary 18 and 1%, 1996, my trial was
held in the U.5. Distriet Court, Eastern Division, Newport Hews,
Virginia, before the Honorable John A. MacKenzie. During the trial, Gary
Schaible, who is in charge of record certification fur the NFA branch in
Washington, D.C., testified their records were 100 percent accurate, and
that he had made only one mistake in his 20 years of service. Judge
MacKenzie took the case under advisement. (Page 107, Line 23).

In February 1%%6 I was found guilty on fnrm: of the six counts.

In March 1996, through a Freedom of Information Act Reguest by attorney
James H. Jeffries, III, we obtained a transcript of a roll call :ralni.ng
session conducted by Tom Busey, Chief of the NFA branch of the BATF. Mr.
Busey, in this October 1995 training session, admitted their records were
at best 50% accurate. Mr. Busey also stated when testifying in court
cases, agents testify the records are 100% correct. Gary Schailbe was
present at this meeting. (BATF Roll Call Training Session WFA Branch,
October 1995, Page 2, Line 3)

"Let me say that when we testify in court, we testify that the data base
is 100% accurate. That's what we testify to, and we will always testify
to that. As you probably well know, that may not be 100% true. (BATF
Roll Call Training Session NFA Branch, October 1995, Page 19, Line 4).

"This gquality review team, when I first came in a year ago, our error
rate was between 493% and 50%, so you can imagine what the accuracy of the
Hational Firearms Registration and Transfer Record could be, if your
error rate is 49% to 50%" (Please refer to the enclosed roll call

Fage 4




training session tape.)

On March 2%, 19%&6, David Montague wrote a letter to Judge MacKenzie
regquesting the case be dismissed based on the roll call training session,
and regarding Count 1, Mr. Montague wriote,

"Count 1 would have been fatally tainted by the multiple acts of
misconduct by the Government." (Letter to Judge MacKenzie, 3-29-9&).

In April 1996, my attorney filed the roll call training transcript with
the court for a motions hearing. It was mailed certified return receipt.
The wery next day, Mr. Montague received this same transcript from Arenda
Wright-Allen, which she filed with the court, only her copy left out
seven consecutive pages. It's interesting to note those seven pages
contained all the information about the BATF admitting their records were
at best 50% accurate.

On May 21, 19%&, in & hearing before the Honorable John A. MacKenzie, all
counts but one were thrown out due to Gary Schaible's new testimony
wherein he perjured himself, and he stated there were examiners at the
BATF WFA branch in Washington, D.C. who shredded registration amd
transfer docoments. Furthecmore, this was exculpatory material withheld
by the prosecution. (Court hearing, 5-21-95, Page 42, Line 19 to Page
44.) |

The sentence given was 12 months, but I was let out on bond pending
appeal. One interesting point, in my sentencing guidelines prepared by
probation officer Sharon Thayer, she incloded counts of which I was found
not guilty. This wpped the sentencing range dramatically. (Court
hearing 5-21-9%5, Page 70, Line 5.) U.5. attorney Arenda Wright Allen
appealed my sentence.

In June 1996, Stephen Halbrook becams attorney of record and noted our
appeal based on the ambiguity of the law.

In May 1997, the Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuwit, wpheld the conviction
and refused to hear oral argument on the appeal. The Fourth Circuit
remanded my sentence back to Judge MacKenzie to comply with the rules of
United States wversus Koon. In August 1997, David Montague returmed as
the attorney of record and noted my appeal to the United States Suprems
Court. In October 1997, the Supreme Court refused to hear the case.

David Montague has two motions to file. One is to dismiss stating BATF
obtained a search warrant based on the accuracy of their records knowing
full well their records were at best 50% accurate. In addition, if this
transcript had been turned over before trial, which it should hawe been,
it would have left Count 1, the count on which I was convicted. Even
though I was licensed by the BATF to manufacture silencers, I was still
convicted for possessing tham. However, that count by itself couold have
been reduced to a misdemeanor under the Tax Code, and as I stated
earlier, we tried to get this reduced but were told absclotely not.
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Howewer, I must state I feel Count 1 should have been thrown out due teo
the ambiguity of the law. Federal Register, Vol. 53, Wo. 62, Rules and
Regulations, Section 179.102. This is also stated in "Your Guide to
Federal Firearms Regulatieon, 1588-8%," Department of the Treasury, Bureau
of Alechol, Tcbacco and Firearms. Please see excerpts from Jan. 18 & 19,
1996 trial, Page xx, Line, Page xx, Line xx, Page xx, Line xx.

A MISCARRIAGE OF JUSTICE

Why was Gary Schailbe able to perjure himself on the stand with no
repercussions? If the normal citizen were to perjure himself, they would
be tried and most probably convicted. In the roll call training session
tape, Tom Busey states there are over B0 cases they are trying based on
the accuracy of their records. How many other people are in jail or have
felony convictions on their records becaogse of the BATF's lying about the
accuracy of their records?

Why weren't Inspector Tuorner and Special Agent Karen Dutton interested in
the hard copies of my records?

Why was Karen Dutton able to testify incorrectly to the grand jury
thereby obtaining an erronecus charge against me, and in essence, extra
points added to my sentencing guidelines?

Why was Brady material withheld?

Why did Arenda Wright-Allen leave out seven consecutive pages from the
rall call training session tramscript, which in these sewven pages, it'"s
clear Gary Schaible perjured himself? The Department of Juostice stated
they sent the complete transcript out teo all U.5. attorneys.

Why was I "giwen time"™ in my sentencing guidelines for charges I was
found not goilty? How can a person be given sentencing
enhancements/points for counts he was found not guilty? If this is
correct law, why have trials?

Why would the Court of Appeals, Fourth Cirewit, not even hear oral
argument on my case?

Why did the U.S. attorney, Arenda Wright-Allen, tell my attorney, David
Montague, that I had not been indicted, yet she was the U.S. attorney who
presented my case to the gramd jury two days prior? She told Mr.
Montague I was vnder investigation. The grand jury met on November 14,
1995 and Mr. Montague spoke with Ms. Wright-Allen two days later on
Rovember 16, 1995,

How can someone who truly believes they are complying with the laws be
sent to jail for 12 months? (With the distinct possibility of receiving
51 months.,)
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Please read David Montague's letter, June 4, 1996, to Michael E. Shaheen,
Junior, Director, Office of Professional Responsibility, U.5. Justice
Department, regarding the removal of seven pages from the roll call
training session transcript; obstruction of justice/tampering with
evidence.

I had just re-cpened my business in June of 1995 and things were going
great. I felt I had recovered my reputation BATF's raid on my prior
business. I had pending orders in excess of 5$500,000. MNews in the
gun/defense industry travels fast, and by the beginning of December 1995,
I was being told by customers, "We'll get back to you."

Additionally, I have spent the majority of my life in the defense
indostry and I was now left with no current job skills to find a new
career. Heedless to say, this was a severe financial strain on my
family.

TESTIMONY AND RESEARRCH
OF ERIC M. LARSON

In January 19%8--less than 3 months ago--1 became aware that Eric M.
Larson had testified before this Subcommittee sbout errors in the
Hational Firearms Registration and Transfer Record, or HFRTR. Mr. Larson
became interested in these errors from a completely different
perspective, that of hearing about collectors who had firearms
confiscated by BATF even though the firearms were legally registered to
them. T would like teo briefly say that the relatively small number of
firearms that Mr., Larson is concerned about (he estimates there are
roughly 17,000 of them) are, indeed, in my professicnal opinion, firearms
that are only of interest to collectors. They came under the NFA for
mainly technical reasons, and we in the business oftem encounter them.

In a significant number of cases, people simply don't recognize them as
WFE firearms--because they look like what they are, obsclete firearms
that obvicusly were manufactured many years ago. I believe that what Mr.
Larson has suggested is reasonable, which is to either allow people to
voluntarily re-register these guns, or to simply remowe them from the HFA
as collector's items. I hope you will consider doing this, based on his
research and testimony.

RSO
— e e sy i = =y,

Having said that, I am mainly interested im Mr. Larson's work for two
wvery different reasons. First, he independently confirmed what I
experienced, and what those of us in the WFA business hawve recognized for
many years. Hamely, that the WFRTR records are a mess. They are not
totally a mess, of course, but they are encugh of a mess to cause unjust
prosecotions, for a Federal Judge to deem them unreliable enough to
support convictions, and for the BATF not to appeal those dismissals of
charges. That's pretty unreliable.

Second, Mr. Larson followed up his testimony with a complaint to the
Treasury Department Office of Inspector General, which ultimately turned
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into written proof of an attempt by the HATF to still try and cover up
errors in the NFRTR. Briefly, Inspector General refused to investigate
Mr. Larson's cemplaint, and instead turmed it ower to the BATF. The BATF
then did an intermal investigation, completely excnerated itself, and
then refused to release the report for a long time. The report was
completed in September 1997, but Mr. Larson was unable to obtain a copy
until late Janoary 1998. He kindly shared this report with us.

I will not go into Mr. Larson's complaint here, except to say that one
specific complaint he made was about the deliberate destruction of
registration documents by BATF employees. As we have seen, this is what
Mr. Schaible testified to at my trial, and it is one of the reasons that
Judge MacKenzie dismissed 5 of my convictions. Yet, the BATF told a
completely different story than the one Mr. Schaible related under oath
in federal court in response to Mr. Larson's complaint. Specifically,
the BATF stated in its internal report that the documents were thought to
have been destroyed some eight years ago by contract employees; howewer,
in my trial, Mr. Schaible did not state this. Instead, Mr. Schaible
acknowledged, under direct examination, that registration forms belonging
to Mr, LeaSure could, in fact, have been destroyed by BATE employees.
{May 21, 1996, transcript, Page 42, Line 1% through Page 43.)

Also (incredibly, in my opinion), the BATF is continuing to try and
withhold the Busey Tape, which is clearly Brady Material. In a letter
dated March 18, 1998, less than 3 weeks ago, the BATF denied a Freedom of
Information Act request by Mr. Larscn for a copy of the videotape. BATF
gave as the reason, and I guote: "Your request is denied pursvant to
Title 5, U.5.C. 552(b) (6) as release of this videc tape would constitute
an invasion of Mr. Busey's privacy."™

Mr. Chairman, not only is BATF's refusal to release this information an
outrage, what Mr. Busey states on the tape is an outrage: namely, that he
knew good and well how messed up the records were. Listen to what Mr.
Busey states toward the end of the videotape, and I guote:

"What we're going to do is we're going to go back, starting with the
latest entry and working back to the oldest entry and review every hacd
copy of every document with its entry into the data base to see if it's
correct. I think originally we figured this would take 781 man days to
do this with five people sitting at a computer eight hours a day."™

"But it's the only way that we can feel that we can ever get it
completely accorate. It was fine to begin putting everything in accurate
a8 year ago or at least be guaranteed a year ago it was correct, but what
are you going to do with the entries that go back to the early “B0s and
the ‘702 and the “60s7"

FROFOSED REMOVAL OF THE WFRTR FROM BATF
AND RELOCATING IT TO THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
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I learned about 3 weeks age that Mr. Larson was planning to recommend
that this Subcommittes consider remeving the WFRTR from the custody of
the BATF, and relocate it within the Department of Justice.

I believe this is a reasonsble and necessary action, for several reasons.
Firat, the Department of Justice i the organization that does all of the
background checks anyway. Second, the Department of Justice has the
capability to professionally manage these records, as it has done do with
fingerprint records for many, many years. The BATF has proven, by its
actions, that it is incapable of managing these records, but more
importantly that it is continuing to try and cover up errors in the NFRTR
and thus continue te try and prosecute innocent people. Third, the BATF
[or indeed, whatever government agency has the responsibility for
enforcing federal gun control laws) would still have access to these
records, and have the ability to use them for legitimate law enforcement
purposes.

Fourth, and perhaps most importantly, moving the NFRTR to the Department
of Justice would provide an objective, legal interface between these
records and the BATF. In other words, the BATF could not manipulate
these records or misuse them, because they would be in the custedy of a
disinterested federal agency that has an incentive to maintain their
integrity. -

HMr. Chairman, I don't know the pelitical and practical details of how you
do these things, but I stromgly support Mr. Larson's suggestion that the
HERTR be completely removed from the BATF, and turned owver to the
Department of Justice.

EFFECTS OF BATF'S PROSECUTION
O MY PERSOHAL LIFE

I don't know that I can adequately express how it feels to be wrongly
accused of, tried and convicted for crimes that I did net commit. I can
tell you that it takes over your life from then en. I think about it
every day, and worry about what is going to happen to me and to my
family.

In May of 1895 I married the love of my life, and with her I alsc enjoyed
becoming a father to her five year old son. As you know, six months
later T was sarved with the indietment. It is almost impossible, and I
have said, to put into words the atress that befell our home life, for
the fear of having my son lose his new father would have been devastating
to him, not to mention my sorrow as well. My wife and I hawe both gone
through depression, mental anguish, and eur son's school performance has
suffered.

My wife was a court stenographer who enjoyed going to court for the state

felony dockets. After seeing such a gross miscarriage of justice, she
was mentally mo longer able to perform her duties in court hearings. She

Page o

e i Bl B e T

ooa e i d




156

Testimony

lost all faith in the justice system.

wWe feared for opr safety due to retaliation by the BATF, echoes of Waco,
Ruby Ridge, and John Lawmaster went through our minds constantly. Ewven
today, we fear that writing to you will prompt retaliation by the BATF.

Feocple who I thought were my friends would no longer talk to me. A close
friend finally told me cthers were afraid if they were associated with
me, there would be retalistion by the BATF towards them. This friend
alsc told me that's why no one would testify on my behalf. Forthermore,
the night before my trial, & wvery close friend who wasn't afraid teo
testify, received an anonymous call stating he better not show up at
trial. During this time I received numercus prank calls, some using foul
language, and constant hang-ups. I newver even bothered asking anybedy in
the NFA manufacturer or dealer industry to testify on my behalf about the
same kinds of errors in the NFRTR they have experienced. The BATF scares
them, because the BATF can put you out of business. Knowing what it has
done to me, I could never criticize anybody for putting their wife,
family and business interests first. I am proof that nobody will step
forward and help.

These are just a few examples of the hell we went through and are still
continuing to experience, for peace of mind and reputation are not
acguired bwernight.

In legal fees, our bill with David Montague is $28,300, and the clock is
still ticking. We had previously paid him $7,000. (This is not included
in the $28,300.) Stephen Halbrook's bill was 524,500. We still owe
$18,000. This does not include the countless hours spent worrying aboot
the case; time working on the case; time it has taken away from my family
and business life; and time trying to keep it all together financially
and emoctionally.

CORCLUSION

Mr. Chairman, on March 25, 1997, my attorney filed a writ of Habeas
Corpus on my single remaining conviction. As I write these words, I
don't know what is going to happen, but I feel like we have a sound case
that is based on valid and reliable evidence, It is possible that by the
time you read these words, I will be a totally free man, but I don't want
this to stop here. :

I came forward with this story mainly becapse I don't want any other
person to ever experience what I went throwgh, because of messed—up
records and an effort by the BATF to lie about and cover up exculpatory
evidence. This is the part of the legal system that iz broken, and I
sincerely hope that you and other Members of the Subcommittee will use
your authority to support reforms that prevent any of this from ever
happening again,
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Thank you for the opportunity to have shared this information with you.

I will be glad te try and assist you and anybody else in the task of
fizxing this wery serious problem.

Sincerely,

LB, 2S5

John D. LeaSure
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DAVID N. MONTAGUE

ATTORMEY AND COUMSELOR AT LAW

1 East Quezw's Wy TroierHoest: (BOS) T22-Ta441

Secosm FLoow

Hasarros, Vimoins, 23659 Facsiamr: (BO4) T22-8189

March 29, 1996

The Honorable Jobn A MacK enzic
mmmmw
Eastern Destrict
Waher E. Hoffmen 11 5. Courthowse
600 Grankry Street

Morfolk, Virginia 23510

Re  United States v, John Dasiel LeaSure, Criminsl No. 4:95¢r54
Deear Judge MacKenzie:

On yesterday, I received a letter with multiple enclosures from Assistant 1], 5. Amtorney Arenda
‘Wright Allen, Esq. It appears that Mrs. Allen also sent a copy of this letter, with the enclonares, 1o you

“Thee letrer is quite extraordinery for several reasons, and 1 befieve it is appropriate for me 1o bring
these 1o your sitention. | am, of course, sending Mrs. Allen & copy of this lemer.

In the first place, this case was tried before you in Newport News more than two months ago, and
resulted in the conviction of Mr, LeaSure on 4 of the 6 counts in his indictment. Mrs Allen's letter of
March 26, 159596, stetes that the accompamying information b semt “to avoid any suggestion that ihe
[hustice] Department has pot provided all refevant material in this matter.”

My undersanding of the Brady rule i that the potentislly exculpatory disclosre is to be made to
the defense before the trial. It doesn't do much good two months bsver.

Secandly, on March 25, 1996, we seot to Mrs. Allen by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested,
& supplement 10 our motion for new trial with various materials attached, inchuding a copy of the transcript
of the departmental briefing given 1o the Buresu of Alcobol Tobacoo and Firesrms (BATF) by then NFA
Eranch Chief Thomas Busey, in Ociober, 1995, and the Retum Receipt shows that it was received by Mra.
Allen on March J6—the same day as hes letter to me.

Third, ske includes as the first fvem among her enclosunes the same transeript of Mr. Busey, except
her copy of the transcript omits the lnst sx pages which contained, we thought, the admissions most
damaging to the Government’s case, Her version of the transcript ends with page 15, but page 16, (we
filed the whole thing) has Busey saying: “we msintain thess [NFRTE, search] files for fiture reference in
case ome of the other of us has to CYA for one reason of another.®




The Honorable Jobn A MacKenzic
March 29, 1996

Page Two

And on page 19 be says: “when | first came in & year ago, our error rate 'was between 49 and 50
percent. ™

Another interesting ftem is in the portion of the transcript submitted by Mrs, Allen, and appears at
page %:

“List me sy that when we vestify in court, we testify that the data
base is 100 percent sccurste. That's what we testify o, and we will always
testify to thet, As you probably know, thet may not be 100 percent true,”

In Mrs. Allen's next exhibit, a handwrinen affidavit by Mr. Busey, be finds it necessary to assen
that: "Meither | nor my staff have never [sic] perjured themsehves neganding this scouracy. . . "

Assuming this means that they have not committed perjury, # is shocking that he would feel it
Meceasary o isswe such a disclaimer,

This casual and flippant attitude on the part of & senior BATF official is unbecoming,
usprofessional and inappropriate, but far more importantly, the gne qus pon of the Government's case on
Counts 2, 3 and 6 of the indictment was the testimony and certification of Gary Schaible of the BATF that
the weapons in question wene bot registered 1o Mr. LeaSure. The fact that this sssertion was based on
duta that af that time (February, 1994) suffered from a "49 or 50 percent” emmor rate is sbsolutely
sppalling Had we known these facts, | believe the entire case would have been dismissed because:

(a]) Coumts 2-6 would have been subject to reasonable doubit as & matter of lew, and (b) Count 1 would
have been faally tsinted by the multiple acts of misconduct by the Governmen.

I would request that you comvene & bearing 1o consider the Defendant’s Motion for New Trial and
for such other relbed as the Court might find appropriate.

With lind regards.
Yiours wery truly,

t@.«.‘,ﬂ/f/ﬂm%-«

ez Arends Wright Allen, Esquire
M. John D, LeaSure

47-740 98-6
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DAVID N. MONTAGUE
ATTORMEY AND COUMSELOR AT LAMW
1 East Quiir’s Way
comn Fuoom
SAPTOH, Vincinia 7 35069

Troeriioeae: (ROA) T2Z-Faa1

Facswuir: (B804 7T2Z-8187
May 24, 1996 b

MAILED & FAXED (B04) 44 1-6689

Arends Wright Allen, Esquire
Aasigtant U5 Atiomey

World Trade Center, Suite 8000
101 West hinin Strest

Morfolk, VA 23510

Re: US vs LeaSure
Crimi i 4-95¢r54

Denr Mrs. Adlen:

On yesterday | received a call [rom an out-of-state lawyer who specializes in the defense
of NFA casea

- Ve informved me that he had just received i one of his cascs a letter similar to the one you
wrale 1o me in 1his case on March 26, 1996, wilh, apparently, most of the same exlibiis.

A significam difference, howewver, was the fact that be received tle entige Dusey transcript,
andd nod just the Dirst fifteon (15) pages, as I did.

Woud will recall that | raised that question m my letter to Judge MacKenzie of March 249
anel again in remarka to the Court on bay 21 in Newport News. On neither occasion did you
olfer any explanation, nor did your witness, Gary Schaible of the BATF, have any explanation for
the mussing seven (7) pages, In which most of the damaging sdmissions occur.

A this point, it is obvious that somesne removed those eritical pages from your exhibit.
Whale | iy et suggesst that that person was you, | do need s explanation, and if vou canmol
jrovube dr, 1 ahall plan to write next week to the Director of te Otlice of Professioanl
Reaponsibaliny st the justice Department.

PMease advise me a3 1o what you know about the following:
(1) Was vour letter to me of March 26 unquahth:mh:mnrw:tpmu{-

nationwide notification to defense lawyers imvolved n similar cases?
(23 Was the substance of the letter your work, or was it suggested by anyone clse?
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(k)] From whence did you recesve the exhibits which sceompanied that letter?
{4) IF the: answer 1o question three (3) i The Justice Deprrtment, did you send ot the
eathibits exactly a3 received, or did you or aayone you know of make eny changes 1o them?

lmliuumnmmn-mmw:mmmmrmmuhynurm};
My 30,

Yours very tnuly,

Cowip 1 btz

David M. Montague
ez Mr. John LeaSure



May 29, 1996 .

David N. Mont ¢ Exq.
I East Queens Way, Second Floor
Hampton, Virginia 23669

Ra: lln:.:ed_i.:m_n_mmmﬂ
Criminal No. 4:95cr54

Dear Mr. Montague:

Please be advised char the entire packet which I mailed co
on March 26, 1996, was xeroxed in total from che original pac

sent co my office from the U.5. Depertment of Justice, Criminal
Division. ;

Sincerely,

RELEN F. FAREY
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Arenda L. Wrighe
Assistant Uniced Staces Atcorney

]




DAVID N. MONTAGUE

ATTORMEY AMD COUNSELOR AT LAW

June 4, 1996

Michael E. Shaheen, Ir., Esquire

DHrector, Office of Professional Responsibility
U5, Justice Dapartment

Room 4304

Main Justice Building

10th Street and Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
‘Washington, D.C. 20530

Diear Mr. Shaheen:

1 wite o bring to your stiention & matter which has been of great concern to me in
recent weeks.

1 have besn immlved as defense counsel in 8 case brought under 26 USC Section
S861(d)&(i) in the Enstern District of Virginia, styled LLS.A, v, Jobhn Danie! LeaSre, Criminal
Hurdm*ﬁu‘ﬁd -

Bntﬂ'y the case imvobved a prosecation of Mr. LeaSure, & federally licensed Class
2 Marfscturer specializing in research and development of firearm suppressors, or "silencers”,
and the holder of & patent for what is probably the best silencer in the world. The offenses
charged in & 6-Count indictment came before the Honorable John A MacKenzie for & two-day

bench trial on January 18 and 19, 1996, for & varety of record-keeping violations, bat no
subsantive violations,

Tnitially, by Order entered February 1, 1996, Judge MacKenzie found LeaSure
guilty of 4 of the & counts of the indictment, all of which imolved the record-keeping fonctions of
the NFA Branch of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (BATF) except Count 1, which
was for possessing unsuccessfl experimental silencers without serial members,

At the senfencing hearing on May 21, 1996, the Judge was given access to
additional information which had become available afier the trial, consisting principally of 2
transcript of & training presentation made 1o the BATF in October, 1995, by Thomas Bussy, then
Chéef, Mational Firearms Act Branch, BATF.

TELEFHONE (S04} T2Z-T+

FacsmauLe: (B04) T22-8)
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This transcript was hushed up by BATF after it was made because extremely
damaging admissions about a "459-50 percent” error rate in the NFRTR. (National Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record). Mr. Busey stated that grest strides had been made since he
hiad beea on the job (from October, 1994),

Thiz, of course, cast great doubt on all cases antedating Busey's tepune, including
this ome, which had arisen in February of 1994,

Within & month, Busey had been reassigned to the tobaceo section of BATF, and
his transcript remzined secret wntil it was produced pursusnt to a FOLA request made by James H.
Jeffries, 11, Esquire, of Greensboro, Morth Carcling, on Movember 7, 1995,

Actusl production was made to Mr. Jeffries on or about March 1, 1996, about 1
1/2 months after Mr. LeaSure’s case had been tried, and he sent a copy of the 22-page transcript.

1 assembled several exhibits, inchading the Busey transcript and sent to the Court
with a eopy to Assistamt LIS, District Attorney, Arends Wright Allen, Esquire, the attomey in
charge of the Government's case.

correspondence (March 26, 1996), a letter was sent to me by Mrs. Allen with the same Busey
transcript, except that the last 7 pages had been removed, these being where virtually el of the
damaging material appeared,

I have asked Mrs. Allen to explain this, and | finally heard from her on May 19,
1996, stating that she had sent me everything she had gotten from the Justice Department.

As s result of the foregoing disclosures, together with the testimony of Gary
Schaible of the BATF that the agency was having a problem with NFRTR clerks destroying
registration faxes, Judge MacKenzie threw out all of the comactions except Count 1, and on it he
substantially reduced the Guideline indicated penalty. This conviction is being appealed,

At this poing, | am seeking as full an explanation as possible of what appears 1o b
govermment misconduct at fairly high bewels imvolving obvious violations of the Brady rule,
coverups by the police (BATF), and tampering with evidence by the Diepartment of Justice.

The situation was brought mare forcefislly to my sttention when [ received & pho
eall from Mr. Jeffries on Friday, May 24, 1996, advising that he had just received a letter from 1!
Asmstant U5, District Antorney on & case he had with & oumber of attachments, Knowing that
had recesved & generally similar better from Mrs. Allen, e wanted to compare them.




“The letters and the atiachments turned out to be identical, suggesting that it was a
mass maifing from the Justics Department (through locel AUSDAs) to perhaps hundreds of NFA
Branch (Section 5861) cases acroas the country affected by Busey's sistements.

Page3

In addition, Mr. Jeffries’ version of the Busey transcript was complete, making it
ebvious that someone had removed the pages from my version of the transcript.

Please bet me know if | may provide you with any further information about this. 1
shall wwmit your response,

Wours very truly,
(cc po7 funibice
David N. Montsgue
;. John LeaSure
Arenda Wright Allen, Esquire

1. March 26, 1996, letter from Arenda Allen, Esquire, forwarding Busey transcript and other
exhabits. -

2. My March 29, 1996, letter to Judge MacKenzie.

3. Mm. Allen’s letter to me of May 29, 1996,



@ ' U. 5. Department of Justice
Office of Professional Responsibility

OCT 3 1206

David N. Montague, Esqg.
1 East Queen's Way
Sacond Floor

Hampton, VA 23669

Dwmar Mr. Montague:

Thank you for your letter and the material you sent fo us on
June 4, 139%, We have opened an investigation into the matter.

1f you have any questicns about this, please contact me or
Assistant Counsel George Ellard om (202) 514 - 3365.

Sinceraly, :

|8

Michaal E. Shaheen Jr.
Counaal



R & | b

David N. Montague, Esg.
1 Eagt Queen's Way
Becond Floor

Hampton, VA 2366%

Daar Mr. Montague: _____.-'"
-

In &8 letter dated June 4, 1996, you brought to our attention
the fact that Assistant U.S. Attorney Arenda Allen had sent you an
incomplete transcript of certain remarks made by an agent with the
Bursau of Alechsl, Tobacco, and Firearma.

M. Allen has affirmed to us that which she told you: she
forwarded to you in its entirety the material sent to her by the
Criminal Division at Main Justice. We have told that component
that some of the material it sent to U.5. Attorneys Offices appears
to have been incomplete,

‘Thank you for bringing this matter to our attention.

Sincerely,

angey
Aesistant Counsel
i
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DAVID N. MONTAGUE
ATTORMEY AND COUMSELDR AT LAW
+ EasT Cpeees’s Way
pooin FLOoR
Hamrrom, Vikgins 23669

MNovember 27, 1996

| George Ellard, Esquire
Agsistant Counsel
115, Justice Depantment
Room 4304
Main Justice Building
10th Strest and Pennsylvanin Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20330

Dear hr. Fllard:

Teusprorn; (B8] T22-T441
Facsivae: (B04) T22-8169

I have your b=tter of Movember 21, 1996, for reply. You certainly sppear to heve missed

muos of the point of my earber comaspondence.

| In the first place Thomas Busey should not be refierred (0 a3 an “agent” of BATF, In fact,
be was the Chicf of the Mational Firearma Act Branch for that agency, and bis "eertain remarks™

came from a lengthy wraingng session for all BATF weapons agents,

What Mr. Busey sisled waa an appalling truth: that when he joined the Bureau the emor
rate for their records for firearms registrations was 50%, meaning agems’ testimony in registration
b | cases was worthbess and that perhmps hundreds of gun dealers and manufacrurers (including my
'l client. abmest } were in prison with fefony cenvictions that should have been acquittals.

Ta make matiers worse, Mr. Busey was summarily fired and the transeript of his remarks
lushied up  Bugey's career now Ianguishes in the Tobacco Division. His remarks did not become
kenvem A0 the world until obtained on an FOLA request from gun attorney, James H leffries, LI
of Gireenshoan, MC . wha in twm, had heard by the grapeving that such & transcrpt existed.

Afler My Jeffiies got the transcript, BATF reslized the jig was up and immedintely sent it
b e Justice Departmant whao in tum transmited it to Assistant U_S. Anomeys handiing cases of

this tvpe.

. My question was, had BATF deleted the crucial lnst seven (7) pages of the transeript and
thereby abiwost all of the damaging admissions? Apparently you have not even looked into this.
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The more serious poasibility was and i that a very scary conspiracy existed between the
Justice Department and BATF to conceal all of these improper comvictions even though the prics
was a0 unknown sumber of innocent men end women who hsd had their Fves and reputations
ruined.

Your off-handed trestment of the siteation suggests an indifference 1o & mater going 1o
the essence of the administration of justice and due process.

Yours very traby,
Sbpn =
Dearvid M. Momague

Mr. John D. LeaSure
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCD AND FIREARMSE
WASHINGTOMN, DT 20228

March 18, 1998
REFER. TO: L:D:MRL
98-514

Mr. Eric M. Larson
P.0O. Box 5497
Takoma Park, MD 20913

Dwear Mr. Larson:

‘This is in response to your Freedom of Information Act request dated January 3, 1998, for
information maintained by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms.

You have requested “a complete and unredacted copy of the videotape created by the Burean of
Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms which pictures Mr. Thomas Busey,Chief, National Firearms Act
Branch, during a “Roll Call Training Session, or about October 18, 1995".  Your request is
denied pursuant to Title 5, U.8.C. 552 (b)}(6) as release of this video tape would constitute an
invasion of Mr. Busey's privacy.

Insofar that your request has been denied, you have the right to request an administrative appeal.
Such appeal must be addressed 1o the Assistant Director, Liaison and Public Information, at the
above address and be received within 35 days of the date appearing on this letter. Your letier
should state any arguments in support of your request.

Sincerely
Aﬁk}*ll . Q LS‘“"“ F
Marilyn R. LaBrie

Disclosure Specialist
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QUESTIOKS AND ANSWERS CONCERKIKG THE REGULATION
OF HACHIREGURS AND SILENCERS UKDER THE
KATIOKAL FIREARMS ACT AND THE GUR CORTROL ACT,
AS AMENDNED BY PUB. L. KO. 99-308B

SILEKCERS

QUESTION: What controls are placed on silencer kits,

partial silencer kits "and amn individual silencer part hy
Fub. L. Ko. $9-3087

ANSWER: The Gun Control Act and the National Firearms Act
Tegulate firearms, including silencers, as defined by
those Acts. The term silencer is defined in 18 U.5.C.
§ 921(a)(24) and 26 U.5.C. § 5845(a)(7) to mean any device
for silencing, muffling, or diminishing the report of a
portable firearm, including 2ny combination of parts,
designedsor redesigned, gnd.intended for hsu;4n.lssu-b]lng
or fabricating a firears“siléncer or muffler; and any part
intended-only for .use-in-isuch:iec=sem sog-fabrication.
Thu:.'l_silequxﬂk{t,;ﬁgpghp “Pak, tial"or "complete, and
‘any individualieilencgr partiis. subjegtvtodallcontrols
placed'du‘ff:&i?higbﬁgtheEGEiI:Qd“tﬁe NFA. MNFA“controls
include, e.p., the;registration and marking requirements.
A manufacturer and distributor of silencer kits may place
the serial”number and other required-markings-on a single {
component ‘of the kit, provided that the markings are 4
conspicuous and not susceptible of being readily
ob ated as required by regulations. { A manufacturer
(distributing)a single part which meets the silencer

oh must place all requisite markings on that
Under the GCA, a manufacturer or dealer in
silencers as defined must be licensed.

QUESTION: Can the owner ‘of a registered silencer have
the silencer repaired witheout the transaction incurring
further registration or payment of "additiomal transfer

taxes?

ANSWER: The registered cwner may deliver his registered
S3ilencer to a qualified manufacturer for purposes of
repair, including necessary replacement of component

parts, and receive the repaired silencer without the
transactions necessitating further registration or payment
of transfer taxes. For the protection of the parties
involved, Forms 5 should be filed by the transferors with
ATF prior to the delivery and return. On -the other hand
the transfer of silencer kits or parts by a qualified !
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ORIGINAL

ROLL CALL TRAIMING
10-95

TOM BUSEY
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PROCEEDINGS

HR. BUSEY: Good merning, my name ia
Tom Busesey. I'm chief of the NFR branch, Natienal

Firearms Act Branch.

-

A lot of the information that Larry gave
¥ou relative to chain of command organizatcion, thac
applies to us Eoo. What I thought I'd ger into this
morning ie the probably chree major cthings that the
branch doae.

Our firet and main responeibility is ko
miﬁ: focurace entries and to maintsin accuracy of the

WFRTR, the MNational Firearme Registry and Transfer

Record.

Qur second main reaponeibilicy ie te do
look upe for agencs in rhe field who need te [ind ocuc
if an individual hae Title 2 wWeRpon .

Our third major recoponeibility, and not
quite co-equal, becauase che senoiciviey and
eriticalneas of it is nec chere, but we also deo
record iuventeries for inepectore who are inapecting
various firsarme dealere. We verifly Lhe inventory
Ehat we nawe HWe wend it to them, thev double check

ff?
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ic, ln; we Ery Lo get 1t seraighc.

I cthought I1'd scarc off by showing you some
figures because, like importas branch, we aleo process
multitiducs of paper. My etaffing ie very similar to
La;rv'l. although you can double the examiners. I
have 12 examinere, importes has 6, and char'a
hlaic;lly bacause of che volume.

The first chart you see up chere is the
amount of Title ? weapons that are regiscered righc
now. There's approximately 728,000 Title 2 weapons .
Thie firast srapn shows it by stste. Ae you can see,
the largest acacte for Title 2 weapons ie California,
and chen you move right eu down te, | believe chac‘'e
Vermeni, ien‘c ic? yeas.

VOICE: Virgin Ielande.

MR. BUSEY: Virgin Islands. I'm BOTEY.
Virgin lelande, 2.

Of chac 728,000, we cotimace, because we
don‘t have the time nor the ineclination te do it ou a
monthly basie, anywhere becween 150 ro 155,000 ia the

flash grenadee. They come in and vut of the

invencory oo guickly, and vrobably Lhe accuracy w:

(2}
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thoae ie not very good, ;;;iq;ll? because when police
departmente and other law enforcement agencies use
these flash grenadea, they're supposed Lo reporc to
ue. HWe remove them from the inventory. - But it's
-uéh a &untinual turnover. The Kanoae City Police
ntparr-n-ant may report te ue accurately, but the
Sheriff'e Deparctment up inm Utha, wa may not hear from
them.

Some day when wve have the manpowver and we
have the time. we need to go through and separate
these out.

- In fact, we've discusesed within the branch
seccing up poseibly two differsnt ragiecries, juer aeo
the ayscem doeen't becanc cvarburdened. tc eaparate
these cur inte an equal category but a eeparate
category.

The oecond graph shows the amount of
Processing that we dea on a fiscal year baeie for boch
‘34 and ‘95. 95, rthers wvas a elight decrease
becween che Form 1a, Form 28, all the way up te Che
Form 108 that wa pProcess. We processed 214,000

Pieces 'of paper in fiecal wvear *%5 on the

{4

_ﬂ
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registracion of manufacturad weapons and ctranaferred
weapons .

The second graph breake chis down.inte the
type of weapon that we have in the registry fer both
‘94 and *55.

Deatructive devicea, the second category,
is Che largeac. Machine gune, ailencers, any other
weapon, short-barrel shotgune, saved-off shotgune and

shorc-barrel rifles.

I hope that page isn't for a critical
lookup.

The next graph ie the record searchea that
vere completed in 19%5. Ae ycu can eee, our IoCal
recoré eearches by our apecizlisca, of vhich there
are @ix, was 5,368. Of chat, 78.5 percent were
record searches for epecizl agento in the field whe
needed either urgent informzcion or routine, and I'11]

get inco that.

Wa did BB0 court sertificationa fer triale

that cams after the work casze, and we did 586

inventeries for our inspecters in the field and

verifving dealers inventorice
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The next graph, it probably wouldn'e

interest you toe much. Ip gete into cthe speacial
@ccupational tax and the poepulacion of npeti,l
occupational taxpayers, the number of nxnuftntur:rly/
importeres, and C€lass III dealers that are out thefe
becauee we alos are, ebvioualy, concerned about thias

daca base aleo.

Whac I theought I'd mova inco right away ijr
like 1 say, probably either firetc or aecond, hEEaul;
they're both probably co-equs. ie the search thak our
specizliets do, our lock-up specialicts do, of the
NF;TH for epecial agents wihen they're working a case,
when they'ze trying to find ouc if amn individual vho
they had information on hase 2 Ticle 2 weapon, do ve
have that Title 2 weapon regiecered in our data baee.
These procedures are in cffect right now,
There's some changes in here that you prebably
ilfiﬂdr have heard about relative to rthe involvemanr
of management and overaeeing che reoulre thac
Specialiste come up with whan they do a record

agarch,

The record search can by made either by &

(3
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call in by apecial agenta ;i;h ; dedicaced numbaer,

Wa just recencly have conatructed in our work area a
separace four-walled office chat han the Cwo }ﬂnkaup
epecialiste in it. They're isolated from the other
activity of the bramch and the divieien, and their
only responsibilicies are co rvake chese phone calla
from epecial agente who are doing either weapone
pearches or individual searches.

They can either do that by the celephone
number by telephone or by fax machine, which we'wve
r:c:n?ly had inetalled a separate fax machine,
separate from che resc of che diviesion, in Chat room
by iceelf. Thar takae nothing burt look upe. The
search can be reguested by name, by che firearma
serial number, or both.

The specialist that'e eitting in there that
takes Che reguest esnters the information on the HFR
record search form, and there's a lot of information
that wa put on chere relative co cthe name of the
agent, the badge number, the address/relephons
numbar, and of courne all of the informavion that we

can posslbly get from Lhe agent.

(7




10

11

12

13

15

1&

17

1d

i3

z0

21

The more informacion Lhat we receive,

relative to che individual chac they're doing the
search on, the betber. If we have a birch dace,
current address, anything. And of course, a lok of
timce we dom'e, All we get io juat a firet and last
hame. Middle iniciale even halp uo.

Hecauee aa wm'gn through the seareh, the
further we have to g2 Lo make sure it'e right, all
the way back te the actual microfilm recorde and cChe
actual hard copy of the Eranefer regictration
document, even middle initizle ean help ue eliminzste

erraneoun individuala.

For a name seare:, the upecialiar will

#earch che data base, ueing the firet three lecsere
of the lasc name. The example given hers ie Smich,
E-M-1. What happens is, they run the S:M-I. _Thcy‘ll
get, let's may, 10,000 hits on S-M-1. Then they*11
Ffun the stcace and Che S-M-1, and maybe they'll get
400. Ip thia caee, they probably would. Wich some
mare uncemmesn namea, You may only get 3 or 15 ar 20

Nam&ea .

Then they 1] run the Touwrth leceer., Lo ewen
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break ic dewn furthar. Ic'a s-ﬁ.j, and then it'l)l he

T

Let me say that when we testify in. coure,

we testify that the data bzse io 100 percent

accurate. That's what we testify teo. and we will
always testify to cthar, Ras you probably wall know,
that may noc be 100 bercent true. If our data bamse
wae absoclutely error free, we could ?impl? run the
nama of the individual and hie firsc name, and if it
didn't coms up, we could guarantec everyone that that
individusl doesn't have a Title 2 weapen registersd
ta him.

Buc since momacimes in che entry parc of
cthis aame people invert iaccers and vavels, you could
PUL Che name in, it won't come up char way,

8o we run multiple methods of running it.
If the laast name and firet name, if the guy's firot
hame or the lady's firac name, looke like a lant
name, we'll run cthar firaec. We'll inwvert ic, juer co
mee Wwhat we coma up wich.

Sa thie way, we CLry to eliminace the

Pesorbility of have somebody in there whe hao a Title

A
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2 that we comeé up with a reporc that says they do
not. We are going to a new dats base vhoae
capabilities will allow us te do more varied kind of
queries and hopefully better queries, phonetics,
Bound, Scundex (ph). Soundex will help ue.

For a sarial number, we'll jusc search the
exact serial number. We have come up with a couple
of incidences, and thie ehowe the akill of the
epecialietes chat are in chere, where a Z haes looked
like a2 2 and = 2 hae loocked like = Z. If you run the
wreng one, you come up with no registration. If yeou
run cthem beth, you find out chat it ie regiscered
Eﬁ;t way. There wae a mistake in the princing on the
form, or i:_uan a miscake in the cgll in.

So we do the exact serial numbare, but we
de lock for idioesyncracies in the seria number that
might make it more apt that eome kind of inversion
could have caken place.

The especialiasce will analyze che resulca of
the sesarch. Like I say, since che serial number ia
exact, the only recorde where the werial number io

identified, will be provided.
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The Bptcillil£I will elini;ltt records
based on the type and descriprion of the firearm.

For cthe name search, we do che name, we run Fha FFL,
the licennee data base, and the ED& data base with
hhc'nin; to see if therc's any Erade names.

If chere'a any trade names, then wea go back
te the registry to rum the trada name to eee if that
trade name hae any Ticle 2 weaponas regiscerad to ic,
because in many caeses the agento call in with a name.
That individual turne out to be = licenses, bturns out
to be a specizl occupational taxpayer.

ARlthough there was nothing registered under
his name, chere vere weapons regilotered under his
trade mame, hie company name. In many caases, Chey
may have two or three different trade names.

Again, ae | emphasized a minute age, to
ensure the thoroughness of the search, the requesting
agent should supply ae much informacion as he
possibly ecan. KA lot of times that information ie
oenly firsr name/laetc name, and that'e all he has,
baaed on an informant or cip or whatever, and thac'e

what we run wicth, is thac.

(/3
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I m&n;ianed befora we'll r;n thea ;BT datca
base and we'll rum the FFL daca baoce, licensss data
base, toc oee if we come up wicth anything there, and
then we'll go back to the NPRTR to find ouk if they
have any weapons regietered te them.

Depending on what we come up with, when we
come up with similar names, and we den't have a date
of birch, if we come up with Allison Scevens or Tom
Buseey, and we come up he's in a differenc aCate,
we'll get the hard copy or the mierefilm copy of the
icthﬂl transefer recerd to see if the date of birth is
the same as the agent hae.

Depending on tha volume chat wa'ra dealing
with, a2 lec of times what wva're doing new is wa are
sending -- I have been there a year nqﬁ, and befora I
g0t there, we were sending basically either hit or ne
hit. and we'd send the hit. We would send possibles
if they were real clese, but due to some difficultiee
that wve'wve had and to make sure Qhac we den't -- we
Cry nort to eend the wvrong informacien, we have been

sending probably more information than the agant

Cr

needn
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13

If we come up with, if chere's 22
Tom Smithe in the State of Arkansas that have
regiacered weapona, we send all 22 Tem SnithaT sven
if the date of birth is different, just to giwve the
ag:ht the opportunity teo do the investigative work,
rather than juet telling, here's the one cthar we
think might be iz, the othar 19 we don't think are
ic. We'll lec the agent decids wherher that other 18
might poseibly be the individual they're looking for.

That's why we can go all the way back to
the hard copy. We can go sll the way back to the
microfilm te really pin down if the individual we
hava ie the ons you'ras icoking for.

Whnat wa've ecartad, since cthere was &
problem in Balcimore witk a look up and there waa a
problem up in Minnesots, I think it wae, abouk eix
monthe zgc, from now on, before negative informatien
ie eent to anm agent -- if the agent indicaces thac
ic'es a routine, he's nar iwp = big ruah for it, we
used to get it back co him on the asme business day.
How if an agent saye it's routine, he may mnot gec it

back uncil the next business day. If ic's &n ursent.

(ﬁj?
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s ALY get it back that day.
We'll call the infermacion back te him apd

the hard copy of the information will be nlilpd 1.1

him. If he needs it real faest, we FedEx ik.

i The reason why the routine may not get back

the eame day anymore is all che negative

information -- by negative, I mean, if the apecialisc

dosa a look up on a name and comes up with zers,

can't find that name anywhere, before that

informztion goece back to the field agent, it comes to

the branch chief's ocffice. The branch chief sits

down and basically doesn't do anymore than what the

apecialier did in the look up, but goes over all the

informacion on che printouts Co aee if all the

procedures have been followed right cte the vary end.
Did they look at the FFL data base. Did

they loeck a2t the 50T data base. Did they have names

that were aimilar co the name that was requeasted.

Did they check out the acctual hard copy of the

microfilm o eee if chis wae the indiwvidual and

somgone had juet misspelled it when it went inte the

*

data base.
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Once che branch ch_j_e:':' reviewa chia
completely, then he'll recurn the information te che
look-up epecialiet, who will communicate, transmit

thies information to the field agent.

.

What we're doing ie, we'res hoping that by
thie esecond lewvel of review, and ic really dosean't
say anything negative about the look-up epecialier at
all, becauea the people wa have right now have been
deing it for a long time and they're excellent in
their searches; but you do these secarches and you run

these printoffs on the screen and you track down

these princoffs hour afrer hour foar a full day.

1 remember during the Oklahoma City bombing
we were running it 24 houre a dav. T think we ran iz
for about two weeka strazight. Sometimaze things are

misscd because there's only so many minutes in an

hour and eo many houre in a day. So this gives the

branch chief time to juet eit there and say, geez, 1
wonder if thie Ivan Smith might be the Ewvan Smich
that the agent wanta. It's the came otate. Then we

check to eee maybe if it's in the osame clity chac che

a8ent ‘e looking for thie guy at.

7
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Se it gives a litcle more opportunity eo

ecope out different posesibilicies. The epecialiaca
are, like I say, they're turning theee thinge. cur all
day leng for eight hours.

%0 we're hoping that eliminates the
posaibility cthat anything goes out erronecus becauae
we know you'wre basing yeur warrancte on it, you're
basing your entries on it, and you certainly den'c
want a Form 4 waved in your face when you go in thare
o ehow that the guy does have a legally-registered
Title 2 weapon. I*we heard that's happened. I'm nect
Bure ., f

Liks 1 say, we'll giwve cthe informatien baek
by teleprone and chen we'll send hard copies back tc
you .,

At that point, the log entry is clossd sut,
and we maintain these files For future reference in
cafde one or cthe octher of us has to OYA for one reascn
or another,

The important facterse, again, are: If it's
communicaced to the field agemte, and I believe chat
my boes, Terry Cates. who's down - - well, he's back

(75
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now, but he waes down at the canference in South

Florida with the district direcrors and SACa - - one
of the topica he was talking about, again, is, loak
up, the lock ups that we do for agcnte.

The more information that we can get over
the phone en the indiwvidual that you're looking for,
tha hﬁt;ﬂr it ie for ue and che beccer che
information comesa hack.

I maan, if you have a middle inicial, giwve
it to us. If he has a "junior" er a "senior” on the
end, give it to ua.

..Thﬂ second part of tha informacrion, che
routine and urgent, we've already gone over.

S50, egain, I kind of conaider this probably
the most imporcant support funccien chat we have.
Equal ko it, of course, in maintaining the accuracy
of the datas base to begin with.

If che infoarmation that'ea in the data base
ie not accuraca, it deesn‘t make any difference how
good of a search we do, ic'll come out wrang.

S the information on the 720,000 weapono

Lhat are in the data baoe hao Lo be 100 percent
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is

accurace. Like I told you heforo, we teacify in
court and, of course, ocur certificacions tescify to
that, teoe, whan we're not phyeically thare to

testify, that we are 100 percent accurate.

But we have found inetances in our records
where names have been misepelled, they'wvae been

invercted; wvowelsg i-a have been changed; and, of

c;urae, compucter programe only pull up what You put
in.

We'wve made monumental strides in correcting
this. A majer correctien ewvent teck place in 1586,
About a year age, we inetitucted a guality review team
in the divisien. That'e rhres individuais vhe review
every tranafer record that goeon chrough an examiner

toe register a Title I waapon, or te transfer a Title
2 weapon.

Before it actually geto entered into the
data baee and acays there permanencly, it gose from
that examiner to a specisliat, whe reviaows ic and Che
acreen to esee if the name waa apelled correccly when
ie wam pur in, becauvese chvioualy that's the moat

tMPertant thing, 16 the name apd the wpelling

FRICDLY, woirs o =
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erder that it*s put in. And, of couree, the serial
number of che weapon, type of veapono and the

dascriprion of the weapon.

This guality review team, when I firet came
in ; Year ago, Our error rate wae between 4% and 50
percent, 8o you can imagine what the accuracy of the
HFRTR could be, if your error raén‘n 4% ro 50
percent. The error rate now is down cto balow 8

percent, and that's teotal. That'e common errore and

critical errors.

We do & little finagling upa&iirs on
wvhat -- you know, we coneider a common error is an
error in the daces base encry, but it doeen't affect a
loak up. It wouldn't hurc an agent who doean':

really have any damage.

A ericticz]l error io one where the
gentleman‘s name io spellec wrong. Thooe errer rates
are probably below 31 percentc. The total error race's

about & percent.

We hope the QRT team has made sure that,
eince a year ago, all the entries thact go in are

sbeolutely 100 percent aceurate

47-740 98 -7
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The only way we can go back, We hawvae a
project -- wa sotablished a preoject, we eacablished a
task f-:-r_cn. We haven't begun yet because we haven't
converted to the new data base. hs ocon as the new
dat; base comes into effect, we'll begin the task
force assignment.

What we're going to do ie we‘re going te go
back, scarcing wich the laceat entry and working back
te the oldest entry and ;nvieu every hard copy-of
every document with ite entry into the data base to
see if it'e correct. 1 think eoriginally we figured
téiﬂ would take 781 man daye to do thie with fiwve
people eictcing acr a computer eight hours a day.

But ic'e the only way chat wa can feel thar
wa can ever get it complecely accurare. It was fine
to begin putting everything in accurate a year age or
at least be guarantesd a year ago it wae accurate,
but what are you geing te do wvicth the entries that ge
back te the early ‘808 and the ‘708 and che "60a?

Thie ie che only vay we feel we could

correct ic. Ho one in ISD or no one chac I°wve known
has come up with a program that we can wae. Thios new
{'.‘:",?.]
- =

FRIFR) = 3 e
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dara base will help we. And che reason why we'rg

waiting ie because the new daca baoc will put fields
and mepus in there. 1 believe it comea from
Ed Owens' shop, or maybe it's Jerry out at Traeing

*

Center, has ownership of the data base dezaling with
the weapons data base.

' Oonce chac goea in, if we have an HMP5 in
there thac's lieced as an MPS, this will cerrectc chat
te bring it -- te correct ic ae an MPS5. Bur you
can't do anything -- there's no datz base, thst 1
know Of. & no program, to correct misepellings of
names .

We will hawve an azddroeos. We were supposed
Lo have an addresa correction, zip code in che data
base, but wa'll eee when it finelly gete converted
over . I'm not sure.

And the third thing we do ie for field
inapectora who de regualatory compliance inepections,
They call inco ue Co get an invencvory from us of
Ticle I weapone. We eend cthe inventory out. They do
the physical inventery, and we make adjuctments to
sctile any problemo Letwees the phyowival inventory

(33
e
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and the uri;:l:an invencary,

Thac g really che end of my presentacion.
I wanted to concentrate on those chree areas., I
wanted to leave time for 0 and Ao, because I figured
there might be eome @ and Re on the lock up.

(Pauae.)

He qguesticns. Okay. Thank you very much.

iEnd of reguesaced eXcerpt. |

@
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THE COURT: All right.

MADAM CLERK: Criminal Number 95-54-NN United-
Btates of America wersus John Daniel Leasure.

Is the government ready to proceed, Ms. llloé?

M5. ALLEN: Yes, Your Honor.

MADAM CLERF: Defense ready, Mr. Montague?

MR. MONTAGUE: Yes, ma‘am.

THE COURT: Let me make some notes and I‘1l Be
right with you. Let the record reflect that the
defendant, John Daniel Leasure, is present in person and
with his attorney, Mr. David Montague. And the file
wuuih reflect that pursuant to an indictment returned in
the fall of 1995, this matter came on early in January,
as I recall, for trial on the defendant’s pleas of not
guilty.

He was arraigned on January the 18th and, let me
get the date straight, he was indicted on November the
14th. It came on for trial on the 18th.and 19th of
January, and on January. the 19th, the Court found --
continued the matter to look over the record, and on
February the 6th, the Court announced it’s wverdict that
he was guilty of Count 1, Count 2, Count 3, Count & and
not guilty of Counts 4 and 5.

Thereafter, Mr. Leasure through his attorney filed-

several motions. The matter was then continued for

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
Norfolk - (B04) 625-6695:
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sentencing and for the receipt of a presentence report.

In the meantime the defendant has filed a2 motion for a
new trial and the matter i= here on that motion as
supplemented and also for a review of the presentence
report at the sentencing. I haven‘t really set motioms
as to the proceeding but, Mr. Montague, I assume that
your motion for a new trial would be foremost, and I’ll
be glad to hear you with regard to that. Of course, I
have your brief and matters filed in connection with
that and have reviewed them in detail.

ME. MONTAGUE: I'm not going to read them to you,
Your Henor. I‘m sure that you're well familiar with
them. One of the fundamental requirements on the
Government in any criminal prosecution is to make known -
any exculpatory evidence of which the Government
reasonably knows.

In this case -- let me go back to the beginning.
The thing that has troubled me about this case all alun§
is that this is in that set of Federal statutes - and I
say Federal because I don‘'t know of any state statutes
like this - where there is no requirement of scienter or
mens rea or moral turpitude in order to hold a person
guilty of a felony even though he be an honorable and
law abiding citizen like this defendant simply making

good faith mistakes that the law requires or having rule

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
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changes that he doesn‘t know about convert him --
criminalize what is otherwise innocusus and nondangercus
conduct, seriocus criminal acts.

These felonies all carry ten-year sentences
potentially and $250,000 fines. The Court relied in its
conviction on the case of U.S, v, Freed, which is at 401
U.3. 601, a 1971 case but the holding of that case that
no spacjfjﬁ intent need be proved has been called into
very serious guestion and I think overruled by the.case
of Staples against U.5. and that was decided by the
Supreme Court in 1994 in a decision by Justice Thomas.
We’ve recited that decision to Your Honor in our
materials that we filed.

Freed involved a gentleman who was in possession of
hand grenades, and his defense essentially was that he
didn*t know that there was anything wrong with that.

And the Court believed that inherently there was
something wrong with that and that there was no way he
would have been surprised if he had learned that, in
fact, a private citizen is not supposed to possess hand
grenades.

The Staples case involved a man who owned an AK-15
which i= a gun that can be converted. It is normally a
semi-automatic weapon that requires the pull of a

trigger to fire each round but can be converted inte an

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
Morfolk - (B804) &625-86695
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automatic firearm and, hence, be a machine-gun within

the meaning of the HWFA. And he contended that he did
not know that was a capability of the weapon.

The Court refused to so ilnstruct the jury that he
didn“t -- that- they could consider that and szo the
Supreme Court reversed and did so specifically saying
that the reasoning U.5. v. Freed provided little support
for dispensing with mens rea in this case, that case
involving the gentleman with the AK-15.

This case is not like that. In this case we have a
highly scphisticated gun person, a federal licensee
liceésed az a manufacturer who, as the Court knows from
material previously submitted, is highly regarded in his
field, holds one of the top patents in the development
of silencer or suppressor technology. Early on at the
arraignment, which I think the Court didn‘t mention the
date, I beliewve it was Janunary the 5th == I think it was
in December actually. Yes, it was December 5th.

THE COURT: My records indicate it was --

MS. ALLEN: It was December 1st.

‘THE COURT: December 1st, okay.

ME. MONTAGUE: This defendant was arraigned before
Judge Bradberry, and at that time Miss Allen was not

available but there was somebody there from the BATF and

there was somebody there from the U.S5. Attorney’s

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
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Cffice. I turned over to them copies of all of the
documents that became the evidence in this case of

Mr. Leasure’s attempts to reverse certain transfers of
the weapons for which he was inﬁi:ted_

And I, frankly, thought that that was going to be
the end of the case. And I think Miss Allen thought it
might be as well but she said that -- she said when I
talked to her on the phone she said she =zent Evérything
up to Washington to be analyzed and she‘d let me know.
So not too long before Christmas she called me and zaid
that, in fact, the ATF decided they still had a case. I
nsk;& her what it could possibly be but she said, well,
she wasn‘t going to tell me or she said she wasn‘t going
to discuss her case over the phone. There was no
invitation to come and discuss it in person either.

What she knew and what the ATF knew was that -- as
we did not learn until we heard it on the stand -- was
that Mr. Schaible of the ATF would inform us that they
had changed their rules on how one went about reversing
a transfer or voiding under the commission of the HFA
and that the procedure followed by Mr. Leasure was the
procedure that had existed as far as he knew forever.
And Mr. Schaible said that had they gotten the transfer
request or the woiding reguest from him. The new

procedure involved sending back a form which he had to

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
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fill out and it had to go back to Washington to be
approved.

And Mr. Schaible also said there‘s no way that
Mr. Leasure could have known that because they didn’t
notify anybody in the field, it was just aﬂmethinq to be
learned on & case by case basis as you tried the old
technigque, I suppose, they would tell you what the new
procedure was.

Well, not knowing that, we were not prepared to
prove to the Court that, in fact, all of these transfer
voidings had been faxed to the Government in the usual
manner. We would have and have subsequently found all
of the forgotten i:ihnne records that show without a doubt
that for 24 minutes on the 16th day of March,

Mr. Leasure faxed from his fax machine in Saluda to the
fax machine of the ATF at their weapons registry 24
minutes worth of documents that were these wery
transfers submitted in court.

It wouldn‘t show up on the phone bill if they had
not actually been received just like an incomplete phone
call doesn‘t show up on a phone bill, so there‘s no
question that he sent them. There‘s no guestion that
they got them. We don’t know what they did with them
after they got them if they put them in the shredder or

in the trash can or if the building burned down.

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
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We don’t know what happened but all we do know is

that when Mr. Schaible showed up here to testify, he
said we have no record of having received them, which is
not the equivalent of not having received them just that
he was unable to tell us what had happened. We
certainly did our part or at least what Mr. Leasure
thought was his part in following what he then knew to
be the procedure.

The Court*s decision turned not only on the Freed
case but also on the exhibits put in evidence by the
Government, these things in blue bags with the little
ribbons on them that said that the weapons in the
various counts of the indictment were not properly
registered with the WFA. The Court treated that as
true, as anybody would a government agent’s testimony
and exhibits, obviously, is going to be taken as true
without some kind of very powerful E?id.em::a to the
contrary.

But what the ATF also then knew and didn‘t tell
anybody was that at the time in question of this case,
which is February of ‘94, the Court will recall that
this -- the actual bust of Mr. Leasure’s place of
business and trial were about two yﬁar; apart and in
that two-year period, the firearms registry was taken

over by a gentleman by the name of Thomas Busey or Busey
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= I’‘m not sure how you pronounce his name - and

Mr. Busey held a briefing in October of ‘95 saying that
when he took over a year before, which would have been
October of 794 and times prior to that, the agency was
suffering from & 50 percent error rate in its
determination of what firearms were registered properly.

He said on Page 19 of the transcript that we gave
the Court, "When I first came in a year ago, our error
rate was between 49 and 50 percent." This particular
briefing wasz conducted on a tape and the gentleman who
I*ve become acquainted with since the trial through the
Freedom of Information Act has also tried to get the
tape, so far haz not been able to do that. But in any
event, at the very time when these undoubtable documents
were being produced in February ‘94, they were subject
to a 50 percent error rate.

How, I don’t know when knowledge like that becomes
reascnable doubt as a matter of law, but it seems to me
that with 50 percent, you‘ve got an egual chance of the
Government being wrong. I would think you‘re there at
an error rate of 50 percent.

Again, we were not told that. As a matter of fact,
I‘m informed that the ATF tried to suppress that
particular briefing, tried to have the transcript and

the tape destroyed. It was not until March that they
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were produced under the Freedom of Information Act. Of
course, our trial was long over by the time that
information would have done us any good.

It certainly seems to me something for the Court to
consider in deciding whether or not this case needs: to

be retried, that kind of what I would consider dynamite

‘evidence should have been made available to us.

Certainly, the ATF knew about it and whether uiss.allln
did or not I don‘t know.

But when I filed my letter -- when I supplemented
my pleadings in the new trial part of this case on March
the 25th, we sent that to Miss Allen by certified mail.
She received it on the 26th, and on the 2Z6th she filed
part of the same transcript by Mr. Busey but her filing
left off the important pages for some reason. Whether
she knew that or whether that’s what the ATF gave her, I
don‘t know but I believe her transmission guit on Page
15 and all of the important stuff is after that.

And her pleadings says that we‘re not conceding
that we had to give that to us but they did anyway. So
I'm not going to say there’s anything monstrous or
wicked going on here but it certainly appears to me that
this defendant was entitled to better treatment by his
Government than he has gotten in the prosecution of this

case. Essentially, I believe that covers it, Your
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Honor .

THE COURT: All right, sir.

MS5. ALLEN: Your Homer, if I can I‘d like to go in
the order that the motions are filed just for the ;.‘Ercurd
gince 1 suspect this will go for appeal. The firﬂ".
motion that the defendant filed was a motion for a new
trial, and he filed that motion right after the Court
found his client guilty. I would just like to argue in
the first motion, ¥Your Honor, that counsel is cnrr;ct
that on the day of the arraigmnment, the Jencks material
and the discovery materials were provided to the
deftnd&ﬂi on December 1st of 1995. The discovery
materials included Government Exhibits 7-1 through 7-5.

Now, those are all the certified copies of
nonregistration. And the Court will recall 7-1 went to
Count 2 of the indictment; 7-2 went to Count 3 of the
indictment; 7-3 went to Count 4 of the indictment; 7-4
went to Count 5 of the indictment; 7-5 went to Count 6
of the indictment.

I was not present at that arraignment. Bob
Bradenham was present with ATF Agent Joe Perkins. The
evidence was turned over by the Government. It is true
that I did subseguently receive a packet from
Mr. Leasure’s attorney regarding documentation.

I had previously spoken to Mr. Montague prior to
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the December 1st arraignment. Once the indictment had
been filed by the Grand Jury, Mr. Montague did tell me
that he had paperwork that would cause the Gowvernment to
dismiss its case. I told Mr. Montague that I would not
be present- at thc.Dtctmhtr 1st arraignment but that I
would have all of the evidence there for him. I ;skad
him to bring the documentation to the arraigmment, that
I was unfamiliar with the documents that he was
describing to me owver the telephone but that I would
take it and send it to my expert in D.C. and get back to
him on.that.

The documentation that I did receive after the
December 1st, 1995, arraignment was, in fact, what is
now Defense Exhibit 1-8 through Defense Exhibit -- I
mean, Defense Exhibit 1-8 through Defense Exhibit 10-18.
I received those materials probably in mid December
right before Christmas.

I forwarded those materials to Mr. Schaible. I
asked him to review those materials in their entirety
and compare it with all of the certificates that he had
previously provided as listed in 7-1 through 7-5 and to
let me know if that changed his opinion.

It was in early January right after MNew Years that
I spoke with Mr. Schaible and my question to him was

solely, does this change your opinion. His response to
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me was no. I sald thank you very much, called
Mr. Montague and told Mr. Montague that it did not
change the opinion of ocur expert and we were not
dismissing the indictment, but I did say I was not
trying the case on file. I had no further discussions
with Mr. Schaible regarding why it did not change his
opiniomn.

If we lock at -- if the Court locks at the
defendant’s first motion for a new trial, I think the

case law that they’ve cited and the case law that the

Government ‘s filed shows that on the first motion alone,
which the defendant has titled motion for a new trial,
should be denied.

The Court is well aware that the defendant has to
show that the evidence that he i=s seeking is favorable
to him, that it‘s material, and that the prosecution
failed to discleose that. Based on the evidence
presented before the Court right now, all that the Court
has iz the fact that decuments were exchanged by the
parties and the Government decided based upon
Mr. Schaible‘s opinion that the indictment would not be
dismizssed.

The case law that the Government is relying upon,
number one, is that the Govermnment feels that the

defendant can‘t meet its burden and is relying on the
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first motion to show that the evidence was favorable.
There’s been no evidence presented by the defendant that
shows there was any discussion by Mr. Schaible or myself
regarding any favorable evidence that the defendant hnd_
requested.

Az I'm proffering to the Court as an officer of
this Court, my contact with Mr. Schaible was wvery short.
I wanted to know if it changed his opinion. He's the
expert. He said no. I didn’t need to know at that til!
why it didn‘t change his opinion.

Additionally, the defendant must show that its
material, that being the evidence that he’s regquested.
And the Fourth Circuit has defined material as being a
reasonable probability that had the evidence been
disclosed to the defense, the result of the proceeding
would be different. That’s a Kelly decision, Fourth
Circuit 1994 decision, which is at 35 F.3d 929.

Additionally, Your Honor, the defendant not only
has to show that its material but that it‘s related to
guilt or innoccence, and I don‘t think that the defendant
has done that. There‘’s three cases that the Government
cited in its brief all of which deal with exculpatory
matters versus inculpatory matters.

To be guite candid with you, I thought that' the

documents were a forgery or false. Mr. Schaible d4id not
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tell me that. I asked someone who's been with the ATF

for 25 years who's in a high leadership position within
the ATF and very well respected within the bureau, he
told me it didn’t change his opinion. That’s all I
needed to know. I cited the Adverse case --

THE COURT: Well, tell me -- I don’'t have the
exhibits right here before me. What waz it that
Mr. Montague produced that you sent to Mr. Schaible,
just so I won‘t be off on the wrong fork in the road?

M5. ALLEN: It was Defense Exhibit 1 -- Defense
Exhibit 1-8 ==

- THE COURT: Young lady, do you hawve the exhibits?

MADAM CLERK: MNo, sir. Did they not go with you to
the file? I-11 get them.

THE COURT: We didn't have any exhibits, did we?

LAW CLERK: We did at one point. I don’t know.

THE COURT: Well, tell me was it Exhibit 18, is
that --

M5. ALLEN: There’s a whole bunch of exhibits and
they‘re listed Defense Exhibit 1, Defense Exhibit 2,
Defense Exhibit 3, Defense Exhibit 4, Defense Exhibit 5,
Defensze Exhibit &, Defense Exhibit 7, Defense Exhibit &,
and then the additional documents were Defense Exhibits
10 through 18,

MADMM CLERK: I have the clerk checking on it,
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17

Judge .

MS. ALLEN: Some of those documents have wvoid
written on them. Some of them are ==

THE COURT: I remember now what you‘re talking
about .

MS. ALLEM: Kot all of them had wvoid written on
them. Some of them had void written on them, some of
them Agent -- I mean, Mr. Schaible testified that --

THE COURT: These were all of the transfers to
Mr. 0‘Quinn then it became unnecessary for Mr. Leasure‘s
purposes and were marked void across the front and. the
que_atiun iz whether these were ever sent, one, whether
they were marked void, two, and, three, did they ever
arrive at the -- were they ever received by ATF.

MS. ALLEN: That‘s correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What else?

ME. ALLEN: That’s all that I forwarded to
Mr. Schaible.

THE COURT: All right. Go ahead. ;

MS. ALLEN: And what the Court also needs to know
is that all of those decuments dealt with all of the
counts other than Count 1 of the indictment. Your
Honor, the Government’s position i= still that all of
those exhibits, Defense Exhibits 1 through 8 and Defense

Exhibits 10 through 18 are not exculpatory matters. I
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18

think it was an attempt to perpetrate a fraud on the
Court, to be guite candid with you.

And in the three cases that I cited in my brief,
the Adverse case, the Jopes v, Washington case and the
Barker case tells the Court that the Government is under
no duty to either disclese all they know about their
case or disclose the police investigation that’s ﬁeen
done on the case or to disclose anything that s not
exculpatory and that’s what we did.

There was one case of Jopes v, Washington case a
Seventh Circuit case that dealt with firearms and the
cite for that is 15 F.3d, 671. It was denied at 114
Supreme Court 2753 and the Court said that there was no
great wiolation in failing to disclose the firearms work
sheet because the evidence wasn’t exculpatory.

That’s one of the only three cases that deal with
firearms but, again, we didn‘t think the ewvidence that
the defense was providing to us was truthful evidence;
we thought it was an attempt to perpetrate a fraud on
the Court. For that reason on the first defendant’s
motion for a new trial, we‘d ask the Court to deny that
motion.

The defendant then filed a second motion to dismiss
only Count 6 of the indictment, and in that case, Your

Honor, the defendant‘s alleging basically that since the
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word "firearm"™ was not used in the count as opposed to
"weapon" that that count should be dismissed. The
Government ‘s relying on Pederal Rule of Criminal o
Procedure 7-C-1 that tells us what the indictment shall
state.

The Fourth Circuit law tells us that you‘re to look
at the elements of the offense as it’s listed in the
statute. fhe Court is to look to see whether or not the
defendant can prepare a defense to the charge and
whether or not that defendant is protected against
double jeocpardy if, in fact, that same defendant is
suﬁsequentlf charged and that’s the Daniels case, Fourth
Circuit 1992 case.

If you look at Count & of the indictment, it
charges that the defendant knowingly and unlawfully
possessed a weapon, number one, and, number two, that it
was not registered. Title 26 United States Code Section
5845-B defines weapon and Title 1B USC Code Section
92183 defines firearms. And if you look at both of
those definitions, definition number one is listed in
Count & and number two very similar. In Title 26 United
States Code 5861-D makes it unlawful to possess a
firearm which is not registered.

If you pulled the elements out of Count 6 and if

you look at the statute, the penal statute not the
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definitional statute but the penal statute for which
he’s charged, you will see that Count 6 is in compliance
with the penal statute in the Freed case, which lists
the three elements that the Government has to prove
beyond a reasonable doubt and, that is, plioasassiun, that
they are firearms, and that they were not registered.

The defendant alsoc says that Count & does not use
the word "firearm" but instead uses the word "weapon.™
The Government’s position would be weapon and firearm
are words of similar import. Weapon is specific enough
in the count to allow the defendant to know what
specific firearm he was charged with possessing and not
having properly registered to him, that Count 6 allows
him to contest that charge properly, and that Count &
will prevent him from being charged with possessing and
not having registered that same weapon that‘s charged in
Count & thereby protecting him from double jeocpardy.

In Count 6 the Government refers to the d.efin!.tinn
of both "weapon" and "firearm." Again, I said the'
definitions are basically the same and then the
Government found some case law -- Supreme Court case law
and Fourth Circuit case law that =ays, plus, if the
defendant raises the issue to dismiss the count at the
return of the verdict that this Court as well as the

Fourth Circuit will lock at the challenge to the é:n.unt
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under a more liberal standard, and that s the Fogle

decision which is at 901, F.2d 23, 1990 decision where a
cert was denied and the Court found the objection was
made at the return of the verdict. Any review for
alleged defect was to be reviewed if at all under a
liberal standard and there’s the Sutton case and the
Hooker case here.

In conclusion, Your Honor, it’s wvery clear that
Count & described a very specific weapon whether itfs a:
wieapon or a firearm, I think that‘s immaterial. - They re
words that are very similar as to import as the-Court
said. The weapon in Count 6 was seized pursuant to a
lawful search warrant and that was Government Exhibit
6-1 during the trial, the actual weapon. Government
Exhibit 9-1 was the actual search warrant.

And Mr. Schaible testified that the weapon was not
properly registered to the defendant on February  Bth,
1995, whieh was done by the certificate 7-4 and then in
Government Exhibit 8-1 which was the ATF report that we
introduced saying that the weapon functioned as
designed, and it‘s a firearm and a weapon, so we would
ask the Court to deny the defendant’s motion to dismiss
Count & of the indictment for the reasons I've Jjust
stated e.\nd the law.

THE COURT: Thank you, Miss Allen..
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Mr. Montague, do you want to -—-

M5. ALLEN: And then, Your Honor, I‘d like to
address the Brady issue based on --

THE COURT: What?

MS. ALLEN: I have one more issue I'd like to
address.

THE COURT: How?

MS. ALLEN: Yes, sir. The last motion that
Mr. Montague filed was his supplemental motion for a new
trial. Wwhat I‘d like to do for that, Your Honor, is to
put on evidence regarding that for the record to protect
the record and for that I71l be relying on Special Agent
Schaible. And the issue will be whether or not the
packet of material which I sent to the Court and sent to
Mr. Montague as soon as our office received it is, in
fact, Brady material and whether or not --

THE COURT: Well, that’s a choice for me to make.

MS. ALLEM: That*s a cheoice for you to make, Your
Honor, but I would like -- I know the Court’s gone
through it but I don‘t think the record is clear as to
what the documents are and what impact, if any, it would
have had on Mr. Schaible’s testimony regarding the
weapons that were before the Court.

THE COURT: Well, bring him on.

ME. ALLEN: ©Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.
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GARY SCHAIBLE, a Witness, called on behalf of the
Government, having been first duly sworn, was examined
and testified ai follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BEY MS5. ALLEN:

Q. Please state your full name for the record.

A. Gary Schaible.

Q. And are you the same Gary Schaible that
testified before Judge MacKenzie during Mr. Leasure‘s
trial?

A. Yes, I am.

Tﬁz COURT: How do you spell Schaible, I don’t have
it right here in front of me?

THE WITHESS: S-c-h-a-i-b-l-e.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

BY MS. ALLEN:

Q. And, Mr. Schaible, I’m going to ask the court
security officer to give you what I‘ve marked as
Government Exhibit 10-1 through 10-8 and also a copy for
the Court and a copy of these documents have already
been provided to Mr. Montague for Mr. Leasure‘’s benefit.

Mr. Schaible, if you would, ;'ﬂ ask you to first
lock at Government Exhibit 10-1 and I believe that’s
entitled The Role Call Training. Do you have that

document there?
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A. Yes, I do.

Q. Okay. And are you familiar with that document?

A. Yes, I am.

g. And have you seen it before?

A. Yes, I have.

¢. And have you read it from top to bottom? -

A. Yes, I have.

Q. And if you could now look at Govermnment Exhibit
10-2 and I believe that’s entitled --

THE COURT: Well, let’s label that. Is 10-1 the
Busey --

MS. ALLEN: That’s correct, the Role Call Training
of Mr. Busey.

THE COURT: Busey’s statement. All right. Go
ahead. 10 dash what?

MS. ALLEM: That was 10-1, Your Honor, the next one
is Government Exhibit --

THE COURT: All right. We’ve got that. Next.
BY MS5. ALLEN:

Q. 10=2. And, Mr. Schaible, I believe that is
entitled Memorandum, dated December 1st, 1995,

A. 10-2 is the statement.

Q. ©Ch; I‘'m sorry. 10-2 -=- you’re right. 10-2 is
the handwritten sworn statement of Tom Busey dated

November 30th, 1995; is that correct?
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A. Teas, it is.

Q. Okay. And if you could look at Government
Exhibit 10-3.

A. I hawve it.

Q. .And I believe that you hawve there a memorandum
dated December 1st, 1995, and a memorandum dated
December 11th, 1995, and an incident report concerning
the ATF internal investigation of Mr. Busey‘s statement;
is that correct?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. . And if you can look at Government Exhibit 10-4,
I believe ghnt those are minutes of a meeting held on
Nevember 9% through 10, 1994, to address firearms and
explosives date of integration; is that correct?

A. Yes.

0. And if you could look at Government Exhibit
10-5, I believe that’s a memo dated February 9th, 1996,
and supporting material constituting the report of the
recent audit of the WFA data base; is that correct?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. And if you can look at Government Exhibit 10-6,
I believe that‘s a memo dated April 30th, 1991,
concerning the accuracy of the NFRTR; is that correct?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. And Government Exhibit 10-7 iz a memo -- a
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correspondence, excuse me, between Senators McClure,
M-c-C-l-u-r-e, and Senator Bayh, B-a-y-h dated from
December 1979 through Januvary 1980 relative to the
accuracy of the NFRTER, correct? .

A. Okay. The first letter is October 15th, 1979,
actually.

Q. Okay.

A. And there‘s -- I can‘t read the date on the
last one, it says January 1980 but I can‘t read the
actual date. .

Q. Okay. And then Government Exhibit 10-8, the
last exhibit that’'s there, it’s & two-page affidavit of
Gary Schaible dated February 13th, 1996.

A. Correct, yes.

Q. And, Mr. Schaible, is it fair that you have
familiarized yourself with the total contents of
Government Exhibits 10-1 through 10-87

A, Yes.

Q. The first question I have for you, sir, is this
the first time in preparation for this hearing today
that you have reviewed thuse.muturials that are before
you?

A. Ho.

Q. When did you first review that packet that’s in

total there before you, what month and year?
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A. It was in late February 1996 for the total
packet .

Q. And do you know the facts and circumstances as
to how you got possession of that packet generally?

A. Yes, I received a copy of what the U.5.
Attorneys*s Office sent out, I mean, Justice sent out to
the U.5. Attorney*s Cffice.

Q. Okay. And is it fair to say that that packet
of information specifically Government Exhibit 10-2
through 10-8, was the result of an internal audit that
was done after Mr. Busey made his statements which are
in Gﬂva;nmant Exhibit 10-17

A. TYas.

Q. Is it also fair to say, sir, based upon your
knowledge of the exhibits here that Government Exhibit
10-1 through 10-8 once they were compiled by the
internal audit were subseguently sent by DOJ to the
respective U.S. Attorney*s Qffices across the country?

A. TYes.

Q. And is it alzo fair to say, sir, that in late
February or early March once I received this packet, I
called you and asked you if you knew about the packet?

A. Yes, you did.

THE COURT: Well, whether you knew about it or not,

obviously, the Department of Justice knew about all of
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this material, Mr. Schaible.

THE WITNESS: At what time, sir?

THE COURT: Well, from -- the letter of the Role
Call Training Statement was 10-2 was a statement géttan
from Mr. Busey on December the 1st, 1995, so they knew
about it at that time, the problem had arisen by wvirtue
of his statement.

THE WITHESS: Yes.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MS. ALLEN:

Q. Agent Schaible, you are a part of this packet
that‘s been sent out across the country in Govérqm&nt
Exhibit 10-8. Why were you asked to submit that
affidavit and what, in essence, was the gist of your
affidavit?

A. I was asked to submit it because I was
basically the senior person in the NFA Branch, had been
around the longest, and was more familiar with the
procedures and operations of the branch. The gist of it
was that what Mr. Buszey had sald was, you know,
exaggerating the situation, you know, that the problems
that he said were there weren‘t there.

2. And who was it that asked you to review these
mn;arials and submit your affidawvit?

A. Our office of chief counsel.
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Q. So would it be your testimony that that packet
as has been provided to the Court and to Mr. Montague
was not in existence when you testified during
Mr. Leasure’s trial?

A. HNo, it wasn‘t.

THE COURT: Say that again. Did you =say that this
material wasn’t available before Mr. Leasure’s trial
which was in =--

MS. ALLEN: January.

THE COURT: January 18th and 19th but the
Department of Justice had it, Mr. Schaible?

THE WITHESS: Well, yeah. The packet -- the total
packet wasn’t in existence. There were bits and pieces,
yes, but it hadn’t been put together. They were still
looking at -- seeing what exactly the import of this
Was.

BY M5. ALLEN:

0. HNow, when you testified during the trial, your
testimony dealt with Counts 2 through & of the
indictment, is that true?

A. Yes.

¢. And when you testified regarding Count 2 of the
indictment, you alsc testified regarding Government
Exhibit 7-1 which is the certificate of nonregistration

regarding the weapons, is that true?
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A. Yes.

Q. Is there anything based on your review of the
evidence that’s in Government Exhibit 10-1 through 10-8
that would cause you to change your testimony regarding
the fact that the silencers listed in Count Z were not
properly registered to Mr. Leasure?

A. Fo, it wouldn’t change my opinion.

Q. 1Is there any -- I believe during the trial you
also testified regarding Count 3 of the indictment in
Government Exhibit 7-2 the certificate that goes with
that; is that correct?

A Yes.

@. 1I= there anything in your review of Government
Exhibit 10-1 through 10-8 that would cause you to change
anything that you testified to during Mr. Leasure’s
trial regarding Count 3 in Government Exhibit 7-27

A. HNo.

Q. And, lastly, Count & of the indictment and the
corresponding Government Exhibit 7-5, is there anything
in your review of the exhibits in the 10 series that
would change your testimony regarding Count & of
Government Exhibit 7-5%

A. Ho.

Q. 1Is there anything that you have seen either in

Mr. Busey’s statements or in Government Exhibit 10-1 --
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MR. MONTAGUE: That’s leading, Your Honor, I
ochject.

THE COURT: Go on and ask the guestions proper.

BY MS. ALLEN:

Q. Mr. EBchaible, iz there anything in the
Government's 10-1 through 10-8 series that you would
consider material, important information that you needed
in order to do your certificates that were in the.
Government 7 series?

A. HNo.

Q. All right. Mr. Schaible, I'm now going toc ask
jeu to look at Government Exhibit 11-1 which I'm handing
to the court security officer.

THE COURT: What is 11-1 in wview of the fact that I
must hawve left that packet on my desk?

BY MS5. ALLEN:

. 1Is that entitled telephone records of
Mr. Leasure, Sprint Services Account regarding actiwvity
taking place on March 16, 19537

A. Yea, well, it says DIW Advantage Quality
Account, which I guess is what I think you’re saying
therea.

Q. GCkay. And have you seen that document before?

h. Yes, I have.

Q. And I believe that counsel referred to the fact
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that that document shows that on March 16, 1993,
there are two faxed times totaling 24 minutes where
documents were sent to the BATF; is that correct?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. o©Okay. And based on that document there, is
there anything that that document tells you that would
cause you to change any of your testimony regarding
Counts 2, 3, or & of the indictment?

A. HNo.

Q. Does that document there tell you what
documents were faxed if at all to the BATF?

A. Ho, it doesn’t.

MS. ALLEN: Your Honor, I‘d move for the admission
of Government Exhibits 10-1 through 10-8 and Government
Exhibit 11-1,

THE COURT: To be received.

MS. ALLEN: Your Honor, that‘s all the gquestions I
have regarding this issue.

THE COURT: Cross-examine.

CROS5-EXAMINATION
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. 1 said Busey, how does the man pronounce his
name? I hate people who mispronounce names. I‘ve had
mine mispronounced all my life, you probably have too.

A. Yes. Itfs Busey.
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Q. Busey with a long U, all right, thank you.

Now, at the time of this extraordinary Role Call
Statement by Mr. Busey, he was then the chief of the NFA
Branch?

A. Yes, he was.

Q. He was the top man in that part of your
organization?

A. Yes. .

THE COURT: Chief of what, you say?

THE WITHESS: The NFA Branch, Hational Firearms

THE COURT: The National -- NAF --

THE WITHESS: HNFA.

THE COURT: Excuse me, National Firearms Branch,
what is that?

THE WITNESS: We’re the ones who maintain the
registration records and transfers.

THE COURT: He was the chief of the NHational
Firearms --

THE WITHESS5: Branch, yes, sir.

THE COURT: Registrationm branch.

THE WITHEES: Yes.

THE COURT: Go ahead.
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. And after he made that statement, what happened
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to Mr. Busey? Did he get fired or transferred?

A. He requested reassignment to another position
in January.

Q. Was that a coerced reguest as far as you know,
Mr. Schaible?

A. HNo, he went down and asked for it or I should
say up.

Q. Well, there was considerable hullabaloo arcund
the agency, was there not -- :

A. Yes.

Q. -- having the chief in charge of the
registration of firearms saying there was a 50 percent
E?rur? I

A. Yes.

Q. You say that that testimony is not correct?

A. Well, the 50 percent error rate I said that we
have no idea how it was determined.

Q. Weren’t you working on it?

A. No.

Q. You were the senior man in the branch and you
weren’t working om it?

A. No, I didn*t.

Q. Did you check on how it was arrived at? Did

you talk to the people who were involwved?

A. It was done at the request of our former
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division chief. He said that he did not know exactly
what was done to come l.lp with this although he had the
figures himself.

Q. But wheth;r it was right or wrong, you
instituted a number of changes in the way you did that
part of your business, didn‘t you?

A. Yes.

Q. That llﬂ.ﬂ appears in your affidawit.

A: Tes.

Q. MNow, when Ms. Allen sent me her copy of

Mr. Busey’s statement, the Role Call transcript, do you

‘have any idea why she only sent the first 15 pages

instead of the whole 22 pages?

A. Ho, I dom*t.

Q. Did you have anything to do with furnishing her
with that transcript?

A. No, sir, I didn“t.

Q. Do you know who did?

A. Came out of main Justice, that’'s my
understanding.

Q. Came out of the justice department?

h. Yes.

Q. I'm not sure about the organic structure; do
you have people in the Justice Department assigned to

the ATF as your lawyers or do you have your own lawyers?
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A. - We have our own lawyers.

Q. But they.inttra:t with the Justice Department?

A. Yes, 5ir.

Q. How, all of these -- when was Mr. Busey’'s
transfer?

A. January of *96.

Q. And he had made this statement somewhere around
the end of October of *95, scmething like that, middle
of October?

A. I believe it was -- I think, October 18th, I‘m
not guite sure of the exact date, certainly would have
been -October.

Q. Where did he go?

A. He is a specialist in the Wine and Beer Branch
of ATF.

THE COURT: It says that the Role Call Training
Sessions were conducted by Busey, Chief of the National
Firearms Act Branch in the pericd between October 3, 95
to October 10, 795 at BATF headquarters and recorded and
transmitted through headgquarters on closed circuit
television. That letter is correct, isn’t it,

Mr. Schaible?
THE WITHNESS: That‘s correct. There was only one

session.

THE COURT: Well, sometime between October 3 and
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Octocber 10 there was one zession. It doesn’t -- well,

go ahead.
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. Was any intermediate administrative action
taken with regard to was Mr. Busey put on administrative
leave or anything like that?

A. Mo, =ir, not that I know of.

Q. And the closed circuit television the Judge
referred to, did that result in a VCR tape of the
affair, Mr. Busey‘s statement?

A. The tape was being done irregardless of its
traﬁsmiasinn throughout the building.

Q. That there was a tape?

L. Yas.

Q. But also a closzed circuit transmission within
your offices?

h. TYes.

Q. Ckay. And then were you aware of -- well,
excuse me. Let me ask a different question. After
Mr. Busey left, was he replaced? Is there now a new
chief of the NFA Division?

A. Yes, there is.

Q3. MNFA Branch.

THE COURT: That’s you, isn“t it?

THE WITHESS: No.
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BY ME. MONTAGUE:

Q. Who is it?

A. A lady named Nerida Levine.

Q. Is she somecne who has been with the ATF for a
long time?

A. I believe she started in "85 -- ‘86 somewhere
around there.

Q. Okay. HNow, your testimony in response to Miss
Allen just now was that these exhibits 10-1 through 10-8
didn’t exist at the time of this trial?

A. Ho, it was that the packet -- the entire packet

Q. What entire packet?

M5. ALLEN: Your Heomor, I think counsel is
migstating the evidence. I asked him whether or not the
packet of material existed at the time of trial since
there’s been an allegation that the Government and
Mr. Schaible knew about all of this during the trial.

THE COURT: The statement Mr. Busey made on
December 1st, 1995, that was certainly in existence.

MS. ALLEN: In existence, Your Honor, but I think
the allegation was that we knew that it was there during
the trial and we withheld favorable evidence and that
was not done.

MR. MONTAGUE: I didn’t make that allegation

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
Horfolk - (B04) 625-6695



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

L]

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

3s

because I have no way of knowing.

THE COURT: You would want me to assume that,
wouldn“t you, Mr. Montague?

M. MOWTAGUE: Well, I certainly believe it’s
within the breast of the Government and I realize that’s
a very large breast but it‘s the Justice Department and
the —-

THE COURT: Well, let’s move on.

BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. How in fact, Mr. Bchaible, there was a strong
effnrt within the ATF to cover up this whole affair, was
there not?

A. Ho.

Q. There was no effort to cover up this affair?

A. Ho.

¢. When was the statement by Mr. Busey mads

A. I believe in February.

Q. End of February or early March, right?

A. Mot quite sure on that.

g. PBut five months after the event?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. If that was not the result of a cover up, what
was it a result of?

A. Freedom of Information Act reguest.
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Q. Okay. 5c the agency did nothing to put this
thing out voluntarily; it had to be taken away from you
by an FOI request?

A. Yes.

g. And then all of this other stuff, your
affidavit, and all of these things about the changes
that have been made since then were done after that,
ware they not?

A. Yes.

Q. Bo in answer to the Judge’s gquestion, did this
stuff exist at the time of trial, obwviously it
pnt;ntially all existed?

A. Some of it.

Q. But simply was not being put together because
you, for whatever reason, had not put Mr. Busey’s words
out publicly.

A. Certainly, some of it existed.

Q. What is the policy of the ATF regarding
statements by the top officials?

MS. ALLEN: Your Honer, I'm going to object based
on relevance. I think the focus of this hearing should
be whether or not there‘s any Brady material that if
released during the trial would tend to establish that
Mr. Leasure is guilty or innocent and now we‘re putting

BATF on trial.
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THE COURT: I think it goes further than that, not
whether he would be found guilty or innocent but whether
there’s an obligation for that material to have been
available to defense counsel to try to convince me that
BATF were rotten recordkeepers; I think that‘s the issue
not his guilt. Anyway, your objection is overruled.
Your exception is in the racqrd. Let’s move on.

BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. Let*s drop down to the Exhibit that I
submitted. I think it’=s Government 11-1 which i=s the
telephone record of Mr. Leasure‘’s Saluda office. The
record itself shows that the phone number used for his
fa;_ma:hine obviously i= the phone number of his fax
machine. Is the phone number for your fax machine
correct?

A. Yaes.

Q. 202 number?

A. (Witness nods head.)

Q. OCkay. 5o would you agree with me that when a
phone bill is produced that shows a completed fax
tranemission, that faxes actually have arrived at their
destination?

A. I would certainly agree, ves.

0. So the faxes got to your cffice and no one

knows what happened after that?
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A. I wouldn‘t say that. Certainly faxes were

sent, what they were I can’t know.

Q. Well, we can’'t prove what they were eithgr but
it stands to reason they‘re what we said they were. But
whether they were or not, they disappeared into the 50
percent error plague of BATF‘s recordkeeping at that
time. And the 50 percent Mr. Busey was talking about
would have been in existence in February of 1994.Iw0u1d
it not?

A. I don’t know what he based the 50 percent on.

Q. Mr. Schaible, there was a serious problem,
wasn't there, whether it was 50 percent or 35 percent or
Bﬂ-percent. you-all took substantial action to correct
the serious defect in your recordkeeping system, didn‘’t
you?

A. I believe that any problem is serious, yes.

Q. Yes, sir, particularly in a field like this.

A. Yes.

Q. Do you have -- have you had cccasions that
you‘re aware of in the NFA branch of clerks throwing
away transmissions because they don‘t want to fool with
them?

A. Yas.

Q. BAnd so that‘s one of the things that could

happen to you?
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A. Certainly.

Q. A bunch of transmissions come through from
Saluda, Virginia, and the clerk says, this is gﬂiﬁh in
File 137

A. Yes.

Q. And that has happened?

A, Yes.

Q. And people have been transferred and fired as a
result of that, hawven‘t they?

A. Ho.

Q. HNo, which? I asked two guestions. Have they
been tranzferred out of that work?

1 A. The only situation I can remember is, no, that
they weren’t transferred. No, they weren’t fired. They
eventually quit, yes, but, no, nothing like transferred
or fired.

Q. Did you ever continue anybody in that
particular job after you knew they threw something away,
threw an important transmission away or destroyed it or
put it in the shredder or whatever they did?

A. And when you say "you," you mean, the branch?

Q. I mean you the agency, I'm Sorry.

A. Yes.

Q. You continued them doing that kind of work?

A. With monitoring, yes.
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Q. Okay.

ME. MONTAGUE: I believe that s all I have, Your
Honor . o

THE COURT: Anything further, Ms. Allen?

MS. ALLEM: HNo thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Step down, Mr. Schaible.

M5. ALLEN: Your Honor, that‘s all the evidence I
have to thét last motion.

THE COURT: All right. All right. The tvid;ncc ==
that record has been made. Anything you want to --

ME. MONTAGUE: I just have a couple of comments
with regard to the first part of Ms. Allen’s comments.
In the first place, I don‘t know what the implication
was about fraud on the Court and frauwdulent material but
I don’t practice that kind of law and the documents were
genuine as far as I know and I have every reason to
think they were. I alsoc think we have every reason to
think they were received by the ATF based on the
testimony we’ve just had.

THE COURT: I don’t think there’s any evidence of
that, Mr. Montague, that these particular things marked
void or received are because you point out Carl O'Quinn
or Mr. Leasure called this telephone number on a certain
date. But I don‘t think it’s going to make any

difference in this case.
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I‘m going to throw out the convictions that have to

do with registrations. I‘m going te throw out Count 2,
3, and 6 so that the only count left is Count 1, that’s
the one I want to hear addressed at this time. That‘’s
got nothing to do with registrations, we‘re talking
about silencers.

MR. MONTAGUE: Yes, sir. All right, thank you for

that.

THE COURT: The motion for a new trial is denied

ecause it was addressed only to Counts 2, 3, and 6.

I have thrown out Count 2, 3, and 6, so the motion for a |
new trial is denied. We re here for sentencing as to
Count 1. And now, if you want to sit down and talk teo
your client about how you want to proceed on Count 1 and

I71l take a five-minute recess.

MR. MOWTAGUE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Allen, this isn’t te impune
anything dishonest from you. I think you sent to them
whatever you‘ve received, but Mr. Schaible has testified
that they knew all about Mr. Busey’s statement in the
Hational Firearms people. It’s on television all over
the building, it was in the files of the Department of
Justice, and it throws a disagreeable proposition on my
finding somebody guilty on records when their chief man

says they were 49 percent wrong. That‘s not your fault.
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Five minutes and we ll take up sentencing on Sount
1. And I71]1 have something more to say for the record
20 you-all can have it for appellate purposes but gight
now that’s where we are.

(Recess.)

THE COURT: Held up a minute. Let me make some
notes. It seems to me that the Court having thrown out
Counts 2, 3, 4, 5 and & the only thing left is Count 1
of which I found that’s the silencers count which has
nothing to do with registration. In fact, it-’s

nonregistration that‘s the essence of the case

(,—:ns no motion, I don‘t beliewe, made with reference to
Count 1, Mr. Montague, but in the wealth of paper
you-all have provided me with I may have overlooked
something. We’re here only on sentencing of Count 1 at
this point; is that correct?

P "
ME. MOMTAGUE: Well, I intended to include -- it's

certainly an entirely different animal.

THE COURT: All right. We‘re here for sentencing
now. Bring Mr. Leasure up to the lectern with you.

ME. MONTAGUE: All right, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Leasure, the matter ended in a
conviction of you on Count 1 on, I think it was January
the 19th, but so that the record won‘t have any errors

in it, let me be sure. On January the 1%th the matter
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was taken under advisement.

on February 6th an order was entered in which I
brought all parties back to court and filed a written
order of the Court finding you guilty as to Count 1 and
as to some other counts which are now made moot by
virtue of the rulings of the Court. I at that time
prdered a presentence report and ordered you to return
here for sﬁntancinq for 9:30 on May 21, which is today.

1 have a presentence report prepared by my
probation officer Miss Thayer over here and I ask you
first, Mr. Montague, have you been over this report in
detail with your client, Mr. John Leasure?

MR. MONTAGUE: Yes, sir, I have.

THE COURT: And, Mr. Leasure, have you been over
this report in detail with your attorney, Mr. Montague?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, I have.

THE COURT: And we’'re here only on Count 1.

Mr. Montague, is there any evidence you want to present
with reference to this count?

MR. MONTAGUE: Hot with reference to the count as
such but I‘d like to put on some character evidence, if
I may.

THE COURT: All right, sir. Have a seat.

1711 be glad to hear the first witness, if you‘ll

call your first witness.
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ME. MONTAGUE: I‘m going to call Sheriff Lewis
Jones .

THE COURT: Have a seat. All right, sir, go right
ahead.

LEWIS JONES, III, & Witness, called on behalf of
the Defendant, having been first duly sworn, was
examined and testified as follows:

. DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. Would you state your -- let me let you get
geated. Will vou state your full name, please.

A. Lewis Jones, III.

THE COURT: Lewis spelled L-e- or L-o-7.

THE WITHESS: L-e-.

THE COURT: L-e-w-i-s Jones, III. Go ahead,

Mr. Montague.
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. How are you currently employed, Mr. Jones?

A, I'm the sheriff of Middlesex County, Virginia.

Q. How long have you held that ocffice?

A. I'm in my ninth year.

. And prior to being -- that’s an elective
office, ie it not?®

A. Yez, gir, it is.

. Prior to being elected sheriff of Middlesex,
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did you have any other background in law enforcement?

" A. Yes, sir. I was a Virginia state trooper for
gix and a half years and alsc with the City of
Charlottesville, Virginia Police Department
three-and-a-half years.

Q. During your time as a state trooper, were you
stationed in the Middlesex County area?

A. Yes, s5ir, I was stationed there in December of
1980.

Q. All right, sir. HNow, would it be fair to
describe your position of sheriff of Middlesex as the
chi;f local law enforcement officer in that area?

A. Yes, sir, that‘s correct, I am.

Q. Would it be fair to say that as sheriff -- as
the chief local law enforcement officer, it’s important
for you to know - to be blunt - who the good guys and
the bad guys are that frlqutn£ your county?

THE COURT: Mr. Montague, you’ve practiced law as
long as I have and we‘re talking about character
evidence; we’re not talking about anything else. So
let’s get into it; let‘s don’t get into anything else.

MR. MONTAGUE: All right, sir.

BY MR. MONTAGUE:
Q. But it is necessary for you to evaluate people

that may run afoul of the law?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in your office as sheriff, did you become
acguainted with a gentleman named, John Leasure?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. And is he in the courtroom today?

A. Yes, sir, he is.

Q. Would you point him out?

A. (Indicating.)

Q. You‘re indicating Mr. Leasure at the Defense
table. And what was Mr. Leasure’s business in Middlesex
County?

Ao My first encounter with him in a business was
with a parts store with his brother and then later as a
retail gun dealer and then with his current business
status.

Q. Did he operate a business called John‘s Gun
Shop in Saluda?

A, Yes, sir, he did.

Q. All right. Did you come to develop a
relaticnship or friendship with Mr. Leasure?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

THE COURT: What we‘re interested in, Mr. Jones, is
do you know his reputation for truth and voracity in the
community?

THE WITMESS: Yes, sir, I do.
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THE COURT: And what is it?

THE WITHNESS: John enjoys a very good character and
standing in the community.

THE COURT: All right. That-s about as far as you
can go, Mr. Montague.

ME. MONTAGUE: Well, let me try one other step,
Your Honor.

THE C.OURT: I71]l be glad to stop you if you‘re
wrong. Let‘s go.

- MR. MONTAGUE: I know that.
BY tﬂ?f, MONTAGUE :

Q. In connection with that reputation, did you
have occasion to appoint him as anything in your
department?

A. Yes, sir. February of 1988 I appointed
Mr. Leasure a deputy sheriff of Middlesex County
Sheriffrs Office.

Q. And what were his duties, if any, with your
department?

THE COURT: That’s of no importance to me. He said
he has a good reputation for truth and voracity and I
let you show that he appointed him as deputy sheriff in
1988. How long did he act?

THE WITMESS: Through March of 1990.

THE COURT: For a couple of years?
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THE WITNESE: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: A year and a half?
THE WITNES5: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right now.

BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. Sheriff Jones, you‘re here by your own

velition, you're not here by reason of a subpoena: is

that

correct?

A. That is correct.

ME. MONTAGUE: Answer Miss Allen.

THE COURT: Any questions, Ms. Allen?
ME. ALLEN: HNo qguestions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, Sheriff, step down. An&

reagon why Sheriff Jones can’t be excused?

ME. MONTAGUE: He can return to his duties a=z far

as we're concerned with our thanks.

THE COURT: Call your next witnesa.

ME. MONTAGUE: I‘m going to call Mr. Leasure.
THE COURT: Mr. Leasura.

ME. MONTAGUE: He s not been sworn yet.

THE COURT: Go ahead, sir

JOHN D, TERSURE, the Defendant, called on behalf of

the Defense, having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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EY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. State your name please, sir.

A. John Daniel Leasure.

Q. And you are the defendant in this case?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Leasure, during your trial in this case, I
showed one of the Government witnesses, I think it was
Mr. Schaible, a copy of this book. It’s a red cover
entitled Federal Firearms Regulation 1988-89. My
question, sir, is, was this book provided to you by the

ATF as your guide to the law affecting your work as a

firearms manufacturer?

A. TYes, it was.

Q. And the answer given to me by whoever it was
that testified from the ATF was that you were told that
by following this book you would stay out of trouble,
this was your bible, what you had to do as a firearms --
in felatian to federal firearms purchases?

A. (Witness nods head.)

Q. Bow, in connection with that, did you have an
understanding as to what your cobligation based on the
material appearing in this manual -- what your
obligation was with regard to placing serial numbers and -
manufacturer‘s namez on silencers?

A. Yes, I did.
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MS. ALLEN: Your Honor, I‘m going to object. We
went through --

THE COURT: It‘s already in the record one time and
that’s all.

ME. MONTAGUE: Count 1 involves 19 unserialized
silencers.

THE COURT: Was one withdrawn? Are there 18 or 197

MS. ALLEN: There are 1%, Your Honor, one was
withdrawn from Count 2.

THE COURT: 19, all right.

ME. MONTAGUE: I think 19 is correct.
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

) Q. Of the 19 none had a serial number on it nor
the identification of your manufacturing name which was
Precision Arms International or PAI?

A. That’s correct.
Q. And each of those being unmarked, did that
result from the same misconception of the law by you?
ME. ALLEN: Your Honor, I have a continuing
objection to this whole --

THE COURT: All right. I-1ll let him testify one
time. He‘s already testified to this.

THE WITHNESS: Yes, it did.

BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. Hot only based upen the regulations but was
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that misconception also based upon industry practices as
you understood them?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. And is it fair to say, sir, that your intention
at all times with regard to these silencers as well as
all other armaments and weapons within your shop and
Hitﬁin your control was to attempt to obey the law?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Mr. Lessure, as based upon the Court’s action
this morning, you stand convicted of one felony count.
And what do you understand will be the impact, leaving
aside the question of whether you go to jail or not --
ﬂhl£ do you understand the impact of that conviction to
be upon your life as it’s been lived up to now?

A. Well, it -- from then on I“ll be treated as a
second class citizen I feel like. It is what I feel
like about the worst thing that could happen to me.

But I will state and I don’t know whether I can do
this now or not but I will s;y sitting here today right
here and right now, if I still had -- if I W&é still
asked whether or not I would plead guilty or not to
Count 1, I would still plead not guilty. I read and
understood the law. I tried to interpret from the law
what I understoocd to be the law, and I’ve given you the

code section and I still feel it’s wvery vague. I still
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fttil it*s very vague. In one sentence it says by the

ATF's own admigsion that any firearm silencer part is a
silencer, even a rubber disk that goes in the end -of it.

Q. Even a Coke bottle?

A. Yeah, abgzolutely. So I don‘t understand how I
can manufacture, own, and I‘m the one who assigns the
gerial number but under the Code Section 179.102 that I
provided you ocut of that bock that you have, not out of
the new book that was published in October of 1995 it’s
much more explicit, it“s wvery clear, out of the old book
it*s not.

Q. Let me ask you one guestion about that if we
may, Your Honor. The new book, which I think has a
yellow cover, came ocut in, what, November of #95%

A. Yes. .

Q. And what is different bearing on this
particular point between that book and the one that you
had to go by?

A. It says in the yellow book under that code
section that the form has to be done by closing the next
business day, the Form 2.

Q. That does not appear in the red book?

A. HNot under that code section marked 179.102
Identification of Firearms.

Q. BSo it is your testimony that nowhere in the red
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book are you told when you‘re supposed to mark these
eilencers?

A. Mot that I could find, no. Under 179.7102 it
states that it is to be marked when it is sold,
transferred, or otherwise disposed of and that’s what I
got from it.

Q. These particular silencers were never going to
be sold or transferred, were they?

A. They were totally separate, separate from
everything else in a locked cabinet, and at warious
times I would cannibalize them and get parts off of
them. I had enough parts in my shop to assemble five
hunﬁrid silencers.

Q. And, as a matter of fact, you had hundreds of
parts, tubes, and the like that were intended to be used
as parts of silencers?

A. Hundred and hundreds and hundreds.

Q. And the way the law is written you could have
been charged on all of them, you could have a thousand
counts or a thousand items under the count?

A. I guess s0.

0. And I guess they’'d want to electrocute you at
that point, I don’t know.

. THE COURT: I‘m the only one entitled to humor in

this courtroom.
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ME. MONTAGUE: I withdraw the attempt at humor,

Your Honor. There isn‘t anything funny about this
situation. o
BY ME. MONTAGUE:

Q. Iz there anything else you‘d like to tell us,
Mr. Leasure?

A. Just that I feel like I have tried to =-- it has
been my intention to abide by the law. I had no
intention of breaking the law. I == certainly from the
time the ATF came into the raid, I had three days. They
left their own printout there. They’d never even been
in the back and seen my inventory. I could have taken
that inwentory and made sure everything matched and then
I probably wouldn‘t be sitting here, but I wanted -=- I
wanted to get it straight. If there was a problem, I
wanted it to be straight. &And, I‘m sorry, I still
wouldn‘t do it any differently.

Q2. And you didn‘t attempt to hide anything, you
cooperated fully in that investigation?

A. Absolutely.

Q. Because yvou didn’t think you’d done anything
wrong; is that correct?

A. HNHo, I did not.

MR. MONTARGUE: Answer Miss Allen.

THE COURT: Cross, Mz, Allen?
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MEB. ALLEM: No gquestions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Step down. Thank you, Mr. LE-;!EUIE.

Any other witness, Mr. Montague? .

ME. MONTAGUE. Yes, sir. I‘d like to call
Mrz. Leagure.

THE COURT: &all right.

CHERYT LEASURE, a Witness, called on behalf of the
Defendant, having been first duly sworn, was examined
and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATIOR
BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. Would state your name, please, ma’am.

A. Cheryl Leasure.

Q. Would you spell Cheryl for the Court.

A. C-h-e-r-y-1.

THE COURT: C-h-e-r-y-1, go ahead.

BY MR. MONTAGUE:

Q. And you‘re married to Mr. Leasure?

A. That’s correct.

Q. How long have you-all been married?

A. We have been married almost a year.

Q. And you‘re -- actually, your first anniversary
is going to be next week; isn’t it7?

A. That’s right, Monday.

Q. Okay. And do you have any children by a prior
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marriage?

A.. Yes, I do.

Q. And describe the child.

A. He’s six years cold. His name is Drew.

Q. And has Drew in your observation as his mother
formed a relationship with Mr. Leasure?

A. Yes, sir, a wvery close an;.

Q. Would it be fair to say that you think
Mr. Leasure has become a father figure to your son?

A. Very much so, more than his own father; I
should say bioclogical father.

2. And how do you regard your husband in terms of
hard workingness, good citizenship, and that sort of
thing?

A. He*s wery hardworking, he’s wery honest. I‘wve
never seen anything where he’s tried to hide or do
anything wrong.

Q. And you're invelved -- have been involved in
the business at the gun shop, hawve you not?

A. Right, I*ve come up there and helped out a
little bit there.

Q. Have you helped improve the' recordkeeping?

A. TYas,

ME. MONTAGUE: I think that‘s all.

THE COURT: Any guestions?
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MS. ALLEN: No, thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Leasure. Step down.

Call your next witness.

ME. MONTAGUE: That‘s all, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I*ll be glad to hear from
you, Mr. Montague, and at the proper time I‘ll ask
Mr. Leasure if there’s anything further he wants to say.

MER. MONTAGUE: All right. Excuse me one second,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Surely.

(Pause. )

TME COURT: Hold up for just a minute.

ME. MONTAGUE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Montague, there were objections and
I overlooked these beginning on Page 16, 17, and 18 and
they loocked like you objected to paragraph 16. You
cbject to the finding made by Miss Thayer that
Mr. Leasure was not entitled to any acceptance of
responsibility under the law. Because of his pleas of
not guilty in the defense of the case, he isn’t entitled
to any so if you have any objection to his not getting
the three points, that objection is overruled.

MR. MONTAGUE: Well --

THE COURT: Now, to Paragraph 19 an objection is

raised. The probation officer’s report that defendant

Biggs & Fleet Court Reporters
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failed to pay fines and court costs for a reckless
driving conviction and that would have no effect on any
penalty that I would be involved with to start with, so
that objection is irrelevant so far as I'm concerned.

MS. ALLEW: And, Your Honor, just for the record,
the probaticon officer informed me this morning that upon
further investigation she found ocut on February 10th,
1987, tha£ Mr. Leasure had, in fact, paid those court
costs, and we would withdraw that and note that for the
record.

THE COURT: The fine has been paid?

MS. ALLEN: February 10th, 1987, that‘s correct,
Your Honor.

ME. MONTAGUE: The only reason I made that
objection, Your Honor, is because it created a sort of
gcuff or a different type of appearance and I didn’t
think that was deserving.

THE COURT: Paragraph 20 reflects the date of the
arrest. The probation officer reliesz on a copy of the
warrant executed June 1, 1993. I find that to be of no
consequence to this.

ME. ALLEH: Just for the record, Your Honor, we
have a certified copy of the paperwork the probation
officer was relying upon which iz marked as Government’s

Exhibit 12-1 which we’d cffer to the Court.
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THE COURT: All right. Show it to Mr. Montague.

Put it with the papers in the suit.

Paragraph 47 an ocbjection is raised that the-
probation officer reported the defendant didn“t file
Federal taxes for the years 790, *91, 792, and 923
according to the Internal Revenue Service’s Taxpaver
Services Division; they have no record of a return being
filed for those four years and, therefore, no change was
made to that. Do you have any response to that?

MS. ALLEM: Your Honor, we hawve a certified copy of
the probation ocfficer‘s request for the information as
wiéll as the IRS'=s response that reflects that Government
Exhibit 12-2 has also been shown to Mr. Montaguoe.

THE COURT: Mr. Montague, apparently he hadn‘t
filed a return at least according to the evidence
available to me. I don’'t know that it s going to make a
lot of difference but do you have anything to the
contrary?

ME. MONTAGUE: The only thing I have is that
Mr. Leasure has assured me that he has filed all the
returns and has paid all of the taxes. He is constantly
in this case a wvictim of Government records that don‘t
exist.

THE COURT: Well, wait a minute. We‘re not going

to start with that. Are you going to indict the
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Internal Revenue Service for reporting that he didn‘t
file any taxes for those years?

ME. MONTAGUE: No, sir. I‘m sure they -- .

THE COURT: Turn to your client, I'm not going to
take that as a charge against the Government. Talk to
your client. Ask him has he got any evidence that he
pald taxezs, filed returns for those years when they say
he did not.

MR. MONTAGUE: I don‘t need to ask him that, Your
Honor, he would have given it to me if he had. No, he
dees not, and I'm sure the IRS is acting in good faith.
I.don’t question that.

The only thing I do know and will add this to the
Court if I may is that after the demise of his company,
Precision Arms International, there were some unpaid
payroll taxes and the IES procedure in that case is to
impose a hundred percent penalty on the person in charge
of the company that’s gone belly up. In the case of
Mr. Leasure, they imposed that penalty and then after
meeting with him, they waived it because of his
financial condition and the only thing that happened was
they did take an assignment on all of the guns that the
government now holds. They're supposed to get those

when they’re turned loose.

THE COURT: The last objection is the computations
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based on the number of weapons and that’s an amount that
we’ll have to discuss after your argument, S0 now go on
with the argumeant.

MR. MORTAGUE: All right, sir. I‘m getting a
little discombobulated here, Your Honor. I think that
== let me see if I can find the language. This language
came up, the language of the regulations under 179 of
the regs. ﬁffecting firearm manufacturers, registration,
identification of firearms.

Mr. Leasure has testified that the regulation has
been amended at a time after this case was already in
procese to require anyone manufacturing silencers as he
did to mark them with a serial number which he makes up
gnd puts on himself and the name showing the
manufacturer’s identification. It says that that must
ke done in accordance with these regulations and the
only positive time that it gives him to do it is where
the zilencer is not an integral part of a complete
firearm. It must be done at the time of sale or of
transfer.

THE COURT: I‘wve ruled on that and ruled against
you. You take that uwp with the Fourth Circuit.

ME. MONTAGUE: Well, the iszsue today. I think is of
the element of time. I think that is important and

should be important to the Court. I understand what the
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Court’s ruling was and I think the interpretation
probably is wrong but on the other hand nowhere in fhe
regulation does it tell him when he is to do it other
than when he sells it.

THE COURT: I“wve already ruled on that,

Mr. Montague. I‘ve found him guilty. I don’t have any
problem with that. If you’ve got anything to add to
that, you’ll get your cpportunity in Richmond.

MR. MONTAGUE: I have already flagged for the Court
the case of Staples against the United States. It’s
important in this case because it does inwvolve a mental
element in what appeared in the way Congress drew these
laws to be an absolute offense, a strict liability type
of offense. These are what have been called public
welfare crimes. They‘re instrumentalities that are so
inherently dangerous such as drugs, high explosives,
things of that nature that a person would be deemed to
know that there must be some regulation whether he says
with all the innocence of a lamb that he did not know,
there’s many reasons he should know whatever it may be,
a nuclear device or hand grenade or something of that
kind.

The Staples opinion was passed after -- long after
the Freed opinicon on which this court relied and decided

in 1994. Justice Thomas wrote the cpinion for the
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majority and he discussed it at great length. The

tradition of Anglo-Saxon courtroom jurisprudence
requires that there be some knowledge of evil in conduct
that a person electe to pursue. He says it is as
universal and persistent in maeture systems of law as
belief in the freedom of the human will and,
consequently, the ability and duty of a normal
individual to choose between good and evil.

This case at least the last time I looked had not
come out of the U.5. Reports but it“s in the 128
Lawyer*s Edition, 2nd, beginning at Page 608. 1In that
edition he says on Page 618 that the Government seeks
supgort for its position which was basically a no-intent
position from our decision in D.8. w. Freed, 401, U.5.
and so forth, 1971, A case inveolving unregistered hand
grenades. That’s the case the Court relied on in making
it’s ruling in this case.

That reasoning provides little support for
dispensing with mens rea in this case. In this case
what I think haz happened iz the defendant has made a
conclusive showing of a lack of anything other than a
law abiding spirit. He’s an honorable man; his record
supports that. He didn‘t mean to break the law, and I
do not think that the instrumentalities, these locked up

silencers that didn‘t work properly --
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THE COURT: There was no showing that these

silencers didn’t work properly. He fired every one,
kept a minute record of the decibels. They were
completely done, Mr. Montague, so don’t put anything
false in the record.

ME. MONTAGUE: I*m not putting anything false in
the record, Your Honor. That was a mistake in
recollection that the Court drew from the testimony of
one of the BATF agents.

THE COURT: I°1ll live with it.

ME. MONTAGUE: Well, it was the BATF agent that
fired the silencers. I‘m sure Mr. Leasure had fired
them at some time too but he didn“t -- the record of
decibel reduction was done by --

THE COURT: He testified, Mr. Montague, that many
of these silencers the reason they were in the cabinet
was because they didn’t meet -- when he tested them,
they didn‘t meet the reduction in decibels that he would
require of an instrument. You can argue with me but
that asz a fine workman he found something wrong with
them, but he tested them and found that they didn’t suit
what he wanted. He knew that they would work. Don‘t
tell me otherwise.

ME. MONTAGUE: I‘m not telling you otherwise. I'm

saying your finding in your order in this case that
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somebody fired them and kept a record was the Government
agent not Mr. Leasure.

THE COURT: We can check the record but I‘m going
on what he testified.

ME. MONTAGUE: Yes, there‘s no guestion that he
knew that they did not meet his standards, and he. was
not going to sell them for that reason, and he kept them
for parts.

THE COURT: That*s your argument and that‘s the one
you ought to make but don‘t tell me that they were not
fireable or couldn‘t be used, that s not in the record.

Mi; MONTAGUE: I didn‘t tell you that, and I‘m not
trying to mislead the Court in any way. I think I‘ve
been very open in all aspects of this thing.

Certainly, he isn‘t going to throw away the
silencer but he wasn’'t going to market it because it
didn‘t work right, didn‘t meet his higher standards and
he saw nothing wrong in the way he understood the
regulation and the industry practices to keep them
simply as a source of spare parts. The metals involved
in those devices are very expensive and why throw them
away.

Based upon everything that’s before the Court, I
would ask the Court to take into account this man‘s

lifelong good record and the fact that this particular
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case, the incidents that arose to bring this case into
this court were the product of a2 completely innocent
mind, a man who is a lifelong law abiding citizen..

THE COURT: Thank you. Misgs Allen.

MS. ALLEN: Your Honor, I believe that the
presentence report shows the base offense level to be 18
plus a 6 for 60 weapons, which the probation ufficer
relies upon Paragraph 11 of the presentence report. The
probation officer’s calculations are in accordance with
the Fourth Circuit law, particularly, the Bowman case
which was 926 F.2d, 380, 1991 Fourth Circuit decision
approving the Court’s sentence based upon the convicted
counts and uncharged counts.

I think the probation officer has figured 60
firearms based on the guns that were in the indictment
as well as other guns that were seized with the search
warrant. If her calculations are right, the guidelines
would be 51 to 63 months. If the Court decides not to
consider 60 --

THE COURT: I'm mot going to count any of the guns
that have been thrown out becausze of the registration
period, so it will reach nowhere near 20. It will be 19
at the most.

M5. ALLEN: Based on the Court‘s statement there,

the Government sees the base level of 18 plus 4 since
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the guns in Count 1 are 1% and the 4 point enhancement
is for 13 to 24 firearms and if that’s true, the total
for that level will be 22 giving the Court a guideline
range of 41 to 51 months. If that’s what the Court
finds, the Government has no further argument other than
that.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Montague, you have a
right to answer that. She says that the unlawful
possession of firearms in Level 18 -- this doesn’t state
what I‘m going to do but that number of firearms are
more than 12 and less than 25, add 4 and you come up
with 22 and the incarceration period is 31 to some other
months so you better answer that, and I*1l make my
findings in the matter.

MR. MONTAGUE: My answer to it would be this, Your
Honor, would be the retention of the unmarked silencers
- the 1% unmarked silencers - resulted from a single
mizinterpretation of law and should be treated as one.
Mr. Leasure testified it could have been 500 or 1,000
devices under the same category entirely innocently
retained as were the hundreds that he was not charged
under. Why he wasn’t I don‘t know but the retention of
the firearms, of these silencers, these non-properly
working silencers should be treated as one weapon and

there be no enhancement.
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And, of course, I think beyond that, the Court
should exercise its discretion. I suggested in one of
my pleadings that the Court consider a lesser included
offense which is failure to properly record firearms,
which is under 18 0USC 912M, which iz a misdemesanor at
offense Level & which is much more appropriate to this
case. I‘m not going to say there was nothing wrong
here. I do think the Government has a right to regulate
these things; they are dangerous.

Certainly, we associate silencers with many
criminal activities, assassinations and things of that
kind that this Government certainly has a right to
;:r:mt:'nl but here the appearance of heavy evil is just
not there.

THE COURT: I‘m not going to file a written order
in the matter, so I will record for the record my
findings as they apply to this case. Upon the
conclusion of the evidence and the information set forth
in the trial order the Court dated something like
February 6th, the Court found the defendant guilty then
az to Count 1 which was the silencer count, 19 silencers
that were not registered at all and not in compliance
with the statute which requiresz them to be registered
with the firearms people by the close of business of the

second day after their manufacture. That’s perfectly
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clear to me. And while I understand Mr. Leasure ﬁay
have some trouble with that, I don't. He’s found guilty
of a violation of Count 1. o

I alsoc had some -- as to Counts 2 and 3, the deal
with registration and the debate that surfaced between
Mr. Leasure and the firearms people as to whether or not
he was using a method of cancelling certain transfers
that he made to his accountant apparently owver some
bankruptcy difficulty that he -- but that’s -- they were
transferred to somebody named O Quinn and when the --
whatever the problem -- the matter that had prompted
that transfer seemed not to have transpired, then the
effort was made to cancel those transfers by writing
vnid‘anraas the front of the transfer agreement that had
been acceded to by the firearms people.

And then the same thing would apply to Count 3 and
to the registration of a 22 pen pistol gun which is set
forth in Count 6. The argument made in Count & that the
pistol was not called a firearm it was called a weapon
iz of no importance to me and I think that‘s a facetious
argument and I would owerrule it on that basis.

But having heard the indictment of the
recordkeeping of the National Firearm Services that was
expressed in February of 1993 and having heard something

that was not brought up at trial that the head of the
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registration division made a speech to all of hiz people
and said that the recordkeeping was 49 to 50 percent in
error and feeling as I do that from the testimony of
Mr. Schaible today that that information was fully
knowledgeable within the National Firearms Bureau at the
time it was made - it seems it was on closed circuit
television and then a transcription was ma.de. - and
hearing from him that at the time, whether it was in
October or Kovember 1994, that this raised such a furor
within the bureau that Mr. Busey if was not fired but
that he “"voluntarily" retired from his position so that
statement -- which nobody seems to know where he got his
fiq'u.rc-: from -- but that was not furnished to the
defendants in this case. And they would have had a
right to have brought that up to me as showing the
correctness of the firearms registration for their being
questioned by the top man in the registration bureau.

I doen’t say this to Miss Allen. I‘ve known her for
a long time and she's said in court and it’s in the
record that she knew nothing about thisz until she
received a packet from some place from the Department of
Justice, I believe, which indicated Busey’s statement,
then an investigation was immediately ordered, and the
consequences of it. That statement and the guestion of

whether or not Mr. Busey’s information was correct or
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counsel, and its not being furnished szeems to me te have
violated a precept under which we proceed.

For that reason I‘ve thrown out all of those counts
of the indictment which deal in any manner upon the
active and registered numbers assigned to weapons and
that leaves us with the silencers. I hgve ahsolu?&ly no
problem with the law in the case that when you make &
silencer, you‘ve got to register it by five o‘clock on
the end of the day following its manufacture. And so
the matter is before me for sentencing now on only Count
1 of the indictment that affects Mr. Leasure.

Mr. Montague, have Mr. Leasure step with you to the
lactern.

Mr. Leasure, the law reguires that a judge of this
court give you an opportunity to make any statements
yourd like to make before I proceed to sentencing. Tt
does not reqguire that you say anything. You have, in
fact, already testified both at the trial imn chief and
at this sentencing hearing, but if there‘s anything
further you want to say, I‘ll be glad to hear from you.
Anything further?

THE DEFENDANRT: I would like to say something, Your
Honor, and not take up too much of the Court’s time. I

have it owver here.
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THE COURT: Go ahead. I'm not tired, Mr. Leasure.
To give you full benefit of the law, you have a right to
make any statement you’d like to make. o

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, sir.

MR. LEASURE: Your Honor, I had no criminal intent.
If I had, when the ATF came to my shop three days prior
to the raid and left the National Firearms printout of
the uea.pol:;.s that were supposed to be in my inventory, I
would have made up paperwork or whatever to get my
inventory to match theirs. But I knew that I had
completed my paperwork properly, and I knew in my heart
I had committed no crime. I felt any discrepancies with
BATF-could be worked out.

I cooperated fully. I left everything just the way
it was even though they had never stepped foot in the
manufacturing portion of my shop at that point in time.
I contacted them on two separate cccasions to find out
what the status was on the case and on the things that
they seized from me. I was told they were waiting on
word from Washingteon, and during that time frame, I
basically went out of business.

As to Count 1, I truly interpreted the ATF
regulations boock - the only book that I had in my
possession of 1980 and 1989 - to mean a serial number

was not reguired until it was sold, shipped, or
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otherwize disposed of. This was the only regulation
book in print and the only one that I had in my
possession.

I, of course, now know it crystal clear that that*s
not the way that it is and that I‘m supposed to do it by
cloging of the next business day. The next update that
was printed by ATF was in October of 19%5. I was never
furnished with one of these updates. I had to receiwve
one from someone else; a friend of mine gave me one.

The Code Section 179.102 is what is practiced in
the industry, although no one was willing to testify to
that fact for fear of retaliation and prosecution. In
regar:d to the -- briefly, just the transfers to Carl
0‘Quinn. There were transfers that were done to Carl
0 Quinn, who was my accountant at that time and the
person that I transferred these things to that were
voided and approved, that I was not indicted on that
were done in exactly the same way the others that I
furpished to the Court were done.

In closing, Your Honor, whenever I thought nf'
somecone who was a convicted felon, I thought of a person
who committed a terrible crime, certainly not one that I
considered to be paperwork and a misinterpretation of
the law. I did not and have not knowingly commitied a

crime and I did not have any criminal intent, and that’s
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all I have to say.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Mr. Leasure.
Normally, going strictly by the guidelines in the case
we would come up with the possession of silencers and it
being a wieclation of the statute would come into the
guidelines with a basic 18 points under 2K2.1(a) (5).

The unlawful possession of a firearm has a entry level
of 18.

And if I took into account the whole 19 of the
gilencers, there would be added at least -- we would be
between 13 and 24 and you would add 4 points and that
wupld come up with a total of 22 for which the guideline
santencing table would reach 41 to 51 months. But I'm
zatisfied in the case not that there hasn’t been a
violation, there has been so far as I‘m concerned
clearly shown, but that the impact of the bundle of
silencers which were introduced as evidence in this
court range from little small implements to something of
considerable size and the finding of those in a cabinet,
as Mr. Leasure suggests, in a locked cabinet, and, of
course, at that point the wviolation had already
occurred.

But it seems to me that thiz matter falls under 5K2
of the guidelines and I guote it. It says that the

judge may depart from the guidelines and impose a
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sentence outside of the guidelines, "if there exists an
aggravating or mitigating circum;tance of a kind or to a
degree not adequately taken into consideration by the
sentencing commission in formulating the guidelines,
that should result in a sentence different from that

described.” I think that’s the case here.

I*d add one thing further in Mr. Leasure‘s faver,
the racord.uasn't written up totally in the case but as
I recall it, the sales that had been made by him had
been made to other Governments under prohibitions
granted by the United States or to the agencies of the
United States so that generally speaking there was a

great deal of scrutiny being applied to silencers and

their manufacture as indeed there should be because it-s

certainly an implement that is used in covertness of the

most advanced sort. /I, therefore, will depart down by 5
points and come to -- well, depart by 9 points, that
comes to 13 which carries under the Sentencing Tables of
Criminal History Category 1, 12 to 18 months and
sentence him at the bottom of that to 12 months, $50 for
the conviction of a felony, waive fine, three years
supervised release.

S0 to review that that would be that pursuant to

this order of the Court, John Daniel Leasure is hereby

committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of
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Prison to be by them incarcerated for a pericd of 12
months. That he shall serve a term of supervised
release of three years upon his release from
incarceration. That if requested by the probation
pecple upon his release on supervised release, he would
teke such tests for the use of any controlled substance
within a reascnable time period thereafter that should
be regquired of him.

You have a right of appeal, Mr. Leasure. If you
wish to appeal, you must notify the clerk of this court
in writing within ten days. If you do not have the
money to hire an attorney to prosecute an appeal and if
you fall within the statutes being provided, an attorney
would be appointed by the United States and paid by the
United States.

If you don’t have the money to pay the cost of such
an appeal and if youw fall within the statute they‘ve
provided, that cost will be paid by the United States.
Where you would be incarcerated for this period of 12
months would be a matter that would have to be
determined by the Marshall‘s office, and I‘1l leave you
free on bond under the present orders of the Court to
report before 2 p.m. on June the 21st. I don‘t have a
calendar. Is that not on a Friday, Saturday, or Sunday?

MS. ALLEN: That‘s on a Friday, Your Honor.
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MADAM CLERK: It is a Friday, Judge.

THE COURT: All right. The 20th, Thursday, to the
U.58. Marshall at Norfolk by twoe o‘clock, June 20, 1996,
If a point of designation has been indicated by the
Department of Prisons and Bureau of Prisons at that
time, you would report to the warden of the prison =o
designated before two o‘clock of June 20th, 1996.

Kow, I assume if he appeals -- I assume he‘s going
to appeal. What sort of bond is he presently on,

Mr. Montague?

MR. MONTAGUE: It is a monetary amount, ¥our Honor.
I.dnn’t recall.

THE COURT: Well, let me loock. I-“ll find it.

MR. MONTAGUE: It’s not a surety bond.

THE COURT: He’s on an unsecured appearance bond in
the amount of $10,000. If he appeals, I would require
that he have a secured bond for the $10,000, but I would
leave him on bond pending that appeal, but I won‘t leawe
him on a $10,000 personal recognizance bond. He*ll have
to come up with security if he wants to take advantage
of that.

ME. MONTAGUE: Understood.

THE COURT: All right. Have a seat. Hand this to
the probation officer. Miss Clerk, let me give you

these papers.
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MS. ALLEM: Your Honor, just for the record, the
Government needs to object to the Court s ruling
regarding the downward departure.

THE COURT: I couldn‘t hear you.

MS. ALLEN: Just for the record, we‘re going to
object to your downward departure with respect to the --

THE COURT: Be my guest.

MS. ALLEN: Thank you.

THE COURT: This goes back. All right. Miss

Clerk, recess the court.
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